
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

 
 

Kern Medical Center 
1700 Mount Vernon Avenue 
Bakersfield, California 93306 

 
Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, January 19, 2022 
 
 

11:30 A.M. 
 
 

BOARD TO RECONVENE 
 
 Board Members: Alsop, Berjis, Bigler, Brar, Kitchen, McLaughlin, Pelz 

Roll Call: 
 
CONSENT AGENDA/OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT: ALL ITEMS LISTED 
WITH A "CA" ARE CONSIDERED TO BE ROUTINE AND NON-CONTROVERSIAL 
BY KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY STAFF. THE "CA" REPRESENTS THE 
CONSENT AGENDA. CONSENT ITEMS WILL BE CONSIDERED FIRST AND MAY 
BE APPROVED BY ONE MOTION IF NO MEMBER OF THE BOARD OR AUDIENCE 
WISHES TO COMMENT OR ASK QUESTIONS. IF COMMENT OR DISCUSSION IS 
DESIRED BY ANYONE, THE ITEM WILL BE REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT 
AGENDA AND WILL BE CONSIDERED IN LISTED SEQUENCE WITH AN 
OPPORTUNITY FOR ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 
CONCERNING THE ITEM BEFORE ACTION IS TAKEN. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION SHOWN IN CAPS 
 

 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  01.19.2022 
 

Page | 2  

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 
 

1) This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons to address the Board on any matter not on 
this agenda but under the jurisdiction of the Board. Board members may respond briefly to 
statements made or questions posed. They may ask a question for clarification, make a referral 
to staff for factual information or request staff to report back to the Board at a later meeting. In 
addition, the Board may take action to direct the staff to place a matter of business on a future 
agenda. SPEAKERS ARE LIMITED TO TWO MINUTES. PLEASE STATE AND SPELL YOUR 
NAME BEFORE MAKING YOUR PRESENTATION. THANK YOU! 

 
BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS OR REPORTS 

 
2) On their own initiative, Board members may make an announcement or a report on their own 

activities. They may ask a question for clarification, make a referral to staff or take action to 
have staff place a matter of business on a future agenda (Government Code section 
54954.2(a)(2)) –  
 

INTRODUCTION 
 

3) Introduction of Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Nursing Officer Dawn C. LeRoy, RN, MSN, 
CEN-BC – 

 MAKE INTRODUCTION 
 

RECOGNITION 
 
4) Presentation by the Chief Executive Officer recognizing the ‘Association of Kern County Nurse 

Leaders 2022’ nominees from Kern Medical Center –  
MAKE PRESENTATION 
 

ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 
 

CA 
5) Proposed Resolution in the matter of making findings pursuant to Government Code Section 

54953, as amended by Assembly Bill 361, and authorizing the continued use of virtual meetings 
–  
APPROVE; ADOPT RESOLUTION 
 

CA 
6) Minutes for the Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors regular meeting on  

December 15, 2021 –  
APPROVE 

 
CA 
7) Proposed retroactive Resolution reaffirming the prior appointments of Scott Thygerson, 

Andrew J. Cantu, Tyler S. Whitezell, and Glenn E. Goldis, M.D., and affirming the recent 
appointment of Dawn C. LeRoy, RN, MSN, CEN-BC, as Officers of the Kern County Hospital 
Authority, effective December 27, 2021 – 
APPROVE; ADOPT RESOLUTION 

 
CA 
8) Proposed Kern County Hospital Authority Organizational Chart effective January 19, 2022 – 
 APPROVE 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  01.19.2022 
 

Page | 3  

 
CA 
9) Proposed Second Amendment to Operating Agreement of Kern Medical Surgery Center, LLC, 

appointing Renee Villanueva to the Board of Managers in place of Russell V. Judd, effective 
January 19, 2022 –  
APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 

 
CA 
10) Proposed Purchase Order with TSI, Inc., an independent contractor, containing non-standard 

terms and conditions, for annual calibration services of PortaCount devices used for N95 
respirator mask fit testing from January 19, 2022 through January 18, 2027, in an amount not 
to exceed $10,000 –  

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 
 
CA 
11) Proposed Software Subscription Agreement with Rarestep, Inc., doing business as Fleetio, an 

independent contractor, containing non-standard terms and conditions, for an electronic fleet 
management tracking system from January 31, 2022 through January 30, 2023, in an amount 
not to exceed $4,632 –  
APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 
 

CA 
12) Proposed Amendment No. 6 to Agreement 1048-2010 with Total Renal Care, Inc., an 

independent contractor, for acute dialysis services for the period December 1, 2010 through 
January 29, 2022, extending the term from January 30, 2022 through November 30, 2023, and 
increasing the maximum payable by $3,061,000, from $4,525,000 to $7,586,000, to cover the 
term – 

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 
 
CA 
13) Proposed retroactive Business Associate Agreement with Varian Medical Systems, Inc., an 

independent contractor, containing non-standard terms and conditions, for the term of the 
underlying services agreement from November 5, 2021 through November 4, 2024 –  
APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 

 
CA 
14) Proposed retroactive Amendment No. 1 to Agreement 01317 with TALX Corporation, a 

provider of Equifax Workforce Solutions, an independent contractor, for employment 
verification and unemployment cost management services for the period January 1, 2017 
through December 31, 2021, extending the term for three years from January 1, 2022 through 
December 31, 2024, in an amount not to exceed $20,000 –  

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 
 
CA 
15) Proposed Professional Service Agreement and Telemedicine Credentialing and Privileging 

Agreement with Retina Vue, P.C., an independent contractor, containing non-standard terms 
and conditions, for remote ophthalmology and delegated credentialing services, from January 
19, 2022 through January 18, 2027, in an amount not to exceed $200,000 –  

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 
 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  01.19.2022 
 

Page | 4  

 
CA 
16) Proposed Amendment No. 1 to Agreement 014-2020 with Virtual Radiologic Professionals of 

California, P.A., an independent contractor, for remote radiology afterhours interpretation 
services for the period April 15, 2020 through April 14, 2022, increasing the maximum payable 
by $218,000, from $910,000 to $1,128,000, to cover the term – 

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 
 
CA 
17) Proposed Purchase Order Agreement with TIMS Medical by Foresight Imaging, LLC, an 

independent contractor, containing non-standard terms and conditions, for preventive 
maintenance, repairs and required software updates of fluoroscopy equipment in the Radiology 
Department from January 19, 2022 through January 18, 2026, in an amount not to exceed 
$10,000 – 

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 
 
CA 
18) Proposed First Amendment to Enhanced Purchasing Agreement 2017-002A with Quorum 

Purchasing Advantage, LLC, an independent contractor, for access to group purchasing 
services, for the period February 1, 2017 through January 31, 2022, extending the term for five 
years from February 1, 2022 through January 31, 2027 – 
APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 

 
CA 
19) Proposed Service Request with Presidio Networked Solutions Group LLC, an independent 

contractor, containing non-standard terms and conditions, for network remediation and 
technical support, effective January 19, 2022, in an amount not to exceed $92,250 plus 
applicable taxes –  
APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 

 
CA 
20) Proposed retroactive Side Letter of Agreement with Service Employees International Union, 

Local 521, to implement minimum wage increase, effective January 1, 2022 –  
 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN SUBJECT TO APPROVAL AS TO FORM BY 

COUNSEL 
 
CA 
21) Proposed Engagement Letter from Moss-Adams LLP, an independent contractor, regarding 

the audit of Kern Medical Center financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, 
in an amount not to exceed $203,000 –  

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 
 
CA 
22) Presentation on Report of Independent Auditors from Moss Adams LLP regarding the audit of 

Kern Medical Center financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 –  
 HEAR PRESENTATION; RECEIVE AND FILE; REFER TO KERN COUNTY BOARD OF 

SUPERVISORS 
 
23) Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Financial Officer report –  
 RECEIVE AND FILE  
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  01.19.2022 
 

Page | 5  

 
24) Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Executive Officer report –  
 RECEIVE AND FILE 
 
CA 
25) Claims and Lawsuits Filed as of December 30, 2021 –  
 RECEIVE AND FILE 

 
 
ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION 
 

 
CLOSED SESSION 

 
 
26) Request for Closed Session regarding per review of health facilities (Health and Safety Code 

Section 101855(j)(2)) – 
 
27) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - FORMALLY INITIATED LITIGATION  

(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: William Coughran v. Kern County 
Hospital Authority; and DOES 1 through 50, Inclusive, Kern County Superior Court Case No. 
BCV-21-100662 – 
 

28) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - FORMALLY INITIATED LITIGATION  
(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Kern County Hospital Authority, a 
Governmental entity v. California Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation, et al., Kern 
County Superior Court Case No. BCV-20-102979 DRL – 

 
29) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - FORMALLY INITIATED LITIGATION  

(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Farzin Tayefeh, M.D., et al. v. 
County of Kern, et al., Kern County Superior Court, Case No. BCV-15-100647 –  

 
 
RECONVENE FROM CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
REPORT ON ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
ADJOURN TO WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 16, 2022 AT 11:30 A.M. 
  



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  01.19.2022 
 

Page | 6  

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION FOR AGENDA ITEMS 

 
All agenda item supporting documentation is available for public review at Kern Medical Center in the 
Administration Department, 1700 Mount Vernon Avenue, Bakersfield, 93306 during regular business 
hours, 8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, following the posting of the agenda.  Any 
supporting documentation that relates to an agenda item for an open session of any regular meeting 
that is distributed after the agenda is posted and prior to the meeting will also be available for review 
at the same location.   

 
 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT 
(Government Code Section 54953.2) 

 
The Kern Medical Center Conference Room is accessible to persons with disabilities. Disabled 
individuals who need special assistance to attend or participate in a meeting of the Kern County 
Hospital Authority Board of Governors may request assistance at Kern Medical Center in the 
Administration Department, 1700 Mount Vernon Avenue, Bakersfield, California, or by calling (661) 
326-2102. Every effort will be made to reasonably accommodate individuals with disabilities by making 
meeting material available in alternative formats. Requests for assistance should be made five (5) 
working days in advance of a meeting whenever possible. 
 
  



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  01.19.2022 
 

Page | 7  

 
25) CLAIMS AND LAWSUITS FILED AS OF NOVEMBER 30, 2021 –  
 RECEIVE AND FILE  
 

A) Claim in the matter of Petra Lopez 
B) Claim in the matter of Ronnie Dean Romo 



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 
 
January 19, 2022 
 
Subject: Proposed Resolution in the matter of making findings pursuant to Government Code Section 
54953, as amended by Assembly Bill 361, and authorizing the continued use of virtual meetings 
 
Recommended Action: Approve; Adopt Resolution  
 
Summary:  
 
On March 17, 2020 Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-29-20 due to the COVID-19 pandemic. 
These orders specified relaxed provisions of meetings under the Ralph M. Brown Act (California’s open 
meeting law; “Brown Act”) allowing meetings to be conducted through teleconferencing. Executive 
Order N-29-20 expired on September 30, 2021. In response, on September 16, 2021, Governor 
Newsom signed Assembly Bill (AB) 361, which amends Government Code Section 54953 clarifying the 
Brown Act regulations and restrictions relating to the use of teleconferencing to conduct public 
meetings.  
 
Discussion: 
 
Currently the Brown Act states that should a legislative body elect to use teleconferencing it must 
identify each teleconferencing location in the public notice and agenda. The agenda is required to be 
posted at all teleconferencing locations and all locations must be publicly accessible. Additionally, a 
quorum of the members of the legislative body must participate from a teleconferencing location that 
is physically within the jurisdictional boundaries of the public agency.  
 
Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-29-20 suspending the Brown Act requirements due to the 
COVID-19 pandemic with the intention of facilitating social distancing and the mitigation of COVID-19. 
The Executive Order expired on September 30, 2021. In response on September 16, 2021 Governor 
Newsom signed AB 361 to replace the expired Executive Order.  
 
Similar to Executive Order N-29-20, AB 361 applies during a State of Emergency proclaimed by the 
Governor. In addition to the State of Emergency, one of the following conditions must apply:  
 

• State or local officials have impose or recommended measures to promote social distancing,  
• The legislative body is meeting to determine whether, because of the emergency, meeting in 

person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees; or 
• The legislative body has determined that, because of the emergency, meeting in person 

presents imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees.  
 



Page 2 of 2 
 

 

If the prerequisites mentioned above are met AB 361 provides an exemption to the regular Brown Act 
teleconferencing requirements and an alternate set of requirements will apply. Those requirements 
include: 
  

• Adequate notice of the meeting and posting an agenda as required by the Brown Act;  
• The agenda is not required to list each teleconference location or be physically posted at each 

teleconference location;  
• If there is a disruption in the public broadcast or the call-in or internet-based meeting service, 

the legislative body must cease and take no further action on agenda items until public access is 
restored; and  

• Local agencies cannot require that public comment be submitted prior to the meeting, and 
must allow for live public comment during the specified public comment period of the meeting.  

 
AB 361 sunsets on January 1, 2024. If your Board determines that it is in the best interest of public 
health and safety to continue to hold virtual public meetings, continued reliance will require your 
Board to reevaluate and adopt a new resolution every 30 days. 
 
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board adopt the attached Resolution. 
 
 



BEFORE THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
OF THE KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 

_________________ 
 
 
In the matter of:                       Resolution No. 2021-___ 
 
MAKING FINDINGS PURSUANT TO 
GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54953, AS 
AMENDED BY ASSEMBLY BILL 361, AND 
AUTHORIZING THE CONTINUED USE OF 
VIRTUAL MEETINGS 
_____________________________________ 
 
 I, MONA A. ALLEN, Authority Board Coordinator for the Kern County Hospital 
Authority, hereby certify that the following Resolution, on motion of Director __________, 
seconded by Director __________, was duly and regularly adopted by the Board of 
Governors of the Kern County Hospital Authority at an official meeting thereof on the 19th 
day of January, 2022, by the following vote, and that a copy of the Resolution has been 
delivered to the Chairman of the Board of Governors.  
 
AYES:   
 
NOES:   
 
ABSENT:   
 
      MONA A. ALLEN 

                 Authority Board Coordinator 
   Kern County Hospital Authority  

          
 
                 ____________________________ 
                 Mona A. Allen             
 
             
 

RESOLUTION 
 

Section 1.  WHEREAS: 
 
(a) As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, Governor Newson issued Executive 

Order Nos. N-08-21, N-25-20 and N-29-20, which suspended certain provisions of the 
Ralph M. Brown Act to allow legislative bodies to conduct public meetings without strict 
compliance with the teleconferencing provisions of the Brown Act; and  
 

 



Page 2 of 3 
 
 

(b) Assembly Bill 361, signed into law on September 16, 2021, amended 
Government Code section 54953, effective October 1, 2021, to provide relief from the 
teleconferencing provisions of the Brown Act under certain circumstances provided the 
legislative body makes certain findings; and  
 

(c) As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Governor proclaimed a state of 
emergency on March 4, 2020, in accordance with section 8625 of the California 
Emergency Services Act, and the state of emergency remains in effect; and  
 

(d) As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, the California Department of 
Public Health and County of Kern Public Health Services continue to recommend 
measures to promote social distancing.   
  

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Governors 
of the Kern County Hospital Authority, as follows: 
 
 1. This Board finds the facts recited herein are true, and further finds that this 
Board has jurisdiction to consider, approve, and adopt the subject of this Resolution. 
 

2. This Board hereby finds that the state of emergency continues to directly 
impact the ability of the members of the Board of Governors to meet safely in person, and 
further that state and local officials continue to impose or recommend measures to promote 
social distancing.  
 

3.  This Board hereby authorizes the Board of Governors to continue to 
conduct public meetings in accordance with Government Code section 54953, as amended 
by Assembly Bill 361.  
 

4.  This Resolution will be in effect during the period in which state or local 
public officials impose or recommend measures to promote social distancing.   

 
5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption and remain 

in effect until February 16, 2022. 
 
6. This Board shall reevaluate the above findings on February 16, 2022, and 

every 30 days thereafter. 
 
7. Resolution No. 2021-016, adopted by the Board of Governors on December 

15, 2021, is hereby repealed and superseded by this Resolution. 
 

8. This Board hereby directs staff to take all actions necessary to carry out the 
intent and purpose of this Resolution. 

 
9. The Authority Board Coordinator shall provide copies of this Resolution to 

the following: 
 



Page 3 of 3 
 
 

Members, Board of Governors 
Chief Executive Officer 
Legal Services Department 



 
 
 
 
 

SUMMARY OF PROCEEDINGS 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

 
 

Kern Medical Center 
1700 Mount Vernon Avenue 
Bakersfield, California 93306 

 
Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, December 15, 2021 
 
 

11:30 A.M. 
 
 

BOARD RECONVENED 
 
Board Members:  Alsop, Berjis, Bigler, Brar, Kitchen, McLaughlin, Pelz 
Roll Call:  6 Present, 1 Absent - Alsop 

 
NOTE: The vote is displayed in bold below each item. For example, Alsop-McLaughlin 
denotes Director Alsop made the motion and Director McLaughlin seconded the motion. 
 
 
NON-AGENDA ITEM 
 
MOTION TO CONSIDER NON-AGENDA ITEM NO. 16A: MADE FINDING THAT THE NEED TO 
TAKE ACTION ON A NON-AGENDA MATTER OCCURRED AFTER THE AGENDA WAS POSTED 
ON DECEMBER 10, 2021. KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY OPERATES TWO 
OUTPATIENT RETAIL PHARMACIES. THESE RETAIL PHARMACIES ARE SCHEDULED TO 
CEASE OPERATION ON DECEMBER 31, 2021, PURSUANT TO ACTION TAKEN BY THE BOARD 
OF GOVERNORS ON NOVEMBER 17, 2021. ON FRIDAY, DECEMBER 10, 2021, AFTER THE 
AGENDA WAS POSTED, AUTHORITY STAFF RECEIVED NOTICE THAT THE VENDOR 
SELECTED TO ACQUIRE THE PATIENT PHARMACY FILES WOULD BE UNABLE TO COMPLETE 
THE TRANSACTION BY THE DECEMBER 31, 2021 CLOSURE DATE, DUE TO ORGANIZATIONAL 
RESTRUCTURING. PURSUANT TO STATE LAW, THE PATIENT PHARMACY FILES MUST BE 
RETAINED IN A FACILITY LICENSED BY THE BOARD OF PHARMACY, AND THE AUTHORITY IS 
UNABLE TO TRANSFER SUCH FILES TO A LICENSED PHARMACY BY DECEMBER 31, 2021, AS 
REQUIRED BY LAW  
Berjis-Pelz: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Alsop  
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  12.15.2021 
 

Page | 2  

 
CONSENT AGENDA/OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT: ALL ITEMS LISTED WITH A "CA" 
ARE CONSIDERED TO BE ROUTINE AND APPROVED BY ONE MOTION. 
 
BOARD ACTION SHOWN IN CAPS 

 
NOTE: CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER SCOTT THYGERSON AND EMPLOYEES OF MERIDIAN 
HEALTHCARE PARTNERS, INC. JOINED THE MEETING AFTER THE MOTION AND VOTE ON 
THE NON-AGENDA ITEM AND CONSENT AGENDA  

 
PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 

 
1) This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons to address the Board on any matter not on 

this agenda but under the jurisdiction of the Board. Board members may respond briefly to 
statements made or questions posed. They may ask a question for clarification, make a referral 
to staff for factual information or request staff to report back to the Board at a later meeting. In 
addition, the Board may take action to direct the staff to place a matter of business on a future 
agenda. SPEAKERS ARE LIMITED TO TWO MINUTES. PLEASE STATE AND SPELL YOUR 
NAME BEFORE MAKING YOUR PRESENTATION. THANK YOU! 
NO ONE HEARD 

 
BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS OR REPORTS 

 
2) On their own initiative, Board members may make an announcement or a report on their own 

activities. They may ask a question for clarification, make a referral to staff or take action to 
have staff place a matter of business on a future agenda (Government Code section 
54954.2(a)(2)) 

 
RECOGNITION 

 
3) Resolution honoring Toni Smith, Chief Nursing Officer, upon her retirement with 25 years of 

dedicated service to Kern Medical Center and the nursing profession –  
ADOPTED RESOLUTION; MADE PRESENTATION TO TONI SMITH; CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
OFFICER SCOTT THYGERSON AND TONI SMITH HEARD 
Berjis-McLaughlin: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Alsop 
 

4) Resolution honoring Clinica Sierra Vista for 50 years of dedicated service to Kern County and 
Stacy Ferreira, Chief Executive Officer, for her outstanding leadership of the organization –  
ADOPTED RESOLUTION; CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER SCOTT THYGERSON HEARD 
Pelz-McLaughlin: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Alsop 
 

ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 
 

CA 
5) Proposed Resolution in the matter of making findings pursuant to Government Code Section 

54953, as amended by Assembly Bill 361, and authorizing the continued use of virtual meetings 
–  
APPROVED; ADOPTED RESOLUTION 2021-016 
Pelz-Berjis: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Alsop 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  12.15.2021 
 

Page | 3  

 
CA 
6) Minutes for the Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors regular meeting on  

November 17, 2021 –  
APPROVED 
Pelz-Berjis: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Alsop 

 
CA 
7) Proposed Amendment No. 2 to Agreement 014-2019 with Meridian Healthcare Partners, Inc., 

an independent contractor, for Chief Executive Officer and healthcare management services 
for the period December 16, 2018 through December 15, 2025, extending the term for an 
additional three years through December 15, 2028, revising the compensation methodology 
effective December 16, 2021, and adding a new maximum payable of $10,859,649 for the two-
year period from December 16, 2021 through December 15, 2023 – 
APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN  AGREEMENT 073-2021 
Pelz-Berjis: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Alsop 

 
CA 
8) Proposed Agreement with Adventist Health Physicians Network, an independent contractor, 

for the provision of certain Kern Medical Center physicians to provide professional services in 
various clinical specialties including neurological surgery at Adventist Health Bakersfield from 
January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2031 – 

 APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO SIGN AGREEMENT 074-
2021 SUBJECT TO APPROVAL AS TO FORM BY COUNSEL 
Pelz-Berjis: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Alsop 

 
CA 
9) Proposed Agreement with Valley Neurosurgery and Neurorestoration Center, A Medical 

Corporation, an independent contractor, for the provision of neurological surgery professional 
services at Adventist Health Bakersfield from January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2024, in 
an amount not to exceed $6,000,000 –  
APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO SIGN AGREEMENT 075-
2021 SUBJECT TO APPROVAL AS TO FORM BY COUNSEL 
Pelz-Berjis: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Alsop 

 
CA 
10) Proposed retroactive Change Order No. 3 to Agreement 006-2021 with James E. Thompson, 

Inc., doing business as JTS Construction, an independent contractor, for construction 
management services related to the 4th Floor Pediatric and Postpartum Renovation project, 
increasing the maximum payable by $33,588, from $1,660,923 to $1,694,511, to cover the cost 
of additional services –  

 MADE FINDING PROJECT IS EXEMPT FROM FURTHER CEQA REVIEW PER SECTIONS 
15301 AND 15061(b)(3) OF STATE CEQA GUIDELINES; APPROVED; AUTHORIZED 
CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 076-2021; AUTHORIZED CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
TO APPROVE ANY FUTURE CHANGE ORDERS IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 10% 
OF $1,694,511  

 Pelz-Berjis: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Alsop 
 
 
 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  12.15.2021 
 

Page | 4  

 
CA 
11) Proposed Sourcewell State & Local FMV Lease Agreement with Pitney Bowes Inc., an 

independent contractor, containing nonstandard terms and conditions, for postage mail 
equipment and services from December 15, 2021 through December 16, 2026, in an amount 
not to exceed $52,845 plus applicable taxes and fees –  

 APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 077-2021 
 Pelz-Berjis: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Alsop 
 
CA 
12) Proposed Certificate of Acceptance and Acknowledgement of Assignment with Presidio 

Technology Capital, LLC, an independent contractor, for the acceptance of leased equipment 
and the assignment of payments in support of the information technology infrastructure –  
APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 078-2021 
Pelz-Berjis: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Alsop 
 

CA 
13) Proposed retroactive Amendment No. 5 to Agreement 1048-2010 with Total Renal Care, Inc., 

an independent contractor, an independent contractor, for acute dialysis services for the period 
December 1, 2010 through November 30, 2021, extending the term through January 29, 2022 
– 

 APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO SIGN AGREEMENT 079-
2021 
Pelz-Berjis: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Alsop 

 
14) Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Financial Officer report –  
 RECEIVED AND FILED  
 Berjis-Pelz: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Alsop 
 
15) Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Executive Officer report –  
 RECEIVED AND FILED 
 McLaughlin-Berjis: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Alsop 
 
CA 
16) Claims and Lawsuits Filed as of November 30, 2021 –  
 RECEIVED AND FILED 

Pelz-Berjis: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Alsop 
 

16A) Proposed continuation of outpatient pharmacy services pending disposition of patient 
pharmacy files to a licensed retail pharmacy – 

 APPROVED 
 Pelz-McLaughlin: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Alsop 
 
 
ADJOURNED TO CLOSED SESSION 
Berjis-Pelz 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 
17) Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health practitioners (Health and Safety 

Code Section 101855(j)(2)) – SEE RESULTS BELOW 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  12.15.2021 
 

Page | 5  

 
18) Request for Closed Session regarding per review of health facilities (Health and Safety Code 

Section 101855(j)(2)) – SEE RESULTS BELOW 
 
 
RECONVENED FROM CLOSED SESSION 
McLaughlin-Berjis 
 
 
REPORT ON ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 
 

Item No. 17 concerning Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health 
practitioners (Health and Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2)) – HEARD; BY A UNANIMOUS 
VOTE OF THOSE DIRECTORS PRESENT (MOTION BY DIRECTOR PELZ, SECOND BY 
DIRECTOR MCLAUGHLIN; 1 ABSENT - DIRECTOR ALSOP) THE BOARD APPROVED ALL 
PRACTITIONERS RECOMMENDED FOR INITIAL APPOINTMENT, REAPPOINTMENT, 
REVIEW/RELEASE OF PROCTORING, VOLUNTARY RESIGNATION OF PRIVILEGES AND 
AUTOMATIC TERMINATION OF PRIVILEGES; NO OTHER REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 
 

Item No. 18 concerning Request for Closed Session regarding per review of health facilities 
(Health and Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2)) – HEARD; NO REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 

 
 
ADJOURNED TO WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 19, 2022 AT 11:30 A.M. 
Berjis 
 
 
 
/s/ Mona A. Allen 

Authority Board Coordinator 
 
 
 
/s/ Russell E. Bigler 

Chairman, Board of Governors 
Kern County Hospital Authority 

 



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS  
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

  
January 19, 2022 
  
Subject:  Proposed retroactive Resolution reaffirming the prior appointments of Scott Thygerson, 
Andrew J. Cantu, Tyler S. Whitezell, and Glenn E. Goldis, M.D., and affirming the recent appointment of 
Dawn C. LeRoy, RN, MSN, CEN-BC, as Officers of the Kern County Hospital Authority, effective 
December 27, 2021  
  
Recommended Action:  Approve; Adopt Resolution 
  
Summary:   
 
On April 16, 2016, your Board adopted Resolution No. 2016-004 appointing Russell Judd, Scott 
Thygerson, Andy Cantu, Dr. Glenn Goldis, Jared Leavitt, and Toni Smith, RN, MSN, to serve as initial 
officers of the Authority.  The action by your Board complied with the state statute, county ordinance, 
and the hospital Authority’s Bylaws for Governance.   
 
On October 16, 2019, your Board approved the appointment of Scott Thygerson, Chief Strategy Officer, 
as President, Hospital & Clinic Operations.  With this new appointment, on January 15, 2020, your 
Board adopted Resolution No. 2020-003, reaffirming the appointment of these same officers, albeit 
with the change in title for Mr. Thygerson. 
 
Chief Operating Officer Jared Levitt resigned effective July 14, 2020.  On July 14, 2020, Mr. Judd 
appointed Tyler Whitezell, Vice President of Administrative Services, as Chief Operating Officer in place 
of Mr. Levitt. 
 
On October 13, 2021, Mr. Judd officially resigned his position as Chief Executive Officer, effective 
December 1, 2021. In anticipation of Mr. Judd’s impending retirement, on October 12, 2021, approval 
was obtained for the appointment of Scott Thygerson as Chief Executive Officer.  The next day, 
following the resignation of Mr. Judd, your Board appointed Mr. Thygerson as Chief Executive Officer, 
effective December 1. 2021. 
 
Chief Nursing Officer Toni Smith, RN, MSN, retired effective December 27, 2021.  Following an 
extensive search, Mr. Thygerson appointed Dawn C. LeRoy, RN, MSN, CEN-BC, as Chief Nursing Officer 
effective upon Ms. Smith’s retirement.  Ms. LeRoy commenced her employment with the hospital 
authority on December 27, 2021. 
 

  



 
 
January 19, 2022 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 

 
The Authority is recommending that your Board retroactively adopt the attached resolution affirming 
and reaffirming, as the case may be, the appointment of the following individuals by name and title as 
officers of the Authority, effective December 27, 2021: 
 

Chief Executive Officer:    Scott Thygerson 
Chief Financial Officer:    Andrew J. Cantu 
Chief Operating Officer:    Tyler S. Whitezell 
Chief Medical Officer:     Glenn E. Goldis, M.D. 
Chief Nursing Officer:     Dawn C. LeRoy, RN, MSN, CEN-BC 
 

Therefore, it is recommended that your Board retroactively approve the recommended action and 
adopt the attached Resolution. 



BEFORE THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
OF THE KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 

_________________ 
 
 
In the matter of:                       Resolution No. 2021-___ 
 
REAFFIRMING THE APPOINTMENT OF SCOTT 
THYGERSON, ANDREW J. CANTU, TYLER S. 
WHITEZELL, AND GLENN E. GOLDIS, M.D., AND 
AFFIRMING THE APPOINTMENT OF DAWN C. 
LEROY, RN, MSN, CEN-BC, AS CHIEF NURSING 
OFFICER TO SERVE AS OFFICERS OF THE KERN 
COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
_____________________________________ 
 
 I, MONA A. ALLEN, Authority Board Coordinator for the Kern County Hospital 
Authority, hereby certify that the following Resolution, on motion of Director __________, 
seconded by Director __________, was duly and regularly adopted by the Board of 
Governors of the Kern County Hospital Authority at an official meeting thereof on the 19th 
day of January, 2022, by the following vote, and that a copy of the Resolution has been 
delivered to the Chairman of the Board of Governors.  
 
AYES:   
 
NOES:   
 
ABSENT:   
 
      MONA A. ALLEN 

                 Authority Board Coordinator 
   Kern County Hospital Authority  

          
 
                 ____________________________ 
                 Mona A. Allen             
 
             
 

RESOLUTION 
 

Section 1.  WHEREAS: 
   
 (a) Health and Safety Code section 101855(a)(6) provides that the Kern 
County Hospital Authority shall have the power “to appoint and employ or otherwise 
engage a chief executive officer and other officers and employees that may be necessary 
or appropriate, …and to define the power and duties of officers and employees”; and 



Page 2 of 4 
 
 

(b) Section 2.170.070 of the Ordinance Code of the County of Kern 
(“Ordinance Code”) titled Powers of Hospital Authority provides that “the hospital 
authority shall have the power to appoint and employ or otherwise engage a chief executive 
officer and other necessary officers and employees”; and 
 

(c) Section 2.170.080 of the Ordinance Code also provides that the “board of 
supervisors shall approve the initial and any successive chief executive officer of the 
hospital authority prior to his or her appointment by the hospital authority” (Ord. No. A-
356, § 2, 10-6-15, eff. 11-6-15); and 
 

(d) Section 5.01 of the Hospital Authority Bylaws for Governance provides that 
“the Board of Governors shall appoint a competent and experienced Chief Executive 
Officer, subject to the prior approval by the Board of Supervisors, to have responsibility 
for the general management of the Hospital Authority. Subject to the rights of the Board 
of Supervisors, the Chief Executive Officer shall be employed, contracted with, or 
otherwise engaged by the Hospital Authority”; and 
 

(e) On March 16, 2016, by a unanimous vote of those Directors present, the 
Board of Governors recommended Russell V. Judd be appointed the Chief Executive 
Officer of the Hospital Authority and referred the matter to the Board of Supervisors for 
approval. On April 5, 2016, the Board of Supervisors approved the initial appointment of 
Russell V. Judd as the Chief Executive Officer of the Hospital Authority; and 
 

(f) Section 4.03 of the Hospital Authority Bylaws for Governance provides that 
“the Chief Financial Officer shall be appointed by the Chief Executive Officer…. Prior to 
appointing the Chief Financial Officer, the Chief Executive Officer shall consult with and 
receive direction from the Board of Governors”; and 
 

(g) On March 16, 2016, Russell V. Judd consulted with and received direction 
from the Board of Governors regarding the appointment of a Chief Financial Officer of the 
Hospital Authority; and 
 

(h) On March 16, 2016, by unanimous vote of those Directors present, the 
Board of Governors approved the recommendation of Russell V. Judd to appoint Andrew 
J. Cantu as the Chief Financial Officer of the Hospital Authority; and 
 

(i) On April 16, 2016, the Board of Governors adopted Resolution No. 2016-
004 appointing Russell V. Judd, Alton Scott Thygerson, Andrew J. Cantu, Glenn E. Goldis, 
M.D., Jared W. Leavitt, and Antoinette C. Smith, RN, MSN, to serve as initial officers of 
the Hospital Authority; and 

 
(j) On January 16, 2019, the Board of Governors adopted Resolution No. 2019-

001 reaffirming the appointments of Russell V. Judd, Alton Scott Thygerson, Andrew J. 
Cantu, Glenn E. Goldis, M.D., Jared W. Leavitt, and Antoinette C. Smith, RN, MSN, to 
serve as officers of the Hospital Authority; and 

 



Page 3 of 4 
 
 

(k) On October 16, 2019, by unanimous vote of those Directors present, the 
Board of Governors appointed Alton Scott Thygerson, Chief Strategy Officer, as President, 
Hospital & Clinic Operations of the Hospital Authority; and 

 
(l) On January 15, 2020, the Board of Governors adopted Resolution No. 2020-

003 reaffirming the appointments of Russell V. Judd, Alton Scott Thygerson, Andrew J. 
Cantu, Glenn E. Goldis, M.D., Jared W. Leavitt, and Antoinette C. Smith, RN, MSN, to 
serve as officers of the Hospital Authority, effective October 16, 2019; and 

 
(m) Effective July 14, 2020, Jared W. Leavitt resigned his position as Chief 

Operating Officer; and 
 
(n) On July 14, 2020, Tyler S. Whitezell was appointed Chief Operating Officer 

by the Chief Executive Officer of the Hospital Authority; and 
 
(o) On January 20, 2021, the Board of Governors adopted Resolution No. 2021-

001 reaffirming the appointments of Russell V. Judd, Alton Scott Thygerson, Andrew J. 
Cantu, Glenn E. Goldis, M.D., and Antoinette C. Smith, RN, MSN, and affirming the 
appointment of Tyler S. Whitezell, to serve as officers of the Hospital Authority, effective 
July 14, 2020; and 

 
(p) On October 12, 2021, pursuant to Section 2.170.080 of the Ordinance Code, 

approval was obtained for the appointment of Alton Scott Thygerson as Chief Executive 
Officer of the Hospital Authority (Ord. No. G-8814, § 3, 3-19-19); and 

 
(q) On October 13, 2021, Russell V. Judd officially resigned his position as Chief 

Executive Officer of the Hospital Authority, effective December 1, 2021; and 
 
(r) On October 13, 2021, by unanimous vote, the Board of Governors appointed 

Scott Thygerson as Chief Executive Officer of the Hospital Authority, effective December 
1, 2021; and 

 
(s) Chief Nursing Officer Toni Smith, RN, MSN, retired after 25 years of service 

effective December 27, 2021; and    
 
(t) Following an extensive search, Mr. Thygerson appointed Dawn C. LeRoy, 

RN, MSN, CEN-BC, as Chief Nursing Officer effective upon Ms. Smith’s retirement.  Ms. 
LeRoy commenced her employment with the hospital authority on December 27, 2021; and 
 

(u) The Board of Governors desires to reaffirm the prior appointments of, Scott 
Thygerson, Andrew J. Cantu, Tyler S. Whitezell, and Glenn E. Goldis, M.D., and affirm the 
recent appointment of Dawn C. LeRoy, RN, MSN, CEN-BC, as Chief Nursing Officer, to 
serve as officers of the Hospital Authority, effective December 27, 2021. 
 

Section 2.  NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of 
Governors of the Kern County Hospital Authority, as follows: 



Page 4 of 4 
 
 

 1. This Board finds the facts recited herein are true, and further finds that this 
Board has jurisdiction to consider, approve, and adopt the subject of this Resolution. 
 

2. This Board hereby affirms and reaffirms, as the case may be, the appointment 
of the following individuals by name and title as officers of the Kern County Hospital 
Authority, effective December 27, 2021: 

 
 Chief Executive Officer:   Scott Thygerson 
 Chief Financial Officer:   Andrew J. Cantu 
 Chief Operating Officer:   Tyler S. Whitezell 

Chief Medical Officer:   Glenn E. Goldis, M.D. 
 Chief Nursing Officer:   Dawn C. LeRoy, RN, MSN, CEN-BC 
 

3. The provisions of this Resolution shall be effective, in force, and operative 
as of the 27th day of December, 2021. 

 
4. Resolution No. 2021-014, adopted by the Board of Governors on November 

17, 2021, is hereby repealed and superseded by this Resolution. 
 

5. The Authority Board Coordinator shall provide copies of this Resolution to 
the following: 
 

Kern Medical Center 
Scott Thygerson, Chief Executive Officer 
Andrew J. Cantu, Chief Financial Officer 
Tyler S. Whitezell, Chief Operating Officer 
Glenn E. Goldis, M.D., Chief Medical Officer 
Dawn C. LeRoy, RN, MSN, CEN-BC, Chief Nursing Officer 
Legal Services Department 

 



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 
 
January 19, 2022 
 
Subject: Kern County Hospital Authority Organizational Chart effective January 19, 2022 
 
Recommended Action: Approve 
 
Summary:   

 
Kern Medical requests your Board approve the Kern County Hospital Authority Organizational Chart 
effective January 19, 2022. 



BOARD OF 
GOVERNORS

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
OFFICER

Scott Thygerson

President of the 
Medical Staff

Medical Executive Committee
Medical Staff

Chief Financial Officer
Andy Cantu

Compliance
Contracting

Legal
Risk Management

Admitting
CalAIM
Cancer Registry
Case Management
Central Supply
Collections
Finance Administration
General Accounting
HIM
Managed Care
Materials Management
Patient Accounting
Patient Financial Svcs.
Physician Billing
Social Services

Cardiopulmonary Services
Dietary/Nutrition Services
Laboratory-Clinical
Lean Six Sigma
Performance Improvement
Pharmacy Departments:
• Clinical Pharmacy
• Inpatient Pharmacy
Physical Therapy
Public Policy Programs
Pulmonary Function Lab
Radiology Services
• Cath Lab
• CT Scan
• Diagnostic
• MRI
• Nuclear Medicine
• Outpatient Imaging
• Ultrasound
Quality

Ambulatory Care
Cardiac Diagnostic Lab
Clinic Registration
Correctional Medicine
Electrocardiology
Marketing/Communications
Outpatient Clinics
Public Relations
Wellness Program

Diagnostic Treatment Center
DOU
Emergency Care
Emergency Fast Track
Employee Health
ICU
Infection Control
Inpatient Psychiatric Unit
Labor & Delivery
Med/Surg
Neonate High Risk Clinic
Neonatal ICU
NST Clinic
Nursery Acute 
Nursing Administration
PACU
Patient Experience
Pediatrics
Post Partum
Staff Development
Surgical Services
Trauma Services

Scott Thygerson            January 19, 2022
Chief Executive Officer

Vice President 
General Counsel
Karen S. Barnes

Information Systems
Applications
• Ancillary
• Clinical
• Finance & Revenue 

Cycle
Asset Management
Data Intelligence
Data Security
Help Desk
Infrastructure
• Desktop
• Network
• Server/Storage
• Voice Services
IT Imaging 
IT In formatics
IT PMO

Institutional Review Board
Medical Education
Medical Library
Medical Staff Office
Medical Staff Departments:
• Anesthesiology
• Emergency Medicine
• Family Medicine
• Internal Medicine
• OB-GYN
• Pathology
• Pediatrics
• Psychiatry
• Radiology
• Surgery

ORGANIZATIONAL CHART
Kern Medical 
Foundation
Erica Easton

Chief Nursing Officer provides clinical oversight
to all RN’s in the organization.

Human Resources
Labor Relations
Light Duty
Professional Development

Chief Nursing Officer
Dawn C. LeRoy

Chief Information 
Officer

Rey Lopez

Chief Operating Officer
Tyler Whitezell

Chief Medical Officer/
CMIO

Glenn Goldis, MD

Chief Ambulatory & 
Outreach Officer
Renee Villanueva

VP Human Resources
Lisa Hockersmith

Auxiliary

Bio Med
Central Transportation
Construction
Engineering
Grounds
Hospita l Operators
Housekeeping
Laundry & Linen
Security
Space Planning

Senior Director
Facilities

Michael Fink

Business Development
Physician Contracting
Physician Recrui tment
Physician Services
Strategic Planning

VP Strategic 
Development
Natalee Garrett



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 
 
January 19, 2022 
 
Subject: Proposed Second Amendment to Operating Agreement of Kern Medical Surgery Center, LLC, a 
California Limited Liability Company 
 
Recommended Action: Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign  
 
Summary:  
 
Kern Medical Surgery Center, LLC (“Company”), was formed in 2016 with the purpose to develop, own, 
and operate an ambulatory surgery center located in Bakersfield, California. Kern County Hospital 
Authority is the sole member of the Company.  
 
Section 6.2 of the Operating Agreement states that the business, property and affairs of the Company 
shall be managed by three managers (each a “Manager” and, collectively, the “Board of Managers” or 
the “Board”), all of whom shall be appointed by the Member.  Upon execution of the Operating 
Agreement, your Board appointed Russell Judd, Scott Thygerson and Andrew Cantu as the initial 
Managers of the Company.  Mr. Judd resigned his position as Manager in the Company, effective 
December 1, 2021, the date that coincides with his recent retirement, leaving a vacant Manager 
position to be filled.  
 
The Company is recommending that your Board appoint Renee Villanueva, Chief Ambulatory and 
Outreach Officer, to fill the position vacated by Mr. Judd, effective with your Board’s approval of the 
attached Second Amendment, which updates Section 6.2 of the Operating Agreement to reflect the 
names of the Managers. Ms. Villanueva is the best fit for the position, due to her position at Kern 
Medical. 
 
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board approve the Second Amendment to the Operating 
Agreement of Kern Medical Surgery Center, LLC, a California Limited Liability Company, effective 
January 19, 2022, and authorize the Chairman to sign. 
 
 
 



 1 

SECOND AMENDMENT 
TO  

OPERATING AGREEMENT 
OF 

Kern Medical Surgery Center, LLC 
a California Limited Liability Company 

 
This Second Amendment (this “Amendment”) to the Operating Agreement of Kern 

Medical Surgery Center, LLC, a California limited liability company (the “Company”), dated as 
of August 18, 2016, amends the Operating Agreement of the Company (the “Agreement”), 
effective as of this 19th day of January, 2022, and is made by the Kern County Hospital 
Authority, a California governmental entity, in its capacity as the sole member (the “Member”) 
of the Company. 

  
WHEREAS, Section 6.2 of the Agreement states that the business, property and affairs of 

the Company shall be managed by three (3) managers, all of whom shall be appointed by the 
Member; and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 10.7 of the Agreement states the Agreement shall not be amended 

or modified except by a writing signed by the Member; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Member desires to amend the Agreement as set forth herein;  
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the Member hereby amends the Agreement as follows: 
 
1. Article VI, Management; Member Action, Section 6.2, Management by Board, shall be 
deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 
 

“6.2 Management by Board.  Pursuant to the Articles, the business, property 
and affairs of the Company shall be managed by three (3) managers (each a “Manager” 
and, collectively, the “Board of Managers” or the “Board”), all of whom shall be 
appointed by the Member. The Managers shall collectively, sitting as the Board, have all 
of the powers and authority given to the sole manager of a California limited liability 
company under the Act. A Manager shall serve indefinitely until his or her resignation or 
death, or his or her removal or replacement by the Member, which the Member may do at 
any time by notice to such effect to all Managers then serving. The Member may at any 
time increase or decrease the authorized number of Managers by notice to such effect to 
all Managers then serving. By its execution of this Agreement, the Member appoints as 
the Managers, Scott Thygerson, Andrew J. Cantu and Renee Villanueva.” 

 
2. Except as otherwise defined herein, all capitalized terms used in this Amendment have 
the meaning set forth in the Agreement. 
 
3. This Amendment shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the 
state of California. 

 



 2 

4.  This Amendment may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an 
original, but all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

 
5. Except as provided herein, all other terms, conditions and covenants of the Agreement 
and any and all amendments thereto shall remain in full force and effect.  
 

[Signatures follow on next page] 



 3 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Second Amendment to the 
Agreement as of the day and year first written above. 
 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY, 
a California governmental entity   
 
 
By_________________________     
    Russell E. Bigler, Chairman            
    Board of Governors          
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:  
LEGAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT  
 
 
By_________________________ 
    Karen S. Barnes 
    Vice President & General Counsel          
    Kern County Hospital Authority 



 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
January 19, 2022 
 
Subject: Proposed Purchase Order with TSI, Inc.  
 
Recommended Action: Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 
 
Summary:  
 
Kern Medical requests that your Board approve the proposed Purchase Order with TSI, Inc., for the 
annual calibration of two PortaCount devices, which are used for employee N95 respirator mask fit 
testing. 
 
The term of the Purchase Order is five years, effective January 19, 2022, with a total maximum payable 
not to exceed $10,000.  
 
The Purchase Order contains nonstandard terms and cannot be approved as to form by Counsel due to 
(1) limitations on liability; and (2) no indemnification provision by TSI, Inc.  Efforts were made to 
negotiate these non-standard terms to no avail. These services provide a critical function to which there 
is no current alternative, and Kern Medical believes the benefit outweighs the risk of moving forward 
with the Purchase Order, despite the nonstandard terms.  
 
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board approve the Purchase Order with TSI, Inc., effective 
January 19, 2022, with a maximum payable not to exceed $10,000 for the five-year term, and authorize 
the Chairman to sign.   
 
 















 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 
 
January 19, 2022 
 
Subject:  Proposed Software Subscription Agreement with Rarestep, Inc. doing business as Fleetio  
 
Recommended Action: Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign  
 
Summary:   
 
Kern Medical requests your Board approve the proposed Software Subscription Agreement with Rarestep, Inc. 
dba Fleetio (“Fleetio”) for an electronic fleet management tracking system of company-owned vehicles, which 
includes the tracking of gas, mileage, maintenance, damages, and vehicle value.  
 
The Agreement is for a 12-month term, effective January 31, 2022 through January 30, 2023 with a maximum 
payable of $4,632. The term will automatically renew for an additional 12-month period unless terminated with 
90 days prior notice.  
 
The Agreement contains nonstandard terms and cannot be approved as to form by Counsel due to (1) 
limitations of liability, with Fleetio excluding third party claims and limiting liability to gross negligence or fraud; 
and (2) no indemnification provision. Efforts were made to negotiate these nonstandard terms to no avail, 
however, Kern Medical believes the benefit outweighs the risk of moving forward with the Agreement, despite 
the nonstandard terms.  
 
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board approve the Software Subscription Agreement with Rarestep, Inc. 
doing business as Fleetio for a 12-month term, effective January 31, 2022 through January 30, 2023 with a 
maximum payable of $4,632, and authorize the Chairman to sign. 
 









































 
 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
January 19, 2022 
 
Subject:  Proposed Amendment No. 6 to Agreement 1048-2010 for Professional Services with Total 
Renal Care, Inc., a subsidiary of DaVita, Inc.   
 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign  
 
Summary: 
 
Kern Medical requests that your Board approve Amendment No. 6, effective January 29, 2022, to the Agreement 
with Total Renal Care, Inc., which provides acute dialysis services to Kern Medical patients. The Amendment 
extends the term twenty-three months from January 30, 2022 through November 30, 2023, and increases the 
maximum payable by $3,061,000, from $4,525,000 to $7,586,000, to cover the term. This is a critical service that 
Kern Medical is unable to provide in-house. 
 
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board approve Amendment No. 6 to the Agreement with Total Renal 
Care, Inc., for the period December 1, 2010 to January 29, 2022, extending the term for twenty-three months 
from January 30, 2022 through November 30, 2023, and increasing the total maximum payable by $3,061,000, 
from $4,525,000 to $7,586,000, to cover the term, and authorize the Chairman to sign.  
 
 

















 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 
 
January 19, 2022 
 
Subject: Proposed retroactive Business Associate Agreement Varian Medical Systems, Inc.  
 
Recommended Action:   Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign  
 
Summary:   
 
Kern Medical requests that your Board retroactively approve the proposed Business Associate Agreement 
(“BAA”) with Varian Medical Systems, Inc. This BAA runs with the underlying services agreement with Varian 
Medical Systems, Inc., effective November 5, 2021 to November 4, 2024, for cryoablation and microwave 
ablation mobile equipment services and consumables supplies. The underlying services agreement was executed 
prior to the BAA to allow for a Kern Medical patient to undergo an urgent procedure while the terms of the BAA 
were being negotiated, necessitating the need for retroactive approval of the BAA.  
 
The BAA contains nonstandard terms and cannot be approved as to form by Counsel due to (1) limitation of 
insurance coverage to cyber insurance only; and (2) limitation on liability, with Varian Medical Systems, Inc. 
limiting its liability to a total of $2,000,000 for the term of the BAA. Efforts were made to negotiate these 
nonstandard terms to no avail. These services provide a critical function to which there is no current alternative, 
and Kern Medical believes the benefit outweighs the risk of moving forward with the BAA, despite the 
nonstandard terms. 
 
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board retroactively approve the proposed Business Associate 
Agreement with Varian Medical Systems, Inc. for the term of the underlying services agreement, and authorize 
the Chairman to sign. 
 



BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT 

This Business Associate Agreement ("BAA") is entered into by and between the Kern County 
Hospital Authority on behalf of Kern Medical Center ("Covered Entity") and Varian Medical Systems, Inc. 
("Business Associate") (each a "Party" and collectively the "Parties"), effective as of date of the 
underlying Agreement (the "Effective Date"). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, Covered Entity is a "Covered Entity" as that term is defined under the Health 
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (Public Law 104-91 ), as amended, ("HIPAA"), and 
the regulations promulgated thereunder by the Secretary of the U.S. Department of Health and Human 
Services ("Secretary"), including, without limitation, the regulations codified at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162, 
and 164 ("HIPAA Rules"); 

WHEREAS, Business Associate performs Services for or on behalf of Covered Entity, 
and in performing said Services, Business Associate creates, receives, maintains, or transmits Protected 
Health Information ("PHI"); 

WHEREAS, the Parties intend to protect the privacy and provide for the security of PHI 
Disclosed by Covered Entity to Business Associate, or received or created by Business Associate, when 
providing Services in compliance with HIPAA, the Health Information Technology for Economic and 
Clinical Health Act (Public Law 111-005) (the "HITECH Act") and its implementing regulations and 
guidance issued by the Secretary; and 

WHEREAS, the Privacy and Security Rules (defined below) require Covered Entity and 
Business Associate to enter into a BAA that meets certain requirements with respect to the Use and 
Disclosure of PHI, which are met by this BAA. 

AGREEMENT 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the Recitals and for other good and valuable 
consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I 
DEFINITIONS 

1.1 "Breach" shall have the meaning given under 45 C.F.R. § 164.402. 

1.2 "Breach Notification Rule" shall mean the Breach Notification for Unsecured Protected 
Health Information interim final rule at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, Subpart D, as may be amended from 
time to time. 

1.3 
164.501. 

"Designated Record Set" shall have the meaning given such term under 45 C.F.R. § 

1.4 "Disclose" and "Disclosure" mean, with respect to PHI, the release, transfer, provision 
of access to, or divulging in any other manner of PHI outside of Business Associate or to other than 
members of its Workforce, as set forth in 45 C.F.R. § 160.103. 

1.5 "Electronic PHI" or "e-PHI" means PHI that is transmitted or maintained in electronic 
media, as set forth in 45 C.F.R. § 160.103. 

1.6 "Protected Health Information" and "PHI" mean any information created, received or 
maintained by Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity, whether oral or recorded in any form or 



medium, that: (a) relates to the past, present or future physical or mental health or condition of an 
Individual; the provision of health care to an Individual, or the past, present or future payment for the 
provision of health care to an individual; (b) identifies the Individual (or for which there is a reasonable 
basis for believing that the information can be used to identify the Individual); and (c) shall have the 
meaning given to such term under the Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. § 160.103. Protected Health Information 
includes e-PHI. 

1.7 "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health 
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, Subparts A and E, as may be amended from time to time. 

1.8 "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, 
Subparts A and C, as may be amended from time to time. 

1.9 "Services" shall mean the services for or functions on behalf of Covered Entity performed 
by Business Associate pursuant to any service agreement(s) between Covered Entity and Business 
Associate which may be in effect now or from time to time (the "Underlying Agreement"), or, if no such 
agreements are in effect, then the services or functions performed by Business Associate that constitute 
a Business Associate relationship, as set forth in 45 C.F.R. § 160.103. 

1.10 "Subcontractor" shall have the meaning given to such term under 45 C.F.R. § 160.103. 

1.11 "Unsecured PHI" shall have the meaning given to such term under 42 U.S.C. § 
17932(h), 45 C.F.R. § 164.402, and guidance issued pursuant to the HITECH Act including, but not 
limited to the guidance issued on April 17, 2009 and published in 74 Federal Register 19006 (April 27, 
2009) by the Secretary. 

1.12 "Use" or "Uses" mean, with respect to PHI, the sharing, employment, application, 
utilization, examination or analysis of such PHI within Business Associate's internal operations, as set 
forth in 45 C.F.R. § 160.103. 

1.13 "Workforce" shall have the meaning given to such term under 45 C.F.R. § 160.103 

Capitalized terms not otherwise defined in this Agreement shall have the meanings given to them in 
HIPM or the HITECH Act, as applicable. 

ARTICLE II 
OBLIGATIONS OF BUSINESS ASSOCIATE 

2.1 Permitted Uses and Disclosures of Protected Health Information. Business Associate 
shall not Use or Disclose PHI other than as permitted or required by any Underlying Agreement, this BM, 
or as Required by Law. Business Associate shall not Use or Disclose PHI in any manner that would 
constitute a violation of the Privacy Rule if so Used or Disclosed by Covered Entity, except that Business 
Associate may Use or Disclose PHI (i) for the proper management and administration of Business 
Associate; (ii) to carry out the legal responsibilities of Business Associate, provided that with respect to 
any such Disclosure either: (a) the Disclosure is Required by Law; or (b) Business Associate obtains a 
written agreement from the person to whom the PHI is to be Disclosed that such person will hold the PHI 
in confidence and shall not Use and further Disclose such PHI except as Required by Law and for the 
purpose(s) for which it was Disclosed by Business Associate to such person, and that such person will 
notify Business Associate of any instances of which it is aware in which the confidentiality of the PHI has 
been breached. Business Associate may perform Services, including Data Aggregation for the Health 
Care Operations purposes of Covered Entity and de-identification of PHI in accordance with 45 C.F.R. § 
164.514. 

2.2 Adequate Safeguards of PHI. Business Associate shall implement and maintain 
appropriate safeguards to prevent Use or Disclosure of PHI other than as provided for by this BM. 



Business Associate shall reasonably and appropriately protect the confidentially, integrity, and availability 
of e-PHI that it creates, receives, maintains or transmits on behalf of Covered Entity and shall comply with 
Subpart C of 45 C.F.R. Part 164 to prevent Use or Disclosure of PHI other than as provided for by this 
BAA. 

2.3 Reporting Non-Permitted Use or Disclosure. 

2.3.1 Reporting Security Incidents and Non-Permitted Use or Disclosure. Business 
Associate shall report to Covered Entity in writing each Security Incident involving Covered Entity PHI or 
Use or Disclosure that is made by Business Associate, members of its Workforce, or Subcontractors that 
is not specifically permitted by this BAA within three (3) days after becoming aware of such Security 
Incident or non-permitted Use or Disclosure, in accordance with the notice provisions set forth herein. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Business Associate and Covered Entity acknowledge the ongoing 
existence and occurrence of attempted but ineffective Security Incidents that are trivial in nature, such as 
pings and other broadcast service attacks, and Covered Entity acknowledges and agrees that no 
additional notification to Covered Entity of such ineffective Security Incidents is required, as long as no 
such incident results in unauthorized access, Use or Disclosure of PHI. Business Associate shall 
investigate each Security Incident or non-permitted Use or Disclosure of Covered Entity's PHI that it 
discovers to determine whether such Security Incident or non-permitted Use or Disclosure constitutes a 
reportable Breach of Unsecured PHI. Business Associate shall take prompt corrective action and any 
action required by applicable state or federal laws and regulations relating to such Security Incident or 
non-permitted disclosure. 

2.3.2 Breach of Unsecured PHI. If Business Associate or Covered Entity determines 
that a reportable Breach of Unsecured PHI has occurred, Business Associate shall provide a written 
report to Covered Entity without unreasonable delay but no later than ten (10) calendar days after 
discovery of the Breach. To the extent that information is available to Business Associate, Business 
Associate's written report to Covered Entity shall be in accordance with 45 C.F.R. §164.410(c). Business 
Associate shall cooperate with Covered Entity in meeting Covered Entity's obligations under the HIPAA 
Rules with respect to such Breach. Covered Entity and Business Associate shall upon mutual agreement 
determine the timing and method of providing notification of such Breach to the affected individual(s) and 
the Secretary and, if applicable, the media. Business Associate shall reimburse Covered Entity for its 
reasonable and actual costs and expenses in providing the notification, including, any administrative 
costs associated with providing notice, printing and mailing costs, public relations costs, and costs of 
mitigating the harm (which may include the costs of obtaining credit monitoring services and identity theft 
insurance) for affected individuals whose PHI has or may have been compromised as a result of the 
Breach. 

2.3.3 Data Breach Notification and Mitigation Under Other Laws. In addition to the 
requirements of Sections 2.3.1 and 2.3.2, Business Associate agrees to implement reasonable systems 
for the discovery and prompt reporting of any breach of individually identifiable information (including but 
not limited to PHI, and referred to hereinafter as "Individually Identifiable Information") that, if misused, 
disclosed, lost or stolen, Covered Entity believes would trigger an obligation under applicable state 
security breach notification laws ("State Breach") to notify the individuals who are the subject of the 
information. Business Associate agrees to: (i) cooperate and assist Covered Entity with any investigation 
into any State Breach or alleged State Breach; and (ii) cooperate and assist Covered Entity with any 
investigation into any State Breach or alleged State Breach conducted by a state agency or Attorney 
General; and (iii) reasonably assist with the implementation of any decision by Covered Entity or any 
State agency to notify individuals impacted or potentially impacted by a State Breach. 

2.4 Mitigation. Business Associate agrees to mitigate, to the extent practicable, any harmful 
effect that is known to Business Associate of a Use or Disclosure of PHI by Business Associate in 
violation of the requirements of this BAA, provided that Business Associate shall not be obliged to admit 
negligence on behalf of Covered Entity or Business Associate as part of its mitigation efforts. 



2.5 Use of Subcontractors. Business Associate shall require each of its Subcontractors that 
creates, maintains, receives, or transmits PHI on behalf of Business Associate, to execute a Business 
Associate Agreement that imposes on such Subcontractors substantially the same restrictions, 
conditions, and requirements that apply to Business Associate under this BAA with respect to PHI. 

2.6 Access to Protected Health Information. To the extent that Business Associate maintains 
a Designated Record Set on behalf of Covered Entity and within fifteen (15) days of a request by Covered 
Entity, Business Associate shall make the PHI it maintains (or which is maintained by its Subcontractors) 
in Designated Record Sets available to Covered Entity for inspection and copying, to enable Covered 
Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 C.F.R. § 164.524. If Business Associate maintains PHI in a 
Designated Record Set electronically, Business Associate shall provide such information in the electronic 
form and format requested by the Covered Entity if it is readily reproducible in such form and format, and, 
if not, in such other form and format agreed to by Covered Entity to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its 
obligations under 45 C.F.R. § 164.524(c)(2). Business Associate shall notify Covered Entity within five (5) 
days of receipt of a request for access to PHI from an Individual. 

2.7 Amendment of Protected Health Information. To the extent that Business Associate 
maintains a Designated Record Set on behalf of Covered Entity and within fifteen (15) days of a request 
by Covered Entity, Business Associate shall amend the PHI it maintains (or which is maintained by its 
Subcontractors) in Designated Record Sets to enable the Covered Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 
C.F.R. § 164.526. Business Associate shall notify Covered Entity within five (5) days of receipt of a
request for amendment of PHI from an Individual.

2.8 Accounting. Within thirty (30) days of receipt of a request from Covered Entity or an 
Individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate and its Subcontractors shall make 
available to Covered Entity the information required to provide an accounting of disclosures to enable 
Covered Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 C.F.R. § 164.528 and 42 U.S.C. § 17935(c). Business 
Associate shall notify Covered Entity within five (5) days of receipt of a request by an Individual or other 
requesting party for an accounting of disclosures of PHI from an Individual. 

2.9 Delegated Responsibilities. To the extent that Business Associate carries out one or 
more of Covered Entity's obligations under Subpart E of 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Business Associate must 
comply with the requirements of Subpart E that apply to the Covered Entity in the performance of such 
obligations. 

2.10 Availability of Internal Practices, Books, and Records to Government. Business 
Associate agrees to make any and all internal practices, books, and records and PHI, relating to the use 
and disclosure of PHI received from, created, maintained, or transmitted by Business Associate on behalf 
of Covered Entity promptly available for inspection and copying to the Secretary, in a time and manner 
designated by the Secretary, for purposes of the Secretary determining Covered Entity's or Business 
Associate's compliance with the HIPAA Rules. In addition, if required by any State or Federal agency, 
Business Associate agrees that Covered Entity shall have the right to audit and monitor all applicable 
activities and records of Business Associate relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, 
created, maintained, or transmitted by Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to determine 
Business Associate's compliance with the HIPAA Rules and shall promptly make available to Covered 
Entity such books, records, or other information relating to the Use and Disclosure of PHI provided, 
created, received, maintained or transmitted by Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity for such 
purpose. 

2.11 Minimum Necessary. Business Associate (and its Subcontractors) shall, to the extent 
practicable, limits its request, Use, or Disclosure of PHI to the minimum amount of PHI necessary to 
accomplish the purpose of the request, Use or Disclosure, in accordance with 42 U.S.C. § 17935(b) and 
45 C.F.R. § 164.502(b)(1) or any other guidance issued thereunder. 

2.12 Acknowledgement. Business Associate acknowledges that it is obligated by law to 
comply, and represents and will continue to represent throughout the term of the Agreementthat it shall 



comply, with HIPAA, the HITECH Act, and the HIPAA Rules. Business Associate shall comply with all 
applicable state privacy and security laws, to the extent that such state laws are not preempted by HIPAA 
or the HITECH Act. 

3.1 

ARTICLE Ill 

OBLIGATIONS OF COVERED ENTITY 

Covered Entity's Obligations. 

3.1.1 Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any limitation(s) in the Notice of 
Privacy Practices of Covered Entity under 45 C.F.R. 164.520, to the extent that such limitation may affect 
Business Associate's Use or Disclosure of PHI. 

3.1.2 Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation 
of, the permission by an individual to Use or Disclose his or her PHI, to the extent that such changes may 
affect Business Associate's Use or Disclosure of PHI. 

3.1.3 In the event Covered Entity agrees with an Individual to any restrictions on Use 
or Disclosure of PHI pursuant to 45 C.F.R. § 164.522(a) or if Covered Entity determines that it is obligated 
to accommodate a reasonable request of an Individual to receive communications of PHI pursuant to 45 
C.F.R. § 164.522(b), Covered Entity promptly shall notify Business Associate of the same, as well as any
revocation or modification of the same, and Business Associate thereupon shall observe such restriction
or accommodation (or revocation or modification, if any, thereof) to the extent applicable to its Use or
Disclosure of PHI hereunder, notwithstanding any other provision hereof, except as otherwise required by
law.

3.1.4 Covered Entity agrees to obtain any consent or authorization that may be 
required under HIPAA or any other applicable law and/or regulation prior to furnishing Business Associate 
with PHI and notify Business Associate of any changes or revocation of that permission to the extent that 
such changes may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of PHI. 

3.1.5 Covered Entity shall not request Business Associate to make any Use or 
Disclosure of PHI that would not be permitted under HIPAA if made by Covered Entity. Covered Entity 
agrees to fulfill its obligations under this BAA in a timely manner. 

3.1.6 Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any restriction on the Use or 
Disclosure of Protected Health Information that Covered Entity has agreed to or is required to abide by 
under 45 CFR 164.522 (including restrictions on disclosure of Protected Health Information that pertains 
solely to a health care item or service for which the Individual has paid the Covered Entity in full), to the 
extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's Use or Disclosure of Protected Health 

Information. 

ARTICLE IV 

TERM AND TERMINATION 

4.1 Term. Subject to the provisions of Section 4.1, this BAA will become effective on the 
Effective Date and shall remain in effect for the term of any Underlying Agreement. 

4.2 Termination of Underlying Agreement. 

4.2.1 A breach by Business Associate of any provision of this BAA, as determined by 
Covered Entity, shall constitute a material breach of the Underlying Agreement and shall provide grounds 
for immediate termination of the Underlying Agreement, any provision in the Underlying Agreement to the 
contrary notwithstanding. 



Covered Entity may terminate the Underlying Agreement if: (i) Business Associate is 
named as a defendant in a criminal proceeding for a violation of HIPAA, the HITECH Act, the HIPAA Rules 
or other security or privacy laws or (ii) a finding or stipulation that the Business Associate has violated any 
standard or requirement of HIPAA, the HITECH Act, the HIPAA Rules or other security or privacy laws is 
made in any administrative or civil proceeding in which the party has been joined. The parties will meet to 
discuss the underlying issue of the criminal proceeding to determine if it may proceed with the Underlying 
Agreement without jeopardizing Covered Entity's ability to participate in any federal or state health care 
program or violate any federal or state law or regulatory rule or regulation or condition of accreditation or 
certification that Covered Entity is subject. 

4.3 Termination for Cause. In addition to and notwithstanding the termination provisions set 
forth in any Underlying Agreement, upon either Party's knowledge of a material breach or violation of this 
BAA, the non-breaching Party shall either: 

4.3.1 Notify the breaching Party of the breach in writing, and provide an opportunity for 
the breaching Party to cure the breach or end the violation within thirty (30) calendar days of such 
notification; provided that if the breaching Party fails to cure the breach or end the violation within such 
time period to the satisfaction of the non-breaching Party, the non-breaching Party may terminate this 
BAA and any Underlying Agreement at the end of such time period, upon thirty (30) calendar days written 
notice to breaching Party; or 

4.3.2 Upon thirty (30) calendar day written notice to the breaching Party, immediately 
terminate this BAA and any Underlying Agreement if the material breach is reasonably incapable of cure. 

4.4 Disposition of Protected Health Information Upon Termination or Expiration. 

4.4.1 Upon termination or expiration of this BAA, Business Associate shall return or 
destroy all PHI received from, or created or received by Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity, 
that Business Associate still maintains in any form and retain no copies of such PHI. If Covered Entity 
requests that Business Associate return PHI, PHI shall be returned in a mutually agreed upon format and 
timeframe. 

4.4.2 If return or destruction is not feasible, Business Associate shall: (a) retain only 
that PHI which is necessary for Business Associate to continue its proper management and 
administration or to carry out its legal responsibilities; (b) return to Covered Entity the remaining PHI that 
the Business Associate still maintains in any form; (c) continue to extend the protections of this BAA to 
the PHI for as long as Business Associate retains the PHI; (d) limit further Uses and Disclosures of such 
PHI to those purposes that make the return or destruction of the PHI not feasible and subject to the same 
conditions set out in Sections 2.1 and 2.2 above, which applied prior to termination; and (e) return to 
Covered Entity the PHI retained by Business Associate when it is no longer needed by Business 
Associate for its proper management and administration or to carry out its legal responsibilities. 

ARTICLE V 

MISCELLANEOUS 

5.1 Regulatory References. A reference in this BAA to a section or other part of HIPAA, the 
HIPAA Rules, or the HITECH Act means, as of any point in time, the section or part as it may be 
amended or in effect at such time. 

5.2 Amendment. The Parties agree to take such action as is necessary to amend this BAA 
from time to time as necessary for Covered Entity to implement its obligations pursuant to HIPAA, the 
HIPAA Rules, or the HITECH Act. This BAA may not be modified, nor shall any provision be waived or 
amended, except in writing duly signed by authorized representatives of the Parties. 

5.3 Relationship to Underlying Agreement Provisions. In the event that a provision of this 
BAA is contrary to a provision of an Underlying Agreement, the provision of this BAA shall control. 



Otherwise, this BAA shall be construed under, and in accordance with, the terms of such Underlying 
Agreement, and shall be considered an amendment of and supplement to such Underlying Agreement. 

5.4 Headings. The headings of the paragraphs and sections of this BAA are inserted solely 
for convenience of reference and are not a part or intended to govern, limit or aid in the construction of 
any term or provision hereof. 

5.5 Equitable Relief. Business Associate understands and acknowledges that any 
Disclosure or misappropriation of any PHI in violation of this BAA will cause Covered Entity irreparable 
harm, the amount of which may be difficult to ascertain, and therefore agrees that Covered Entity shall 
have the right to apply to a court of competent jurisdiction for specific performance and/or an order 
restraining and enjoining any such further Disclosure or Breach and for such other relief as Covered 
Entity shall deem appropriate. Such right of Covered Entity is to be in addition to the remedies otherwise 
available to Covered Entity at law or in equity. 

5.6 Insurance. In addition to any general and/or healthcare professional liability insurance 
required of Business Associate, Business Associate agrees to obtain and maintain, at its sole expense, 
cyber liability insurance, covering any and all claims, liabilities, demands, damages, losses, costs and 
expenses arising from a breach of the security or privacy obligations of Business Associate, its officers, 
employees, agents and Subcontractors under this BAA. Such insurance coverage will be maintained for 
the term of this BAA, and a certificate evidencing the policy shall be provided to Covered Entity at 
Covered Entity's request. 

5.7 Assistance in Litigation or Administrative Proceedings. Business Associate shall make 
itself and any Subcontractors or members of its Workforce assisting Business Associate in the 
performance of its obligations under this BAA available to Covered Entity, at no cost to Covered Entity, to 
testify as witnesses, or otherwise, in the event of litigation or administrative proceedings being 
commenced against Covered Entity, its directors, officers or employees based upon a claim of violation of 
the HIPAA or other applicable laws relating to privacy or security that are directly related to Business 
Associate's provision of services under the Underlying Agreement. 

5.8 Indemnification. Business Associate shall defend, at its expense, any third party Claim or 
state or federal regulation violation brought against Covered Entity as a direct result of a Use or 
Disclosure of Protected Health Information in violation of this Agreement by Business Associate or the 
failure to comply with HIPAA or applicable state privacy or security law ("Claim") by Business Associate 
and it's respective officers, directors, managers, members, employees and agents, including 
Subcontractors, in performing services under the Underlying Agreement, and agrees to indemnify and 
hold harmless Covered Entity and its respective officers, directors, managers, members, employees and 
agents against any fines, settlements, judgments, costs, penalties, and expenses, including reasonable 
attorneys' fees, finally awarded against Covered Entity arising out of a Claim and/or violation of 

regulation, subject to Section 5.8 (b) below. 

Covered Entity shall defend, at its expense, any third party Claim brought against Business 
Associate as a direct result of a violation of this Agreement or an impermissible Use or Disclosure of 
Protected Health Information by Covered Entity and agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Business 
Associate and its respective officers, directors, managers, members, employees and agents against 
settlements, judgments, costs, penalties, and expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees, finally 
awarded against Business Associate arising out of a Claim subject to Section 5.8 (b). below. 

a. Each Party's obligation to indemnify the other is conditioned upon the indemnified
Party: (a) notifying the indemnifying Party promptly in writing of the Claim; (b)
giving the indemnifying Party sole control of the defense, management, and
settlement of the Claim, provided that the indemnified Party may participate in
such defense at its own costs with counsel of its choice if it gives the indemnifying
Party such control; and (c) upon request, at the indemnifying Party's cost,



reasonably cooperating with the indemnifying Party in such defense. 

b. IN NO EVENT SHALL COVERED ENTITY, OR BUSINESS ASSOCIATE,
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE'S SUPPLIERS AND/OR LICENSORS BE LIABLE
UNDER CONTRACT, TORT OR ANY OTHER LEGAL THEORY FOR
INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, INDIRECT, PUNITIVE, SPECIAL DAMAGES
OF ANY KIND, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO LOST BUSINESS, LOST
PROFITS, LOSS OF USE, LOST, COMPROMISED OR DAMAGED DATA
HOWEVER CAUSED, WHETHER FORESEEABLE OR NOT, EVEN IF THE
OTHER PARTY IS ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES.
Covered Entity and Business Associate, its Suppliers and Licensors' total
aggregate liability in damages or otherwise arising under or relating to this
Agreement shall be limited in proportion to each party's relative fault for damages
and not exceed two million dollars ($2,000,000). The existence of one or more
claims or parties will not enlarge the limit. The limitation in this Section 5.8 (b) (the
"BAA Limitation") will not operate to increase any limitation of liability included in
other agreement(s) or Quotation(s) between Covered Entity and Business
Associate ("Other Limitations"), and likewise Other Limitations will not operate to
increase the BAA Limitation. The same or similar claims underlying and/or arising
from alleged improper disclosure, mishandling and/or otherwise relating to PHI or
other breach of this BAA or other agreements shall be subject to and applied
toward the BAA Limitation notwithstanding Other Limitations that may exist in
other agreements between the parties.

5.9 Legal Actions. Promptly, but no later than five (5) business days after notice thereof, 
Business Associate shall advise Covered Entity of any actual action, proceeding, regulatory or 
governmental orders or actions, or any material threat thereof that becomes known to it that may affect 
the interests of Covered Entity or jeopardize this BAA, and of any facts and circumstances that may be 
pertinent to the prosecution or defense of any such actual legal action or proceeding, except to the extent 
prohibited by law. 

5.10 Notice of Request or Subpoena for Data. Business Associate agrees to notify Covered 
Entity promptly, but no later than five (5) business days after Business Associate's receipt of any request 
or subpoena for PHI received while performing services under the Underlying Agreement or an 
accounting thereof, unless prohibited by law from doing so. Business Associate shall promptly comply 
with Covered Entity's reasonable instructions for responding to any such request or subpoena, unless 
such Covered Entity instructions would prejudice Business Associate. To the extent that Covered Entity 
decides to assume responsibility for challenging the validity of such request, Business Associate agrees 
to reasonably cooperate with Covered Entity in such challenge The provisions of this Section shall 
survive the termination of this BAA. 

5.11 Requests from Secretary. Promptly, but no later than five (5) calendar days after notice 
thereof, Business Associate shall advise Covered Entity of any inquiry by the Secretary concerning any 
actual or alleged violation of the Privacy Rule or the Security Rule, unless prohibited by law from doing 
so. 

5.12 Notices. Any notices required or permitted to be given hereunder by either Party to the 
other shall be given in writing: (1) by personal delivery; (2) by electronic mail or facsimile with 
confirmation sent by United States first class registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt 
requested; (3) by bonded courier or by a nationally recognized overnight delivery service; or (4) by United 
States first class registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt, in each case, addressed to a 
Party on the signature page(s) to this BAA, or to such other addresses as the Parties may request in 
writing by notice given pursuant to this Section 5.12. Notices shall be deemed received on the earliest of 
personal delivery; upon delivery by electronic facsimile with confirmation from the transmitting machine 



that the transmission was completed; twenty-four (24) hours following deposit with a bonded courier or 
overnight delivery service; or seventy-two (72) hours following deposit in the U.S. mail as required herein. 

Covered Entity's Notice Address: 

Kern Medical Center 
1700 Mount Vernon Avenue 
Bakersfield, CA 93306 
Attn: Chief Executive Officer 

Business Associate's Notice Address: 

Varian Medical Systems, Inc. 
9825 Spectrum Drive, Building 2 
Austin, Texas 78717 
Attn: Legal Department 

5.13 Relationship of Parties. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in any Underlying 
Agreement, Business Associate is an independent Consultant and not an agent of Covered Entity under 
this BAA. Business Associate has the sole right and obligation to supervise, manage, contract, direct, 
procure, perform or cause to be performed all Business Associate obligations under this BAA. 

5.14 Survival. To the extent that Business Associate retains PHI, the respective rights and 
obligations of the Parties set forth in Sections 2.3, 4.4, 5.8, and 5.10 of this BAA shall survive the 
termination, expiration, cancellation, or other conclusion of the BAA or any Underlying Agreement. 

5.15 Interpretation. Any ambiguity in this BAA shall be interpreted to permit the Parties to 
comply with HIPAA, the HITECH Act, and the HIPAA Rules. 

5.16 Governing Law: Applicable Law and Venue. This BAA shall be construed in accordance 
with the laws of the State of California applicable to agreements made and to be performed in such state. 
Any dispute between the Parties shall be brought before the Superior Court of Kern County, California, 
which shall have jurisdiction over all such claims. 

5.17 Waiver of Provisions. Any waiver of any terms and conditions hereof must be in writing 
and signed by the Parties hereto. A waiver of any of the terms and conditions hereof shall not be 
construed as a waiver of any other term or condition hereof. 

5.18 Assignment and Delegation. Neither this BAA nor any of the rights or duties under this 
BAA may be assigned or delegated by either Party hereto. 

5.19 Disclaimer. Neither Party represents or warrants that compliance by the other Party with 
this BAA, HIPAA, the HIPAA Rules, or the HITECH Act will be adequate or satisfactory for the other 
Party's own purposes. Each Party is solely responsible for its own decisions regarding the safeguarding 
of PHI. 

5.20 Certification. To the extent that a state and/or federal entity determines that such 
examination is necessary to comply with Covered Entity's legal obligations pursuant to Hf PAA relating to 
certification of its security practices, Covered Entity or its authorized agents or Consultants may, upon 
reasonable notice and at Covered Entity's expense, examine Business Associate's facilities, systems, 
procedures, and records, as may be necessary for such agents or Consultants to certify to Covered Entity 
the extent to which Business Associate's security safeguards comply with HIPAA, the HIPAA Rules, the 
HITECH Act, or this BAA. 

Counterparts. This BAA may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be 
deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same agreement, binding on 
both Parties hereto. 



The Parties hereto have executed this BAA as of the Effective Date. 

COVERED ENTITY: 

The Kern County Hospital Authority 

Title: Chairman, Board of Governors 
Date: ___________ _ 

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE: 

Varian Medical Systems, Inc. 

c .. TY---
Title: Director GCO The Americas 

Date: Dec 23, 2021 

REVIEWED ONLY 

NOT APPROVE S TO FORM 



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 
 
January 19, 2022 
 
Subject:  Proposed Retroactive Amendment No. 1 to Universal Service Agreement 01317 with TALX 
Corporation, a provider of Equifax Workforce Solutions 
 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 
 
Summary:   
 
Kern Medical requests your Board retroactively approve the proposed Amendment No. 1 to Universal Service 
Agreement 01317 with TALX Corporation, a provider of Equifax Workforce Solutions, which currently provides 
employee employment verification and unemployment cost management services to Kern County Hospital 
Authority.   
 
The Agreement expired December 31, 2021.  The Amendment extends the term of the Agreement for these 
services for three years from January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2024, and increases the allowed number of 
unemployment claims to be managed under the Agreement before additional fees are assessed. The number of 
claims allowed under our current Agreement (135) is no longer sufficient based on increased COVID-19-related 
unemployment claims over the past two years.  Claims in excess of the “allowed” amount result in additional 
administrative fees.  In 2020, a total of 402 unemployment claims were processed and during 2021, a total of 
263 claims were processed.  
 
There will be an additional $352 added to the base fees; new base fees will be $5,240 for year one of the 
extension, with a 3% increase to the base plan fees annually thereafter.  Estimated base plan fees for the three-
year term is $16,196.  Additional costs may be incurred for unemployment hearing preparation and any excess 
claims over the allowed number in Agreement. 
 
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board retroactively approve Amendment No. 1 to Universal Service 
Agreement 01317 with TALX Corporation, a provider of Equifax Workforce Solutions, extending the term for 
three years from January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2024, in an amount not to exceed $20,000, and 
authorize the Chairman to sign. 
 
 
 







 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 

A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
January 19, 2022 
 
Subject:  Proposed Professional Service Agreement and Telemedicine Credentialing and Privileging 
Agreement with Retina Vue, P.C.  
 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 
 
Summary:   
 
Kern Medical requests that your Board approve two agreements with Retina Vue, P.C. (“Retina Vue”). The first is 
the Professional Service Agreement for remote ophthalmology services for diabetic retinopathy readings. The 
second is the Credentialing and Privileging Agreement to delegate the credentialing of the Retina Vue 
ophthalmologists who will be performing the diabetic retinopathy readings. Delegated credentialing is the 
process by which a provider such as Kern Medical agrees to turn over a portion of its credentialing review to a 
qualified entity, in this case Retina Vue. The medical staff office will continue to verify the original source of 
specific credential (e.g., licensure, National Practitioner Data Bank, etc.) to determine the accuracy of the 
qualifications of each Retina Vue ophthalmologist.  
 
The term of these agreements is five years, effective January 19, 2022, with auto-renewal periods of one year 
each, unless notice is provided. The cost of the Professional Service Agreement is $40,000 per year with a 
maximum payable not to exceed $200,000 for the five-year term.  
 
The Professional Service Agreement contains non-standard terms and cannot be approved as to form by Counsel 
due to (1) auto-renewal provision for successive renewal terms; (2) limitations on liability, with Retina Vue 
limiting its liability to the total of service fee payments made during the 12-month periods proceeding the event; 
and (3) no indemnification from Retina Vue. Efforts were made to negotiate these nonstandard terms to no 
avail. These services provide a critical function to which there is no current alternative, and Kern Medical 
believes the benefit outweighs the risk of moving forward with the Professional Services Agreement, despite the 
nonstandard terms.  
 
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board approve the Professional Service Agreement and Telemedicine 
Credentialing and Privileging Agreement with Retina Vue, P.C., effective January 19, 2022, with a maximum 
payable not to exceed $200,000 for the five-year term, and authorize the Chairman to sign.   
 
 
 



Agreement Number: RVN- 01135

Retina Vue ProfessionalServiceAgreement 

This Retina Vue Professional Service Agreement(the "Agreement") is madeas ofthe date oflast signattu-e below by 
and between RetinaVue, P.C. (the "P.C.") and the undersigned customer ("Customer"). 

Agreement Term 

Termination for Cause 

Commences on the Effective Date and continues until terminated as provided herein. 

By either pa1ty upon written notice with immediate effect if (i) the other party fails to perfonn an 
obligation hereunder and does not correct such failure with in 15 days after the date of written 
notice from thenon-failing pa1ty, or(ii) the other pa1ty becomes insolvent or declares 
bankmptcy. 

By the P.C. upon written notice to Customer with immediate effect if Customer's Retina Vue 
Network license is terminated. 

Termination for Convenience By either pa1tyupon 30 days' written notice to theother pa1ty. 

Termination of Software Plan By Customer upon 30 days ' written notice to the P.C. 

Effect of Termination 

Software Plan Fee 

Service Fee 

Payment 

Sales or Ex cise Taxes 

Software Plan Fee and/ or 

Service Fee Change 

If the P.C. terminates this Agreement for cause, or if Customer terminates this Agreement for 
convenience or terminates any Software Plan(s), Customer(i) shall be liable for the balance of 
a 11 Software Plan Fees owing for each terminated Software Plan still in the Software Plan Term, 
which ba lance(s) will become immediately due and payable on the effective date of termination, 
but (ii) shall not be liable for Software Plan Fees for any terminatedrenewedSoftware Plan after 
the effectivedateof tennination. 

12-m onth Software Plan Term: $18 8 per-Retinal Camera/per-month.
24-month Software Plan Tenn: $160 per-Retinal Camera/per-month.
3 6-month Software Plan Term: $140 per-Retinal Camera/per-month.
48-month Software Plan Term: $130 per Retinal Camera/per-month.
60-month Software Plan Term: $120 per Retinal Camera/per-month. 

$15 per-Repmt multiplied by the number of Repmts produced by theP.C. in the previous month. 

Net 30 days from invoice date. 

If applicable, added to the Software Plan Fee and/or Service Fee. 

By the P.C. upon 90 days' written notice to Customer, provided, however, that no change in the 
Software Plan Fee or Service Fee will be effectiveforany Software Plan still in the Software 
Plan Tenn. 

Electronic Signature Opt-Out o Customer does not agree to sign th is Agreement electronically. 

This Agreement is subject to thetenns and conditions attached hereto. 

RETINA VUE, P.C. 

By: Welch Allyn, Inc., its administrator& power of attorney 

Name: Niesa Johnson 

Title: Executive Director, Vision Care 

Dec 22, 2021 
Date: 

- -------------

Address for notices: 
c/o Welch Allyn, Inc. 

Kern County Hospital Authority, a lo cal unit of government, 
which owns and operates Kern Medical Center 

By:-----------
(signature) 

Name: _ __ _ _ _ _____ _ 
(print name) 

Title: - -- - - - - - - - - --

(print title) 

Date: - -- - - - - - - - --
(print date) 

Address for notices: 

P.O. Box220 
4341 State Street Road REVIEWED ONLY 
SkaneatelesFalls, NewYorkl3153 OT APPROVED S TO FORM

Attn: Le gal Deparlment Attn: __________ _ 

Retina Vue, P.C. PSA_ Software Plan Version_Monthly_MULTI-PARTY _5.11.2021 

Russell Bigler 

Chairman, Board of Governors 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue 

Bakersfield, California 93306

January 19, 2022



Agreement Number: RVN- 01135

Terms and Conditions 

1. Definitions.
1.1. Affiliate means an e ntity that controls, is control le d b y, or 

is under com mon control wi th Cus tomer, where "control" 
means possession of the power to direc t or cause the 
direc tion of the manage me nt and policies of an e nti t y, 
whe ther through the ow nership of voti ng securi ties, 
through me m bership, b y  contrac t or otherwise, b u t  onl y 
for so long as such control conti nues to exis t, and 
i nc l u des any d/ b/a(s) u nder which Cus tomer or an 
Affiliate operates. 

1.2. Authorized User means an employee of Customer, or 
an independent contractor engaged by Customer, 
authorized to pe1form ImageAcquisitionand/or use 
the Retina Vue Network. 

1.3. Effective Date means the date Customer orders its fost 
Software Plan(s). 

1.4. Image Acquisition means an Authorized User's 
operation of a Retinal Camera to acquire Retina 
Im ages and up load them to the Retina Vue Network. 

1.5. Physician means a retinal specialist or board-ce1tified 
ophthalmologist engaged by the P.C. to perform the 
Professional Service. 

1.6. Professiona!Servicemeans the evaluation and 
interpretation of Retina Images by Physicians for 
purposes of diagnosing diabetic retinopathy and other 
conditions. 

1.7. Report means a structured, written rep01t of the results 
of the Professional Service. 

1.8. Retina Images means digitalfundus images acquired 
by the Retinal Camera. 

1.9. Retinal Camer a means the digital eye-fund us camera 
separately purchased by Customer. 

1.10. Retina VueN etwork means proprietary software 
separately licensed by Customer that transmits Retina 
Images to Physicians for performance ofthe 
Professional Service and Rep01ts back to Customer. 

1.11. Se111ice Fee means the fee for the Professional 
Service, invoiced by the P.C. monthly in a nears. 

1.12. Software Plan means the license to the Retina Vue 
Network purchased by Customer for each active 
Retinal Camera. 

I. 13. Software Plan Fee means the fee for each Software
Plan, invoiced by the P.C. monthly in a1Tears. 

1.14. Soft,11 arePlan Term means the initial 12-,24-, 36-, 
48-, or 60-monthtermof each Software Plan 
commencing on the date specified in Customer's 
Software Plan order. 

2. ProfessionalService.
2.1. Physicians will be licensed to practice medicine in

Customer's and/or any Affilia te's state and will 
perform the Professional Service in accordance with 
all applicable Ia ws, regulations, rules, and standards. 

2.2. The P.C. and Physicians will use commercially 
reasonable effo1ts to complete the Professional 
Service within 24 hours oflmage Acquisition. 

2.3. Neither the P.C. nor any Physician has responsibility 
for following up with patients regarding Reports, 
including fmtherdiagnosis or treatment, or billing any 
payer orpatient for the Professional Service. In the 

RetinaVue, P.C. PSA_Soflware Plan Version_Monthly_MULTI-PARTY_5. l l.2021 

event either party receives an inquhy related to the 
Professional Service from a payer, the patties will 
cooperatively review records, including the applicable 
Rep mt, and respond accordingly. 

2.4. No restriction whatsoever is imposed upon the 
exercise of medicaljudgment by the P.C. or 
Physicians or by Customeror physicians associated 
with Customer. 

3. Customer Responsibilities.
3 .1. Customeracknowledges and agrees that it is solely

responsible for: (i) directing and supervising 
Authorized Users' performance of Image Acquisition 
and/or use of the Retina Vue Network; (ii) ensuring 
compliance with all requirements associated with 
Customer's billing of claims to patients, federal and 
state payerplans, and private payerplans, including, 
without Jim itation, supervision and a 11 other coverage 
requirements, the requirements of the physician 
services exception or the in-office ancilla1yservices 
exception under the Stark Law regulations (42 C.F.R 
§ 4 l l .35 5(a) and(b )) and the requirements of the
Anti-Markup Rule (42 C.F.R § 414.50); and(iii)
following up with patients regarding Rep01ts,
including furtherdiagnosis and treatment.

3 .2. Cus tomer shal l cause Affiliates to comp l y  wi th the terms 
and condi tions of this Agree ment. 

3.3. Cus tomer acknow le d ges and agrees that the P.C. may (i) 
e lec t to recover from Cus tomer and Affiliates the ful l 
amount of any col lec tive liabi lity ofCus tomer and 
Affiliates under this Agreeme nt, and (ii) bri ng a separate 
ac tion agai ns t  Cus tomer and Affiliates wi th respec t to 
any s uch liabi lity. 

4. Software Plans.

4.1. Customer shall order a Software Plan for each active
Retina I Camera. Customer may acquire Retinal 
Cam eras and order Software Plans at anytime during 
the Agreement Term. Software Plans may be for 
different Software Plan Terms but once ordered, 
Software Plans may not be changed; in no event may 
Customerconvert a  Software Plan to a different 
Software Plan Tenn and Software Plan Fee. 

4.2. Upon expiration of the Software Plan Tenn each 
Software Plan will automatically renew for 
consecutive 12-month periods (irrespective of the 
duration ofthe Software Plan Tenn). The Software 
Plan Fee payable for the renewed Software Plan will 
be the Software Plan Fee corresponding to the 
Software Plan Te1m. 

4.3. All Software Plan Fee payments are due and payable 
whether or not Customer uses oraccesses the 
Retina Vue Network during the Software Plan Tenn 
or, under a renewed Software Plan, in the previous 
month. 

5. Affiliate Software Plans.
5 .1. Customer mayorderSoftware Plans for itself and/or

Affiliates. Where Customer orders Software Plans for 
Affiliates, Customer may directAffiliates be invoiced 
for Software Plan Fees. 

2 



5.2. Affiliates may order Software Plans only for their 
own account and shall be liable for a II applicable 
Software Plan Fees. 

5 .3. Affiliates may terminate Software Plans, whether 
ordered by Customer or by them, but have no right to 
term in ate Customer's or any other Affiliate 's 
Software Plans and no right to terminate this 
Agreement. 

6. HIPAA.

6.1. The P.C. and Physicians are covered entities (as such
term is defined under Health Insmance Portability and 
Accountability Act of 1996, as amended, and all 
implementing regulations ("HIPAA")) and are subject 
to HIP AA requirements applicable to covered entities. 

7. Limitation of Liability; Insurance.
7.1. INNO EVENT SHALL EITHERPAR1YBE

LIABLE TO THEOTHERPARTY FOR ANY 
INDIRECT, CONSEQUENTIAL, INCIDENT AL, 
EXEMPLARY, SPECIAL OR PUNITIVE 
DAMAGES (INCLUDING LOST PROFITSAND 
LOSTBUSINESS), ARISING OUT OF ORIN 
CONNECT! ON WITH THIS AGREEMENT, EVEN 
IF IT HAS BEEN ADVISED OR IS A WARE OF 
THE POSSIBILI1Y OF SUCH DAMAGES, AND 
REGARDLESS OF WHETHERARISING IN TORT 
(INCLUDING NEG LI GEN CE), CONTRACT, OR 
OTHER LEGAL THEORY. THE TOT AL 
AGGREGATE LIABILI1Y OF ONE PARTY TO 
THE OTHER UNDER THIS AGREEMENTFOR 
ANY REASON AND UPON ANY OR ALL 
CAUSES OF ACTION SHALL BE LIMITED TO 
THE TOT AL SER VI CE FEE PAYMENTS MADE 
BY CUSTOMER TO THE P.C. DURINGTHE 12-
MONTH PERI OD IMMEDIATELY PRECEDING 
THE EVENT GIVING RISE TO SUCH CLAIM. 

7.2. The P.C. shallmaintain, throughout the term of this 
Agreement, at its expense, professional liability 
insurance covering it for malpmctice claims in the 
amount of$ l ,000,000 peroccurrence, $3,000,000 
annual aggregate, and shall require each Physician to 
maintain, at his/her expense, professional liability 
insurance covering him/herfor malpmctice claims in 
the amount of $1,000,000 per occurrence, $3,000,000 
annual aggregate. Customer shall maintain, 
throughout the term of this Agreement, at its expense, 
professional liability insurance covering Customer 
and its employees and subcontmctors (or, if Customer 
is a health plan, covering Customer's applicable 
employees and subcontmctors) formalpmctice claims 
in the amount of$ l ,000,000 per occurrence, 
$2,000,000 annual aggregate, or insurance limits not 
less than any applicable statutotycap on liability in 
the state where Customer practices medicine(or, if 
Customer is a health plan, where Customer's 
applicable employees and subcontractors practice 
medicine). Uponrequest, each party will provide the 
other party with certificates ofinsurance evidencing 
such covemge. Each party will provide the other party 
with at least 30 days' priorwritten notice of the 
cancellation or reduction of such insumnce covemge. 

RetinaVue, P.C. PSA_Software Plan Version_Monthly_MULTI-PARTY_5. I l.2021 

Agreement Number: RVN- 01135

8. General Provisions.

8.1. Until the expiration of 4 years a fter the provision of
the Professional Service hereunder, each party shall, 
upon request, make available to the Secretaty, United 
States Department of Health and Human Services, the 
United States ComptrollerGeneml, and their 
representatives, a copy of this Agreement and such 
books, documents and records of such party that are 
necessaty to cettify the nature and extent ofa ny cost 
incurred by either party. lfeither party carries outthe 
duties of this Agreementthrough a subcontract with a 
related organization worth$ I 0,000 or more over a 12-
month period, the subcontmctshall contain a clause 
placing the same obligations on subcontractor as this 
Section 8.1 places on suchparty. 

8.2. In the eventthis Agreement is terminated during the 
first 12 months following the Effective Date, the 
parties shall not enter into an agreement with each 
other for the same or similar services on different 
terms within 12 months oftheEffectiveDate. This 
Section 8 .2 does not apply if Customer is a Medicare 
Advantage Plan as defined by the Centers for 
Medicare & Medicaid Services. 

8 .3. The patties are independent legal entities. Nothing in 
this Agreement shall be construed to create the 
relationship of employer and employee, or principal 
and agent, or any relationship other than that of 
independentparties contracting with eachother solely 
for the purposes ofcanying out theterms of this 
Agreement. Neither patty has any authority to make 
contracts on behalf of the other patty, or to bind the 
other party topetform obligations or incur liabilities 
for third patties. 

8 .4. Except with respect to any payment obligations, 
neither patty shall be liable for any failure to perform 
its obligations hereunder if such failure arises, directly 
or indirectly, out ofcauses reasonably beyond the 
direct control of such patty, including, without 
limitation, acts of God, acts of terrorists or criminals, 
acts of domestic or foreign governments, change in 
any law or regula tion, fires, floods, explosions, 
epidemics, disruptions in communications, power, or 
other utilities, strikes or other la borproblems, riots, or 
unavailability of supplies. 

8 .5. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement 
between the patties concerning the subject matter 
hereof. 

8 .6. Except for a change in the Software Plan Fee and/or 
Service Fee by the P.C., no modification or 
amendment to this Agreement will be valid or binding 
unless in writing and duly executed by the party to be 
bound thereby. The failure of either party at any time 
to require petfonnance by the other party of any 
provision of this Agreement shall in no way affectthe 
right of such patty subsequently to require 
performance of that provision. Any waiver by either 
patty ofany breach of this Agreement shall not be 
construed as a waiver of any continuing or succeeding 
breach of such provision. 

3 



8.7. This Agreement shall be interpreted and enforced in 
accordancewith the law of theStateofCalifornia 
without giving effect to its mies governing the 
conflicts of laws. 

8.8. By entering into this Agreement, the parties intend to 
comply with all applicable laws, rules,regulations and 
third -party payer requirements, including, without 
limitation, thoserelating to any applicable fedeml 
health care program, as defined in 42 U.S.C. § I 320a-
7b(f)(including, without limitation,42 U.S.C. § 
I 320a-7b(b ), commonly known as the Anti-Kickback 
Statute,and 42 U.S.C. § I 395nn,commonly knownas 
the Stark Law, and all rules and regulations 
thereunder). 

8 .9. Unless Customeropted out above, thepaities agree 
that this Agreement may be electronically signed and 
that electronic signatmes are the same as handwritten 
sign a tu res for the purposes of validity, enforceability, 
and admissibility. 

8 .10. The liabilities or obligations of Customer with respect 
to its activities pursuantto this Agreement shall be the 
liabilities orobligations solely ofCustomer and shall 

Retina Vue, P.C. PSA_ Software Plan Version_Monthly _MUL Tl-PARTY _5.11.2021 

Agreement Number: RVN- 01135

not be or become the liabilities orobligations ofthe 
CountyofKern or any other entity, including the state 
of California. California Health and Safety Code 
Section IO l 853(g) 

4 



TELEMEDICINE CREDENTIALING AND PRIVILEGING AGREEMENT 

This Telemedicine Credentialing and Privileging 
Agreement ("Agreement") is made by and between 
RetinaVue, P.C. (the "P.C.") and the undersigned 
customer ("Customer") and is subject to the terms of that 
certain Retina Vue Professional Service Agreement dated 
January 19, 2022 by and between the P.C. and 
Customer (the "Master Agreement"). Any term defined 
in this Agreement will have the meaning for such term 
only as set forth in this Agreement; all other capitalized 
terms used but not defined herein will have the meaning 
set forth in the Master Agreement. 

WHEREAS, by entering into this Agreement, the parties 
desire to ease the burdensome credentialing and 
privileging process relating to telemedicine providers by 
establishing a telemedicine credentialing and privileging 
process that meets, as applicable, the requirements of the 
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services ("CMS"), 
The Joint Commission ("TJC"), and applicable state and 
federal laws. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of their mutual 
covenants and agreements herein, the parties hereby 
agree as follows: 

1. Definitions

A. "Credentialing" means the evaluation and 
verification of Telemedicine Providers' qualifications 
and competence to provide the Professional Service. 
B. "Credentialing Program" means the process by
which Telemedicine Providers' qualifications and
competence are evaluated and verified.
C. "Telemedicine Provider" means a duly qualified,
credentialed and privileged health care professional who
holds a license issued by the state where Customer
(and/or, if applicable, any Affiliate) is located, is under
contract with the P.C. to provide the Professional Service,
and has completed the Credentialing Program.

2. P.C. Responsibilities
A. Compliance with Medicare Conditions of 

Participation and TJC Standards. The P.C. is an 
independent contractor providing the Professional 
Service to Customer (and/or, if applicable, any Affiliate). 
The Credentialing Program has been reviewed and 
approved by its governing body, and complies with and 
permits Customer (and/or, if applicable, any Affiliate) to 
comply with all applicable Medicare Conditions of 
Participation related to Credentialing and the 
Professional Service, including but not limited to the 
requirements at 42 C.F.R. § 482.12(a)( l )  through (a)(7), 
42 C.F.R. § 482.22(a)( l )  and (a)(2), and 42 C.F.R. 
§ 485.616(c)( l ), as applicable, and all applicable
requirements in the Medical Staff chapter of TJC's
Comprehensive Accreditation Manual for Hospitals,

including, but not limited to, MS.06.01.01 through 
MS.06.01 .13. 
B. Credentialing. The P.C. warrants that each
Telemedicine Provider (i) will be credentialed and
privileged by the P.C. in accordance with its credentialing
and privileging processes and standards; and (ii) will
render the Professional Service within the scope of
his/her privileges.
C. List of Telemedicine Providers. Upon request, the
P.C. will provide Customer a current list of privileges for
each Telemedicine Provider who is seeking or has
obtained telemedicine privileges at Customer's (and/or,
if applicable, any Affiliates') facility(ies).

D. Credentialing File Requests. Upon reasonable written
request and subject to state law limitations and
requirements, the P.C. will provide Customer with the
complete credentialing and privileging file maintained by
the P.C. for each Telemedicine Provider covered by this
Agreement, which shall include the following:

(a) Curriculum vitae;
(b) Board certificate;
(c) Educational verification and certificates
(verified via primary source-AMA/FCVS);

(d) Work verifications (verified via primary
source);
( e) Peer reference verifications;
(f) Government-issued identification;
(g) Certificate of Insurance; and
(h) State of California physician's license

However, the P.C. will be under no obligation to provide 
Customer a copy of any information received from the 
National Practitioner Data Bank or Healthcare Integrity 
and Protection Data Bank, however, will do so upon 
approval from the applicable Telemedicine Provider. 
E. Re-credentialing. The P.C. will conduct re
credentialing of Telemedicine Providers every two years
in accordance with its established policies and
procedures, applicable Medicare Conditions of
Participation, and applicable TJC standards, and will
include in its re-credentialing process information
provided by Customer.
F. Changes in Privileges; Disciplinary Action. The P.C.
will notify Customer as soon as reasonably practicable of
any change in privileges of a Telemedicine Provider,
including but not limited to any disciplinary action taken
against a Telemedicine Provider pursuant to the P.C.'s
credentialing policies.
G. Licensure. The P.C. warrants that at all times while
providing the Professional Service to Customer each
Telemedicine Provider will hold a license issued or
recognized by the state where Customer (and/or, if
applicable, any Affiliate) is located.

3. Customer Responsibilities



A. Credentialing by Proxy. The governing body and the
medical staff of Customer (and/or, if applicable, any
Affiliate) may choose to rely on the P.C.'s Credentialing
Program decisions when making its own credentialing
and privileging decisions regarding Telemedicine
Providers. To that end, the governing body of Customer
(and/or, if applicable, any Affiliate) will ensure
compliance with the requirements at 42 C.F.R.

§ 482.22(a)(4), 42 C.F.R. § 485.616(c)(2), and Standards
LD.04.03.09 of TJC's Comprehensive Accreditation
Manual for Hospitals, as applicable. Customer (and/or,
if applicable, any Affiliate) will ensure that each
Telemedicine Provider holds a license issued or 
recognized by the state where Customer (and, if 
applicable, any Affiliate) is located. Customer (and/or, if
applicable, any Affiliate) will ensure the privileges it
grants each Telemedicine Provider for provision of the
Professional Service do not exceed the privileges granted
to such Telemedicine Provider by the P.C.
B. Customer Confirmation of Changes in Current List of
Privileges. When pursuant to Section 2 (C) the P.C.
delivers to Customer a current list of privileges for each 
Telemedicine Provider who is seeking or has obtained
telemedicine privileges at Customer's (and/or, if
applicable, any Affiliates') facility(ies), the P.C. will
deem such list confirmed unless Customer, within 10
days of receipt of such list, notifies the P.C. in writing of 
any errors contained therein.
C. Removal of Telemedicine Providers by Customer. If
Customer (and/or, if applicable, any Affiliate) no longer
wishes to receive the Professional Service from a
Telemedicine Provider, Customer will request the
removal of such Telemedicine Provider in writing.
D. Customer Performance Information. Customer
(and/or, if applicable, any Affiliate) will maintain
evidence of its internal reviews of each Telemedicine
Provider's performance and quality and will provide such
performance and quality review information to the P.C.
for the P.C.'s periodic appraisal of Telemedicine
Providers in accordance with 42 C.F.R.
§ 482.22(a)(4)(iv) and 42 C.F.R. § 485.616(c)(2)(iv), as 
applicable. At a minimum, such performance and quality
review information will include (i) all adverse events
resulting from the Professional Service, and (ii) all
complaints Customer (and/or, if applicable, any Affiliate)
has received about any Telemedicine Provider (including
but not limited to any adverse outcomes related to
sentinel events that are considered reviewable by TJC).
Customer will notify the P.C. immediately of any
disciplinary action that it (and/or, if applicable, any
Affiliate) expects to take against a Telemedicine Provider
pursuant to its (and/or, if applicable, any Affiliate's)
credentialing policies.

E. State and/or Federal Disciplinary Action. Customer
will notify the P.C. as soon as reasonably practical of any
action taken by a state or federal authority that restricts or
limits the practice or professional prerogatives of a
Telemedicine Provider in Customer's (and/or, if
applicable, any Affiliate's) state, including an
involuntary change or reduction in licensure status.
F. Affiliates. If applicable, Customer shall cause
Affiliates to comply with the terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

4. Term
A. Term. This Agreement will commence on the
Effective Date of, and be co-terminus with, the Master
Agreement.

5. Confidentiality; Legislative/Regulatory
Modification
A. Confidentiality. Each party will treat all credentialing
information shared under this Agreement as privileged
and confidential. Each party will use such information
for credentialing, quality improvement, and peer review
activities only. Each party will ensure that no portion of
any materials or information received from the other
party are disclosed by it or its agents to any employee or
third party for reasons unrelated to evaluating
Telemedicine Providers' quality and credentials, except
as required by law or requested by regulatory and
accrediting bodies. It is understood that disclosure of any
peer review documents does not waive any privileges or
protections afforded such documents by law.
B. Legislative/Regulatory Modification. If any law,
regulation or standard is enacted, promulgated, or
modified in a manner that, in the opinion of a party's legal
counsel (i) prohibits, restricts or in any way materially
affects this Agreement; (ii) subjects any party to a fine or
penalty in connection with its representations or
responsibilities hereunder; or (iii) subjects any party to a
loss of Medicare or Medicaid certification or other
accreditation because of the existence of this Agreement
or the applicable party's representations or performance
of obligations hereunder, then within 5 business days
following notice from one party to the other, the parties
will complete the good faith negotiation of an amendment
to this Agreement or a substitute agreement that will carry
out the original intention of the parties to the extent
possible in light of such law, regulation or standard. If the
parties cannot reach agreement on new terms within 5
business days following the notice provided hereunder or
such earlier date as necessary to avoid substantial
penalties or fines, then this Agreement will immediately
terminate, following written notice of termination from
either party.

Signature Page Folloivs 

2 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by their duly authorized representatives. 

RETINA VUE, P.C. KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 

CENTERBy: Welch Allyn, Inc., its administrator & power of attorney 

By: rn:;:in�c�JOUl)l.Y.ESJ) 

Name: Niesa Johnson 
Title: Executive Director, Vision Care 
Date: Dec 22 2021 

3 

By: -----------
Name: ___________ _ 
Title: ____________ _ 
Date: ____________ _ 

APPROVED AS TO FORM

Legal Services epartment 

nty Hospital Authority

Russell Bigler 
Chairman, Board of Governors 
January 19, 2022 



Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 

A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

January 19, 2022 

Subject:  Proposed Amendment No. 1 to Agreement 014-2020 for Teleradiology Services with Virtual 
Radiologic Professionals of California, P.A.  

Recommended Action: Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 

Summary:  

On April 15, 2020, your Board approved the Teleradiology Services Agreement with Virtual Radiologic 
Professionals of California, P.A. (“vRad”) for remote radiology services for after-hours preliminary interpretation 
of radiologic images with a maximum payable not to exceed $910,000 for the first two years of the agreement. 
The agreement contains an annual auto renewal provision and an option to terminate at any point with 90 days’ 
notice. 

Amendment No. 1 will increase the maximum payable for the initial two-year term of the agreement by $53,800 
from $453,200 to $507,000 for the first year and by $164,200 from $456,800 to 621,000 for the second year, for 
a total maximum payable of $1,128,000 for the term of April 15, 2020 through April 14, 2022. Fees for this 
agreement are accrued on a fee-for-service basis and an increase in the maximum payable is a result of higher 
than anticipated imaging volumes during the hours covered by vRad.  This increase in imaging volume is 
consistent with the increased census throughout the organization as well as the additional imaging needs 
associated with treatment of COVID-19 patients.  

Therefore, it is recommended that your Board approve the proposed Amendment No. 1 to the Teleradiology 
Services Agreement with Virtual Radiologic Professionals of California, P.A. to increase the total maximum 
payable by $218,000, from $910,000 to $1,128,000, for the term April 15, 2020 through April 14, 2022, and 
authorize the Chairman to sign.  









 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 
 
January 19, 2021 
 
Subject: Proposed Purchase Order Agreement with TIMS Medical by Foresight Imaging, LLC  
 
Recommended Action: Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign  
 
Summary:   
 
Kern Medical requests your Board approve the Purchase Order Agreement with TIMS Medical by Foresight 
Imaging, LLC (“TIMS Medical”) for the preventive maintenance, repairs and required software updates for the 
live image capture feature of the fluoroscopy equipment in the Radiology department.  
 
The term of the Agreement is four years, effective January 19, 2022, with a total maximum payable not to 
exceed $10,000.  
 
The Purchase Order Agreement contains nonstandard terms and cannot be approved as to form by Counsel due 
to (1) limitations on liability, with TIMS Medical limiting liability to ten times the fees paid by Kern Medical for a 
12-month period; and (2) TIMS Medical only agrees to indemnify Kern Medical for claims that arise out of its 
gross negligence or willful misconduct. Efforts were made to negotiate these nonstandard terms to no avail. 
These services provide a critical function to which there is no current alternative, and Kern Medical believes the 
benefit outweighs the risk of moving forward with the Purchase Order Agreement, despite the nonstandard 
terms.  
 
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board approve the Purchase Order Agreement with TIMS Medical by 
Foresight Imaging, LLC, effective January 19, 2022, with a maximum payable not to exceed $10,000 for the four-
year term, and authorize the Chairman to sign.   
 
 























BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT 

This Business Associate Agreement ("BAA") is entered into by and between the Kern County 
Hospital Authority on behalf of Kern Medical Center ("Covered Entity") and TIMS Medical by Foresight 
Imaging ("Business Associate") (each a "Party" and collectively the "Parties"), effective as of the 
effective date of the underlying Agreement (the "Effective Date"). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, Covered Entity is a "Covered Entity" as that term is defined under the Health 
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (Public Law 104-91), as amended, ("HIPAA"), and 
the regulations promulgated thereunder by the Secretary of the U.S. Department of Health and Human 
Services ("Secretary"), including, without limitation, the regulations codified at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162, 
and 164 ("HIPAA Rules"); 

WHEREAS, Business Associate performs Services for or on behalf of Covered Entity, 
and in performing said Services, Business Associate creates, receives, maintains, or transmits Protected 
Health Information ("PHI"); 

WHEREAS, the Parties intend to protect the privacy and provide for the security of PHI 
Disclosed by Covered Entity to Business Associate, or received or created by Business Associate, when 
providing Services in compliance with HIPAA, the Health Information Technology for Economic and 
Clinical Health Act (Public Law 111-005) (the "HITECH Act") and its implementing regulations and 
guidance issued by the Secretary; and 

WHEREAS, the Privacy and Security Rules (defined below) require Covered Entity and 
Business Associate to enter into a BAA that meets certain requirements with respect to the Use and 
Disclosure of PHI, which are met by this BAA. 

AGREEMENT 

NOW THEREFORE, In consideration of the Recitals and for other good and valuable 
consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I 
DEFINITIONS 

1.1 "Breach" shall have the meaning given under 45 C.F.R. § 164.402. 

1.2 "Breach Notification Rule" shall mean the Breach Notification for Unsecured Protected 
Health Information interim final rule at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, Subpart D, as may be amended from 
time to time. 

1.3 
164.501. 

"Designated Record Set" shall have the meaning given such term under 45 C.F.R. § 

1.4 "Disclose" and "Disclosure" mean, with respect to PHI, the release, transfer, provision 
of access to, or divulging in any other manner of PHI outside of Business Associate or to other than 
members of its Workforce, as set forth in 45 C.F.R. § 160.103. 

1.5 "Electronic PHI" or "e-PHI" means PHI that is transmitted or maintained in electronic 
media, as set forth in 45 C.F.R. § 160.103. 

1.6 "Protected Health Information" and "PHI" mean any information created, received or 
maintained by Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity, whether oral or recorded in any form or 



medium, that: (a) relates to the past, present or future physical or mental health or condition of an 
Individual; the provision of health care to an Individual, or the past, present or future payment for the 
provision of health care to an individual; (b) identifies the Individual (or for which there is a reasonable 
basis for believing that the information can be used to identify the Individual); and (c) shall have the 
meaning given to such term under the Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. § 160.103. Protected Health Information 
includes e-PHI. 

1. 7 "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health 
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, Subparts A and E, as may be amended from time to time. 

1.8 "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, 
Subparts A and C, as may be amended from time to time. 

1.9 "Services" shall mean the services for or functions on behalf of Covered Entity performed 
by Business Associate pursuant to any service agreement(s) between Covered Entity and Business 
Associate which may be in effect now or from time to time (the "Underlying Agreement"}, or, if no such 
agreements are in effect, then the services or functions performed by Business Associate that constitute 
a Business Associate relationship, as set forth in 45 C.F.R. § 160.103. 

1.1 o "Subcontractor" shall have the meaning given to such term under 45 C.F.R. § 160.103. 

1.11 "Unsecured PHI" shall have the meaning given to such term under 42 U.S.C. § 
17932(h), 45 C.F.R. § 164.402, and guidance issued pursuant to the HITECH Act including, but not 
limited to the guidance issued on April 17, 2009 and published in 74 Federal Register 19006 (April 27, 
2009) by the Secretary. 

1.12 "Use" or "Uses" mean, with respect to PHI, the sharing, employment, application, 
utilization, examination or analysis of such PHI within Business Associate's internal operations, as set 
forth in 45 C.F.R. § 160.103. 

1.13 "Workforce" shall have the meaning given to such term under 45 C.F.R. § 160.103 

Capitalized terms not otherwise defined in this Agreement shall have the meanings given to them In 
HIPAA or the HITECH Act, as applicable. 

ARTICLE II 
OBLIGATIONS OF BUSINESS ASSOCIATE 

2.1 Permitted Uses and Disclosures of Protected Health Information. Business Associate 
shall not Use or Disclose PHI other than as permitted or required by any Underlying Agreement, this BAA, 
or as Required by Law. Business Associate shall not Use or Disclose PHI in any manner that would 
constitute a violation of the Privacy Rule if so Used or Disclosed by Covered Entity, except that Business 
Associate may Use or Disclose PHI (i) for the proper management and administration of Business 
Associate; (ii) to carry out the legal responsibilities of Business Associate, provided that with respect to 
any such Disclosure either: (a) the Disclosure is Required by Law; or (b) Business Associate obtains a 
written agreement from the other entity to whom the PHI is to be Disclosed that such person will hold the 
PHI in confidence and shall not Use and further Disclose such PHI except as Required by Law and for the 
purpose(s) for which It was Disclosed by Business Associate to such person, and that such person will 
notify Business Associate of any instances of which it is aware in which the confidentiality of the PHI has 
been breached. Business Associate may perform Services, including Data Aggregation for the Health 
Care Operations purposes of Covered Entity and de-identification of PHI in accordance with 45 C.F.R. § 
164.514, if required by any Underlying Agreement or with the advance written permission of Covered 
Entity. Business Associate may Use or Disclose PHI to report violations of law to appropriate Federal and 
State authorities, consistent with 45 C.F.R. § 164.5020)(1). 



2.2 Adequate Safeguards of PHI. Business Associate shall implement and maintain 
appropriate safeguards to prevent Use or Disclosure of PHI other than as provided for by this BAA. 
Business Associate shall reasonably and appropriately protect the confidentially, integrity, and availability 
of e-PHI that it creates, receives, maintains or transmits on behalf of Covered Entity and shall comply with 
Subpart C of 45 C.F.R. Part 164 to prevent Use or Disclosure of PHI belonging to Covered Entity other 
than as provided for by this BAA. 

2.3 Reporting Non-Permitted Use or Disclosure. 

2.3.1 Reporting Security Incidents and Non-Permitted Use or Disclosure. Business 
Associate shall report to Covered Entity in writing each Security Incident or Use or Disclosure that is 
made by Business Associate, members of its Workforce, or Subcontractors that is not specifically 
permitted by this BAA no later than three (3) calendar days after becoming aware of such Security 
Incident or non-permitted Use or Disclosure, in accordance with the notice provisions set forth herein, 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Business Associate and Covered Entity acknowledge the ongoing 
existence and occurrence of attempted but ineffective Security Incidents that are trivial in nature, such as 
pings and other broadcast service attacks, unsuccessful log-on attempts, denials of service, malware 
such as worms or viruses and any combination of the above, and Covered Entity acknowledges and 
agrees that no additional notification to Covered Entity of such ineffective Security Incidents is required, 
as long as no such incident results in unauthorized access, Use or Disclosure of PHI. Business 
Associate shall investigate each Security Incident or non-permitted Use or Disclosure of Covered Entity's 
PHI that it discovers to determine whether such Security Incident or non-permitted Use or Disclosure 
constitutes a reportable Breach of Unsecured PHI and shall provide a summary of its investigation and 
risk assessment to Covered Entity, Business Associate shall document and retain records of its 
investigation of any suspected Breach, including its reports to Covered Entity under this Section 2.3.1. 
Business Associate shall take prompt corrective action and any action required by applicable state or 
federal laws and regulations relating to such Security Incident or non-permitted disclosure. If Business 
Associate or Covered Entity, in its review of this initial report, determines that such Security Incident or 
non-permitted Use or Disclosure constitutes a reportable Breach of Unsecured PHI, then Business 
Associate shall comply with the additional requirements of Section 2.3.2 below. 

2.3.2 Breach of Unsecured PHI. If Business Associate or Covered Entity determines 
that a reportable Breach of Unsecured PHI has occurred, Business Associate shall provide a written 
report to Covered Entity without unreasonable delay but no later than five (5) calendar days after 
discovery of the Breach. To the extent that information is available to Business Associate, Business 
Associate's written report to Covered Entity shall be in accordance with 45 C.F.R. §164.410(c). Business 
Associate shall cooperate with Covered Entity in meeting Covered Entity's obligations under the HIPAA 
Rules with respect to such Breach. Covered Entity shall have sole control over the timing and method of 
providing notification of such Breach to the affected individual(s), the Secretary and, if applicable, the 
media. Business Associate shall reimburse Covered Entity for its reasonable and actual costs and 
expenses in providing the notification, including, but not limited to, any administrative costs associated 
with providing notice, printing and mailing costs, and costs of mitigating the harm (which may include the 
costs of obtaining credit monitoring services and identity theft insurance for up to one (1) year or as 
required per state and federal guidelines for affected Individuals whose PHI has or may have been 
compromised as a result of the Breach. 

2.3.3 Data Breach Notification and Mitigation Under Other Laws. In addition to the 
requirements of Sections 2.3.1 and 2.3.2, Business Associate agrees to implement reasonable systems 
for the discovery and prompt reporting of any breach of PHI that, if misused, disclosed, lost or stolen, 
Covered Entity believes would trigger an obligation under applicable state security breach notification 
laws ("State Breach") to notify the individuals who are the subject of the information. Business Associate 
agrees to: (i) cooperate and assist Covered Entity with any investigation into any State Breach or alleged 
State Breach; (ii) cooperate and assist Covered Entity with any investigation into any State Breach or 
alleged State Breach conducted by a state agency or Attorney General; (iii) comply with Covered Entity's 
determinations regarding Covered Entity's and Business Associate's obligations to mitigate to the extent 
practicable any potential harm to the individuals impacted by the State Breach; and (iv) assist with the 



implementation of any decision by Covered Entity or any State agency to notify individuals impacted or 
potentially impacted by a State Breach. 

2.4 Mitigation. Business Associate agrees to mitigate, to the extent practicable, any harmful 
effect that is l<nown to Business Associate of a Use or Disclosure of PHI by Business Associate in 
violation of the requirements of this BAA. 

2.5 Use of Subcontractors. Business Associate shall require each of its Subcontractors that 
creates, maintains, receives, or transmits PHI on behalf of Business Associate, to execute a Business 
Associate Agreement that imposes on such Subcontractors substantially the same restrictions, 
conditions, and requirements that apply to Business Associate under this BAA with respect to PHI. 

2.6 Access to Protected Health Information. To the extent that Business Associate maintains 
a Designated Record Set on behalf of Covered Entity and within fifteen (15) days of receipt of a written 
request by Covered Entity, Business Associate shall make the PHI it maintains (or which is maintained by 
its Subcontractors) in Designated Record Sets available to Covered Entity for inspection and copying, or 
if directed in writing by Covered Entity, to an Individual to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its obligations 
under 45 C.F.R. § 164.524. If Business Associate maintains PHI in a Designated Record Set 
electronically, Business Associate shall provide such information in the electronic form and format 
requested by the Covered Entity if it is readily reproducible in such form and format, and, If not, in such 
other form and format agreed to by Covered Entity to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its obligations under 
45 C.F.R. § 164.524(c)(2). Business Associate shall notify Covered Entity within five (5) days of receipt of 
a request for access to PHI from an Individual. Any denials of access to an Individual's PHI shall be the 
sole responsibility of the Covered Entity. 

2.7 Amendment of Protected Health Information. To the extent that Business Associate 
maintains a Designated Record Set on behalf of Covered Entity and within fifteen (15) days of receipt of a 
written request by Covered Entity, Business Associate shall amend the PHI it maintains (or which Is 
maintained by its Subcontractors) in Designated Record Sets to enable the Covered Entity to fulfill its 
obligations under 45 C.F.R. § 164.526. Business Associate shall notify Covered Entity within five (5) 
days of receipt of a request for amendment of PHI from an Individual. Any denials of amendment to an 
Individual's PHI shall be the sole responsibility of the Covered Entity. 

2.8 Accounting. Within thirty (30) days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity or 
an Individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate and its Subcontractors shall 
make available to Covered Entity the information required to provide an accounting of disclosures to 
enable Covered Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 C.F.R. § 164.528 and 42 U.S.C. § 17935(c). 
Business Associate shall notify Covered Entity within five (5) days of receipt of a request by an Individual 
or other requesting party for an accounting of disclosures of PHI from an Individual. 

2.9 Delegated Responsibilities. To the extent that Business Associate carries out one or 
more of Covered Entity's obligations under Subpart E of 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Business Associate must 
comply with the requirements of Subpart E that apply to the Covered Entity in the performance of such 
obligations. 

2.10 Availability of Internal Practices, Books, and Records to Government. Business 
Associate agrees to make internal practices, books, and records, including policies and procedures and 
PHI, relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, created, maintained, or transmitted by 
Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity promptly available for inspection and copying to the 
Secretary, in a time and manner designated by the Secretary, for purposes of the Secretary determining 
Covered Entity's or Business Associate's compliance with the HIPAA Rules. In addition, Business 
Associate agrees that Covered Entity may have the right to audit and monitor all applicable activities and 
records of Business Associate to determine Business Associate's compliance with the HIPAA Rules and if 
requested in writing by Covered Entity, shall promptly make available to Covered Entity such books, 
records, or other information relating to the Use and Disclosure of PHI provided, created, received, 
maintained or transmitted by Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity for such purpose. 



2.11 Minimum Necessary. Business Associate (and its Subcontractors) shall, to the extent 
practicable, limit its request, Use, or Disclosure of PHI to the minimum amount of PHI necessary to 
accomplish the purpose of the request, Use or Disclosure, in accordance with 42 U.S.C. § 17935(b) and 
45 C.F.R. § 164.502(b)(1) or any other applicable guidance issued thereunder. 

2.12 Acknowledgement. Business Associate acknowledges that it is obligated by law to 
comply, and represents and warrants that it shall comply, with HIPAA, the HITECH Act, and the HIPAA 
Rules applicable to Business Associates. Business Associate shall comply with all applicable state 
privacy and security laws, to the extent that such state laws are not preempted by HIPAA or the HITECH 
Act. 

3.1 

ARTICLE Ill 

OBLIGATIONS OF COVERED ENTITY 

Covered Entity's Obligations. 

3.1.1 Covered Entity shall provide Business Associate with a copy of its Notice of 
Privacy Practices, and shall promptly notify Business Associate in writing of any limitation(s) in the Notice 
of Privacy Practices of Covered Entity under 45 C.F.R. 164.520, to the extent that such limitation may 
affect Business Associate's Use or Disclosure of PHI. 

3.1.2 Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate in writing of any changes 
in, or revocation of, the permission by an individual to Use or Disclose his or her PHI, to the extent that 
such changes may affect Business Associate's Use or Disclosure of PHI. 

3.1.3 In the event Covered Entity agrees with an Individual to any restrictions on Use 
or Disclosure of PHI pursuant to 45 C.F.R. § 164.522(a} or if Covered Entity determines that it is obligated 

· to accommodate a reasonable request of an Individual to receive communications of PHI pursuant to 45
C.F.R. § 164.522(b}, Covered Entity promptly shall notify Business Associate In writing of the same, as
well as any revocation or modification of the same, and Business Associate thereupon shall observe such
restriction or accommodation (or revocation or modification, if any, thereof) to the extent applicable to its
Use or Disclosure of PHI hereunder, notwithstanding any other provision hereof, except as otherwise
required by law.

3.1.4 Covered Entity agrees to obtain any consent or authorization that may be 
required under HIPAA or any other applicable law and/or regulation prior to furnishing Business Associate 
with PHI. 

3.1.5 Covered Entity shall not request Business Associate to make any Use or 
Disclosure of PHI that would not be permitted under HIPAA if made by Covered Entity. Covered Entity 
agrees to fulfill its obligations under this BAA In a timely manner. 

ARTICLE IV 

TERM AND TERMINATION 

4.1 Term. Subject to the provisions of Section 4.1, the term of this BAA shall be the term of 
any Underlying Agreement. This Agreement shall continue in effect until the later of (a) termination or 
expiration of the Underlying Agreement or (b) when all of the PHI provided by Covered Entity to Business 
Associate or created, received, maintained, or transmitted by Business Associate on behalf of Covered 
Entity is destroyed or returned to Covered Entity in accordance with Section 4(4) below. 

4.2 Termination of Underlying Agreement. 



4.2.1 A breach by Business Associate of any provision of this BAA shall provide 
grounds for immediate termination of the Underlying Agreement, any provision in the Underlying 
Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding. 

4.2.2 Either party may terminate this BAA and the Underlying Agreement without 
penalty, effective immediately, if: (i) either party is named as a defendant in a criminal proceeding for a 
violation of HIPAA, the HITECH Act, the HIPAA Rules or other security or privacy laws or (ii) a finding or 
stipulation that either party has violated any standard or requirement of HIPAA, the HITECH Act, the 
HIPAA Rules or other security or privacy laws is made in any administrative or civil proceeding in which 
the party has been joined. 

4.3 Termination for Cause. In addition to and notwithstanding the termination provisions set 
forth in any Underlying Agreement, upon either party's knowledge of a material breach or violation of this 
BAA by the other party, the terminating party shall either: 

4.3.1 Notify the breaching party of the breach in writing, and provide an opportunity for 
the breaching party to cure the breach or end the violation within ten (10) business days of such 
notification; provided that if breaching party fails to cure the breach or end the violation within such time 
period to the satisfaction of the terminating party, the terminating party may terminate this BAA and any 
Underlying Agreement upon thirty (30) calendar days written notice to the breaching party; or 

4.3.2 Upon thirty (30) calendar day written notice to the breaching party, immediately 
terminate this BAA and any Underlying Agreement if the terminating party determines that such breach 
cannot be cured. 

4.4 Disposition of Protected Health Information Upon Termination or Expiration. 

4.4.1 Upon termination or expiration of this BAA, Business Associate shall return or 
destroy all PHI received from, or created or received by Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity, 
that Business Associate still maintains in any form and retain no copies of such PHI. If Covered Entity 
requests that Business Associate return PHI, PHI shall be returned in a mutually agreed upon format and 
timeframe. 

4.4.2 If return or destruction is not feasible, Business Associate shall: (a) retain only 
that PHI which is necessary for Business Associate to continue its proper management and 
administration or to carry out its legal responsibilities; (b) return to Covered Entity the remaining PHI that 
the Business Associate still maintains in any form; (c) continue to extend the protections of this BAA to 
the PHI for as long as Business Associate retains the PHI; (d) limit further Uses and Disclosures of such 
PHI to those purposes that make the return or destruction of the PHI not feasible and subject to the same 
conditions set out in Sections 2.1 and 2.2 above, which applied prior to termination; and (e) return to 
Covered Entity the PHI retained by Business Associate when it is no longer needed by Business 
Associate for its proper management and administration or to carry out its legal responsibilities. 

ARTICLE V 

MISCELLANEOUS 

5.1 Regulatory References. A reference in this BAA to a section or other part of HIPAA, the 
HIPAA Rules, or the HITECH Act means, as of any point in time, the section or part as it may be 
amended or in effect at such time. 

5.2 Amendment. The Parties agree to take such action as is necessary to amend this BAA 
from time to time as necessary for Covered Entity to implement its obligations pursuant to HIPAA, the 
HIPAA Rules, or the HITECH Act. 



5.3 Relationship to Underlying Agreement Provisions. In the event that a provision of this 
BAA is contrary to a provision of an Underlying Agreement, the provision of this BAA shall control. 
Otherwise, this BAA shall be construed under, and in accordance with, the terms of such Underlying 
Agreement, and shall be considered an amendment of and supplement to such Underlying Agreement. 

5.4 Headings. The headings of the paragraphs and sections of this BAA are inserted solely 
for convenience of reference and are not a part or intended to govern, limit or aid in the construction of 
any term or provision hereof. 

5.5 Equitable Relief. Business Associate understands and acknowledges that a Disclosure 
or misappropriation of any PHI in violation of this BAA may cause Covered Entity irreparable harm, the 
amount of which may be difficult to ascertain, and therefore agrees that Covered Entity shall have the 
right to apply to a court of competent jurisdiction for specific performance and/or an order restraining and 
enjoining any such further Disclosure or Breach and for such other relief as Covered Entity shall deem 
appropriate. Such right of Covered Entity is to be in addition to the remedies otherwise available to 
Covered Entity at law or in equity. 

5.6 Insurance. In addition to any general and/or professional liability insurance required of 
Business Associate, Business Associate agrees to obtain and maintain, at its sole expense, liability 
insurance on an occurrence basis, covering any and all claims, liabilities, demands, damages, losses, 
costs and expenses arising from a breach of the security or privacy obligations of Business Associate, its 
officers, employees, agents and Subcontractors under this BAA. Such insurance coverage will be 
maintained for the term of this BAA, and a copy of such policy or a certificate evidencing the policy shall 
be provided to Covered Entity at Covered Entity's request. 

5.7 Assistance in Litigation or Administrative Proceedings, Business Associate shall make 
itself and any Subcontractors or members of Its Workforce assisting Business Associate in the 
performance of its obligations under this BAA reasonably available to Covered Entity, to testify as 
witnesses, or otherwise, in the event of litigation or administrative proceedings being commenced against 
Covered Entity, its directors, officers or employees based upon a claim of violation of the HIPAA or other 
applicable laws relating to privacy or security by Business Associate or its Subcontractors. 

5.8 Indemnification. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary which may be contained in any 
Underlying Agreement, each party hereby agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the other party and its 
respective officers, directors, managers, members, employees and agents from and against any and all 
actual losses, damages, fines, penalties, claims or causes of action and associated expenses (including, 
without limitation, costs of judgments, settlements, court costs and attorney's fees) resulting from either 
party's (including its employees, directors, officers, agents, or other members of its Workforce, and its 
Subcontractors) breach of PHI or violation of the terms of this BAA, including but not limited to failure of 
each party to perform its obligations under this BAA, or to comply with HIPAA or applicable state privacy 
or security law. 

5.9 Legal Actions. Promptly, but no later than five (5) business days after notice thereof, 
each party shall advise the other party of any actual or potential action, proceeding, regulatory or 
governmental orders or actions, or any material threat thereof that becomes l<nown to it that may affect 
the interests of the other party or jeopardize this BAA, and of any facts and circumstances that may be 
pertinent to the prosecution or defense of any such actual or potential legal action or proceeding, except 
to the extent prohibited by law. 

5.10 Notice of Request or Subpoena for Data. Business Associate agrees to notify Covered 
Entity promptly, but no later than five (5) business days after Business Associate's receipt of any request 
or subpoena for PHI or an accounting thereof. Business Associate shall promptly comply with Covered 
Entity's instructions for responding to any such request or subpoena, unless such Covered Entity 
instructions would prejudice Business Associate. To the extent that Covered Entity decides to assume 
responsibility for challenging the validity of such request, Business Associate agrees to reasonably 



cooperate with Covered Entity in such challenge. The provisions of this Section shall survive the 
termination of this BAA. 

5.11 Requests from Secretary. Promptly, but no later than five (5) calendar days after notice 
thereof, Business Associate shall advise Covered Entity of any inquiry by the Secretary concerning any 
actual or alleged violation of the Privacy Rule or the Security Rule. 

5.12 Notices. Any notices required or permitted to be given hereunder by either Party to the 
other shall be given in writing: (1) by personal delivery; (2) by electronic mail or facsimile with 
confirmation sent by United States first class registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt 
requested; (3) by bonded courier or by a nationally recognized overnight delivery service; or (4) by United 
States first class registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt, in each case, addressed to a 
Party on the signature page(s) to this BAA, or to such other addresses as the Parties may request in 
writing by notice given pursuant to this Section 5.12. Notices shall be deemed received on the earliest of 
personal delivery; upon delivery by electronic facsimile with confirmation from the transmitting machine 
that the transmission was completed; twenty-four (24) hours following deposit with a bonded courier or 
overnight delivery service; or seventy-two (72) hours following deposit in the U.S. mail as required herein. 

Covered Entity's Notice Address: 

Kern Medical Center 
1700 Mount Vernon Avenue 
Bakersfield, CA 93306 
Attn: Chief Executive Officer 

Business Associate's Notice Address: 

TIMS Medical by Foresight Imaging 
1 Executive Drive, Suite 202 
Chelmsford, MA 01824 
Attn: Legal Department 

5.13 Relationship of Parties. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in any Underlying 
Agreement, Business Associate is an independent Consultant and not an agent of Covered Entity under 
this BAA. Business Associate has the sole right and obligation to supervise, manage, contract, direct, 
procure, perform or cause to be performed all Business Associate obligations under this BAA. 

5.14 Survival. To the extent that Business Associate retains PHI, the respective rights and 
obligations of the Parties set forth in Sections 2.3, 4.4, 5.8, and 5.10 of this BAA shall survive the 
termination, expiration, cancellation, or other conclusion of the BAA or any Underlying Agreement. 

5.15 Interpretation. Any ambiguity in this BAA shall be interpreted to permit the Parties to 
comply with HIPAA, the HITECH Act, and the HIPAA Rules. 

5.16 Governing Law: Applicable Law and Venue. This BAA shall be construed in accordance 
with the laws of the State of California applicable to agreements made and to be performed in such state. 
Any dispute between the Parties shall be brought before the Superior Court of Kern County, California, 
which shall have jurisdiction over all such claims. 

5.17 Waiver of Provisions. Any waiver of any terms and conditions hereof must be in writing 
and signed by the Parties hereto. A waiver of any of the terms and conditions hereof shall not be 
construed as a waiver of any other term or condition hereof. 

5.18 Assignment and Delegation. Neither this BAA nor any of the rights or duties under this 
BAA may be assigned or delegated by either Party hereto. 

5.19 Disclaimer. Neither Party represents or warrants that compliance by the other Party with 
this BAA, HIPAA, the HIPAA Rules, or the HITECH Act will be adequate or satisfactory for the other 
Party's own purposes. Each Party is solely responsible for its own decisions regarding the safeguarding 
of PHI. 



5.20 Certification. To the extent that Covered Entity determines that such examination is 
necessary to comply with Covered Entity's legal obligations pursuant to HIPAA relating to certification of 
its security practices, Covered Entity or its authorized agents or Consultants may, at Covered Entity's 
expense, and no more than once annually unless required by an outside regulatory agency, examine 
Business Associate's facilities, systems, procedures, and records, as may be necessary for such agents 
or Consultants lo certify to Covered Entity the extent to which Business Associate's security safeguards 
comply with HIPAA, the HIPAA Rules, the HITECH Act, or this BAA. 

5.21 Counterparts. This BAA may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which 
shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same agreement, 
binding on both Parties hereto. 

The Parties hereto have executed this BAA as of the Effective Date. 

COVERED ENTITY: 

The Kern County Hospital Authority 

Title: Chairman, Board of Governors 
Date: ___________ _ 

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE: 

TIMS 

Tille: 
Date: 0/ /cJ /2 (I 2 / 

, . 

 APPROV AS TO FORM 









Status:

Quote Date:

Quote  Number:

Quote

 110323

11/24/2021

TIMS Support Quote Account:  Kern Medical Center

Main Phone:

Fax:

(661)326-2000

FOB: FOB Factory

Ship Via: UPS Ground

1700 Mt. Vernon Ave.

Bakersfield, CA 93306

USA

Bill To:

Attn. To:

Address:

Ship To:

Attn. To:

Address: 1700 Mt. Vernon Ave.

Bakersfield, CA 93306

USA

Kern Medical Center Kern Medical Center

Item Description Ext. PriceDiscounted Unit PricePriceQuantity

081000-555 TIMS Support & Maintenance 4 Year Bundle  1 $10,780.00 $7,984.00$7,984.00

Created By: Grand Total: $7,984.00Kathleen Demers

Support & Maintenance Bundle, period covering 4 years, (12/29/2021 –12/29/2025)

 

Support Bundle includes 26% discount vs. annual renewal

(Total amount on quote paid up front).  

Support for serial# 8000709

 

Send POs to KDEMERS@TIMS.COM  (Kathleen Demers 978-458-4624 ext.252)

COMMENTS:

TIMS Support & Maintenance:

     - Technical Support via telephone, email and WebEx (Online)

     - Normal business hours (8:00 A.M. - 8:00 P.M. Eastern Standard Time)

     - Two business day system replacement warranty

     - Software upgrades as available via download

     - Onsite support is not included

PURCHASE ORDER REQUIREMENTS:

     - All orders must have an authorized signature.

     - The "Bill To" and "Ship To" addresses must be clearly marked on the 

        Purchase Order.

     - The purchase order must designate by what method the order will be shipped 

        (UPS, Federal Express, etc.) and include a freight collect account number .

     - All International shipments require a freight forwarder account number to ship.

     - Foresight part numbers must be referenced on the purchase order.

STANDARD TERMS:

     - With approved credit, payment terms are Net 30 from date of invoice.  Otherwise,

         payment terms are payment in advance of shipment via Wire Transfer, Check, or 

         MasterCard/Visa with a 3% convenience fee.

     - All shipments are FOB Factory (customer pays shipping charges)

     - Standard delivery is 2-4 weeks ARO unless otherwise indicated.

        We confirm all orders. This confirmation also indicates an estimated ship date.

     - This quotation is valid for 30 Days.

     - Any changes to these Terms & Conditions requires a re-quotation.

     - All amounts are in US dollars.

Foresight Imaging * 1 Executive Drive, Suite 202, Chelmsford, MA 01824

Tel: 978-458-4624 * Fax: 978-458-5488 * info@tims.com * www.tims.com



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

  
January 19, 2022 
 
  
Subject:  Proposed First Amendment to the Enhanced Purchasing Services Agreement 2017-002A with 
Quorum Purchasing Advantage LLC (“QPA”) 
 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 
 
Summary: 
 
Kern Medical is requesting your Board approve the proposed First Amendment to the Enhanced Purchasing 
Services Agreement with QPA to provide for the extension of Kern Medical’s Group Purchasing Organization 
(GPO) membership with the HealthTrust Purchasing Group and Quorum Health Resources Vendors and Pricing.  
 
The GPO membership is required to maintain “best pricing” for all goods and services purchased for all areas of 
patient care and hospital administration.   
 
The parties have agreed to the following compensation arrangement as it relates to Kern Medical’s purchase, 
license, and/or lease of such eligible supplies in accordance with the below schedule: 20% administrative fee 
share if annualized HealthTrust spend is greater than $20 million, 30% administrative fee share if annualized 
HealthTrust spend is greater than $30 million, 40% administrative fee share if annualized HealthTrust spend is 
greater than $40 million.  The ‘spend’ shall be measured every 12 months from the effective date of the 
proposed First Amendment, through the term of the current contract (each a “Measurement Period”). The first 
payment will be made within 90 days after the first Measurement Period and each 90 days thereafter, effective 
February 1, 2022. 
 
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board approve the proposed First Amendment to the Enhanced 
Purchasing Services Agreement for a term of 60 months, effective February 1, 2022, and authorize the Chairman 
to sign. 
 
 
 
 



Page 1 of 2 
Kern Medical Center 

First Amendment to Enhanced Purchasing Services Agreement Bakersfield, CA 

11.22.2021

FIRST AMENDMENT TO  

ENHANCED PURCHASING SERVICES AGREEMENT 

This Amendment to the Enhanced Purchasing Services Agreement (the “First Amendment”), by 

and between Kern County Hospital Authority on behalf of Kern Medical Center (“Hospital”) and Quorum 

Purchasing Advantage, LLC (“QPA”), is executed as of the last date below the parties’ respective signatures, 

but is effective as February 1, 2022 (the “First Amendment Effective Date”).  Both Hospital and QPA are 

individually referred to herein as the “Party” and collectively referred to herein as the “Parties”. 

WITNESSETH 

WHEREAS, Hospital and QPA (as assigned by Quorum Health Resources, LLC) are Parties to 

that certain Enhanced Purchasing Services Agreement effective February 1, 2017 (referred to herein as the 

“Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, Hospital and QPA, marketed as PLUS, a QHR Health Company, desire to amend and 

extend the Agreement as set forth below. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained herein, 

the Parties agree as follows: 

1. The Term field as set forth on the Cover Page shall be deleted.

2. The Expiration Date as set forth on the Cover Page shall be January 31, 2027.

3. Section 6.1 Term shall be amended so that each Renewal Term is for a three (3) year period.

4. Section 2.2.2.1 Compliance Incentive Payments shall be amended and restated in its

entirety as follows:

2.2.2.1 Administrative Fee Share Back Rebate. 

The Parties have agreed to the following compensation arrangement as it relates to  
Hospital’s purchase, license, or lease of such eligible supplies in accordance with the  
below schedule:

20 % admin fee share if annualized HealthTrust spend is greater than $20M  
30 % admin fee share if annualized HealthTrust spend is greater than $30M 
40 % admin fee share if annualized HealthTrust spend is greater than $40M+ 

Spend shall be measured every twelve (12) months from the First Amendment Effective 
Date, through the term of the current contract (each a “Measurement Period”).  

The first payment will be made within ninety (90) days after the first Measurement  
Period and each ninety (90) days thereafter. 

5. Except as set forth above, all other terms and conditions of the Agreement shall remain in full

force and effect.



Page 2 of 2 
Kern Medical Center 

First Amendment to Enhanced Purchasing Services Agreement Bakersfield, CA 

11.22.2021

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this First Amendment to be effective on the 

First Amendment Effective Date. 

HOSPITAL: Kern County Hospital Authority 
on behalf of Kern Medical Center

By:  _______________________________ 

Printed Name: _______________________ 

Title: ______________________________ 

Date: ______________________________ 

QPA:  Quorum Purchasing Advantage, LLC   

By: _______________________________ 

Printed Name: __                                                     _ 

Title:  

Date: ______________________________ 

Dwayne Gunter
CEO

1-12-2022

Russell Bigler
Chairman, Board of Governors
01/19/2022

hochsteins1
Text Box
Approved As To Form:Legal ServicesShannon HochsteinKern County Hospital Authority



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 
 
January 19, 2022 
 
Subject:  Proposed Service Request with Presidio Networked Solutions Group LLC for information 
technology network remediation    
 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 
 
Summary:   
 
Kern Medical requests your Board approve the proposed Service Request with Presidio Networked Solutions 
Group LLC for a specified scope of work that includes network remediation and technical support for Kern 
Medical. The remediation work will be completed to finalize configurations for disaster recovery and prepare 
Kern Medical’s network for upcoming infrastructure projects.  
 
The Service Request is effective January 19, 2022, with a total cost based on actual hours of $92,250 plus 
applicable taxes.   
 
Although the Service Request does include the terms of the Master Service Agreement (Agt. #053-2018), it also 
contains stand-alone terms that are non-standard and cannot be approved as to form by Counsel. The non-
standard terms include a limitation of liability to the fees of the Service Request and a broad and vague 
indemnification for 911 calls that are not limited to Kern Medical-controlled entities.  Efforts were made to 
negotiate the deletion of this offending provision to no avail. The Information Systems department is aware of 
the added liability and has indicated it will make accommodations while the services are being performed to 
limit the exposure. 
 
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board approve the Service Request with Presidio Networked Solutions 
Group LLC for a specific scope of work that includes network remediation and technical support for Kern 
Medical, effective January 19, 2022, in an amount not to exceed $92,250 plus applicable taxes, and authorize 
the Chairman to sign.  
 



Presidio Service Request PRESIDIO. 

General Information 

Client Name Kern Medical Center Account Manager Thomas Driver 

Contact Name Craig Witmer Solution Architect Chris Sanchez 

Contact Phone 661-645-9692 Opportunity# 1003221108800 

Contact Address 1700 Mt Vernon Ave Bakersfield CA 93306-4018 US Date 08-Dec-2021

Contact Email craig.witmer@kemmedical.com Service Title Kern T&M: Remediation and Support Hours 

Technology Area vCollaboration vOata Center -.!Network vSecurity D Other: 

Type of Request T&M 

Presidio Networked Solutions Group LLC ("Presidio") is pleased to provide the following services to Kern Medical Center 
("Client"). This Service Request defines the scope of work to be accomplished by Presidio. The tasks to be performed by 
Presidio are defined and the responsibilities of Presidio and Client are contained herein as well. 

Description of Services 

1. Confirm 10.2.0.0/16 network is presented at 14 remote sites
o Verify BGP configuration

• AT&T ASE WAN
• Spectrum EV LAN

2. Move WAN links from 4500 to Nexus 9K
o KMC
o Verify at COL

3. Configure Gerner router changes/deployment for Kern Medical
o KMC - add 2 Gerner provided routers to network
o COL - add 1 Gerner provided router to network
o Verify Gerner link failover

4. Move IDF fiber uplinks from 6800 to 9K at KMC
o KMC will work on port matrix and verify dual fiber connection to all IDF closets

5. Verify fail over for P2P on 10GB links
o ATT and Spectrum P2P are now 10GB links - load balance links utilize both links for traffic. And setup

failovers
6. UCS Chassis network

o Review configuration and recommend changes within the VCenter configuration
7. Assist in any other tasks as directed by Kern Medical Center

Assumptions 

1. The Master Services Agreement ("MSA") executed between the parties on 15-Aug-2018 governs this scope of work
(HA Agmt. #053-2018). In the case of a conflict between the language of this agreement and the executed MSA the
language of the MSA shall supersede. All changes to this agreement must be executed in writing and accepted by both
parties, as indicated by authorized signature, prior to the execution of work.

2. Modifications in project scope will necessitate a project change request (PCR).
3. This Service Request supersedes any previous scope discussion or agreement including "Vision Deck" PowerPoint

proposals, emails, or verbal communications.
4. Client has read and agrees with all items contained or omitted within this Service Request.
5. Any items or tasks not explicitly listed as in-scope within this Service Request are considered to be outside of the

scope and not associated with this Service Request and price.
6. Client's acceptance of all deliverables described in this agreement and of the completion of the project shall be in

writing. Deliverable acceptance shall be in the form of an email or signature (as applicable) and final project
acceptance shall be in the "Project Completion" form, provided by the project manager. If acceptance is refused, the
Client shall provide, in writing to Presidio, a reason for refusal. Presidio shall address the issue before subsequent
work is undertaken.

7. Work shall be warrantied for 30 days after completion. Product is warrantied per manufacturer warranty policies.
Presidio will hold no responsibility for any changes made "after" releasing the system to the Client. Presidio expressly
disclaims any liability for non-performance or the delivery of poor quality of services resulting from errors or omissions
in information provided to Presidio by Client, whether or not Presidio knew or should have known of any such errors or
omissions, or whether Presidio was responsible for or participated in gathering of such information.

8. IN NO EVENT SHALL EITHER PARTY BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER PARTY FOR ANY INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL,
SPECIAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, EXEMPLARY, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES OF ANY KIND WHATSOEVER, ARISING IN
CONTRACT, TORT OR OTHERWISE, EVEN IF ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. EACH
PARTY'S ENTIRE LIABILITY AND EXCLUSIVE REMEDY FOR DAMAGES FROM ANY CAUSE WHATSOEVER,

Kern T&M: Remediation and Support Hours Confidential and P roprietary Page 1 of 4 



Presidio Service Request PRESIDIO. 

INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, NONPERFORMANCE OR MISREPRESENTATION, AND REGARDLESS OF 
THE FORM OF ACTIONS, SHALL BE LIMITED TO THE AMOUNT WHICH HAS BEEN ACTUALLY PAID TO 
PRESIDIO BY CLIENT HEREUNDER. 

9. During the term of this Agreement and for one (1) year following the completion of this project, neither party shall (a)
knowingly solicit, offer to hire, or hire an employee, agent, or contractor of the other party, or (b) assist any third party
who wishes to solicit, offer to hire, or hire an employee, agents, or contractor of the Other Party without a prior written
consent of the Other Party.

10. PLEASE READ CAREFULLY. IT IS THE CUSTOMER'S RESPONSIBILITY TO UNDERSTAND ITS OBLIGATIONS
TO ENABLE E911 SERVICE.

1.1 E911 SERVICE. UNDER RULES ADOPTED BY THE FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION AS 
WELL AS PURSUANT TO VARIOUS STATE LAWS, CERTAIN MUL Tl-LINE TELEPHONE SYSTEMS 
("SYSTEM") MUST ENABLE E911 SERVICE BY PERMITTING CALLERS TO DIAL 911 AND BY 
PROVIDING CERTAIN INFORMATION ABOUT THE CALLER'S LOCATION TO EMERGENCY 
RESPONDERS (COLLECTIVELY, "THE E911 RULES"). CUSTOMER ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES 
THAT THE SALE, INSTALLATION, AND/OR OPERATION OF THE SYSTEM BY PRESIDIO ARE 
FUNCTIONS PERFORMED BY PRESIDIO UNDER THE CONTROL AND DIRECTION OF THE 
CUSTOMER. CUSTOMER FURTHER ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT IT CONTROLS AND 
OVERSEES IMPLEMENTATION OF THE SYSTEM AFTER INSTALLATION AND THAT IT IS 
RESPONSIBLE FOR COMPLIANCE WITH THE E911 RULES. 

1.2 E911 CHARACTERISTICS. CUSTOMER ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THE SYSTEM HAS CERTAIN 
CHARACTERISTICS THAT DISTINGUISH IT FROM TRADITIONAL, LEGACY, CIRCUIT-SWITCHED 
SERVICES. THESE CHARACTERISTICS MAY MAKE THE SYSTEM UNSUITABLE FOR SOME 
CUSTOMERS. CUSTOMER SHOULD CAREFULLY EVALUATE CUSTOMER'S OWN CIRCUMSTANCES 
WHEN DECIDING WHETHER TO RELY SOLELY UPON THE SYSTEM TO ENABLE E911 SERVICE. 
CUSTOMER ACKNOWLEDGES THAT IT IS CUSTOMER'S RESPONSIBILITY TO DETERMINE THE 
TECHNOLOGY OR COMBINATION OF TECHNOLOGIES BEST SUITED TO MEET CUSTOMER'S 
EMERGENCY CALLING NEEDS, AND TO MAKE THE NECESSARY PROVISIONS FOR ACCESS TO E911 
SERVICE (SUCH AS MAINTAINING A CONVENTIONAL LANDLINE PHONE OR WIRELESS PHONE AS A 
BACKUP MEANS OF COMPLETING EMERGENCY CALLS). 

1.3 E911 LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. CUSTOMER ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT PRESIDIO WILL 
HAVE NO LIABILITY WHATSOEVER IN THE EVENT THAT: (A) CUSTOMER OR ANY OTHER CALLER 
USING THE SYSTEM IS UNABLE TO PLACE, OR COMPLETE, A CALL TO 911 OR ACCESS E911 
SERVICE; (B) EMERGENCY RESPONDERS DO NOT RESPOND, OR DO NOT RESPOND TO THE 
LOCATION AT WHICH THE SYSTEM, CUSTOMER, OR CALLER IS PHYSICALLY PRESENT OR REQUIRE 
EMERGENCY SERVICES; OR (C) CUSTOMER FAILS TO COMPLY WITH THE E911 RULES. UN DER NO 
CIRCUMSTANCES WHATSOEVER WILL PRESIDIO HAVE ANY LIABILITY ASSOCIATED WITH E911 
SERVICE, INCLUDING, AND WITHOUT LIMITATION, IN THE EVENT OF: (A) LOSS OF ELECTRICAL 
POWER; (B) LOSS OF INTERNET CONNECTIVITY; (C) DEFECTIVE OR MISCONFIGURED CUSTOMER 
PREMISES EQUIPMENT; (D) NETWORK CONGESTION; (E) DELAYS ASSOCIATED WITH THE 
DELIVERY OF CALLER LOCATION INFORMATION; (F) RESTRICTIONS CREATED BY NON-VOICE 
EQUIPMENT; (G) RELOCATED EQUIPMENT, INCLUDING OUTSIDE OF THE UNITED STATES; (H) THE 
SIMULTANEOUS USE OF ONE LINE WITH MULTIPLE PIECES OF EQUIPMENT; (I) FAILURE OF 
EMERGENCY RESPONSE CENTERS TO ANSWER A 911 CALL; (J) FAILURES OF ANY THIRD PARTIES 
THAT ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR ROUTING 911 CALLS; (K) THE USE OF NON-NATIVE TELEPHONE 
NUMBERS; OR (L) ANY FORCE MAJEURE EVENT. CUSTOMER ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT 
THE LIMITATION OF PRESIDIO'S LIABILITY IS A MATERIAL TERM TO THIS AGREEMENT, AND THAT IT 
WOULD NOT OTHERWISE ENTER INTO THIS AGREEMENT WITHOUT THIS LIMITATION, AND THAT 
CUSTOMER AGREES THAT THESE LIMITATIONS ARE REASONABLE. 

1.4 E911 INDEMNITY. CUSTOMER AGREES TO DEFEND, INDEMNIFY, AND HOLD HARMLESS PRESIDIO, 
ITS OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, EMPLOYEES, AFFILIATES AND AGENTS FROM ANY AND ALL CLAIMS, 
LOSSES, DAMAGES, FINES, PENALTIES, COSTS AND EXPENSES (INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, 
REASONABLE ATTORNEYS' FEES) BY, OR ON BEHALF OF, CUSTOMER OR ANY THIRD PARTY OR 
ANY CALLER USING THE SYSTEM RELATING TO E911 SERVICE, INCLUDING, AND WITHOUT 
LIMITATION, THE INABILITY OF A CALLER TO PLACE OR COMPLETE A 911 CALL OR THE FAILURE OF 
CUSTOMER TO DELIVER CUSTOMER LOCATION INFORMATION AS REQUIRED BY THE E911 RULES. 

11. Time and Material engagements do not provide defined deliverables. To the extent that documentation or other task
related materials or deliverables are required, time to prepare, deliver, and review those deliverables will accrue
against the hours purchased.

12. Hours for Time and Material services are best effort estimates and may require additional hours in order to satisfy the
request.

13. For Time and Materials services, it is the Client's responsibility to direct the activities of the Presidio consultant through
the creation of a prioritized Task List or similar documented instruction. It is recommended that this be provided to the
Presidio Engineer 48 hours prior to the first day of services.

14. Time and Material Services will be invoiced monthly and will be based on actual hours incurred.

Client Responsibilities 

Kern T&M: Remediation and Support Hours Confidential and Proprietary Page 2 of 4 







 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 
 
January 19, 2022 
 
Subject: Proposed Retroactive Side Letter of Agreement with Service Employees International Union, 
Local 521 
 
Recommended Action: Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 
 
Summary:   
 
Kern Medical requests your Board retroactively approve the proposed Side Letter of Agreement with 
Service Employees International Union, Local 521 (SEIU). The parties have previously entered into a 
Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) regarding the wages, hours, and other terms and conditions 
of employment of the classifications within bargaining units 1 through 6, as more particularly set forth 
in Section 2 of the MOU, for the period September 19, 2018 through October 31, 2020.   
 
Pursuant to Senate Bill No. 3 (SB 3), an act to amend Sections 245.5, 246, and 1182.12 of the Labor Code, 
the state minimum wage increased to $15 per hour for employers with 26 or more employees on January 1, 
2022. The proposed Side Letter allows the Authority to implement minimum wage increases for 357 
employees in 55 job classifications throughout the organization. The parties have agreed that the 
minimum wage rate range increases will be applied retroactively to January 1, 2022, the effective date of 
the minimum wage increase required by state law. The minimum wage rate range increases will be paid out 
to those employees affected by the minimum wage increase commencing January 25, 2022 (pay period 
2022-01). Except as provided in the Side Letter, nothing will be construed to expand the rights of any 
employee affected the minimum wage increase. 
 
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board retroactively approve the Side Letter of Agreement with 
Service Employees International Union, Local 521, effective January 1, 2022, and authorize the 
Chairman to sign. 



1 
 

SIDE LETTER OF AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
AND 

SERVICE EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL UNION, LOCAL 521 
 

 This Side Letter of Agreement (“Side Letter”) between Kern County Hospital Authority 
(“Authority”), a local unit of government, which owns and operates Kern Medical Center, and 
Service Employees International Union, Local 521 (“SEIU”), is entered into this _____ day of 
__________, 2022, with respect to the following: 
 

WHEREAS, the parties have previously entered into a Memorandum of Understanding 
(“MOU”) regarding the wages, hours, and other terms and conditions of employment of the 
classifications within bargaining units 1 through 6, as more particularly set forth in Section 2 of the 
MOU, for the period September 19, 2018 through October 31, 2020; and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Senate Bill No. 3 (SB 3), an act to amend Sections 245.5, 246, and 
1182.12 of the Labor Code, relating to labor, the state minimum wage increased to $15 per hour 
for employers with 26 or more employees effective January 1, 2022; and  

 
WHEREAS, Authority is subject to the minimum wage increase, effective January 1, 2022, 

as required by state law; and 
 
WHEREAS, on Wednesday, December 22, 2021, after negotiating in good faith, the parties 

agreed to minimum wage rate range increases for those Authority employees affected by the 
minimum wage increase; and   
 
 WHEREAS, during the process of negotiating with SEIU to come to agreement on these 
minimum wage rate range increases, the parties agreed that, in order to ensure clarity and to 
memorialize the agreement, a Side Letter to the MOU should be executed articulating the intent 
of Authority to increase the minimum wage for those employees affected by the minimum wage 
increase on January 1, 2022; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the parties agree that the minimum wage rate range increases will be applied 
retroactively to January 1, 2022, the effective date of the minimum wage increase required by 
state law;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions hereinafter 
set forth and incorporating by this reference the foregoing recitals, the parties agree as follows: 

 
(A) Exhibit A, Minimum Wage Rate Range Increases, Effective January 1, 2022, attached 

hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, shall be made part of the MOU.   
 

(B) Nothing in this Side Letter shall be construed to expand the rights of any employee 
affected by the minimum wage increase, except as provided herein. 



2 
 

(C) The provisions of this Side Letter shall be effective Saturday, January 1, 2022.  
 

(D) The minimum wage rate range increases shall be paid out to those employees affected by 
the minimum wage increase commencing January 25, 2022 (pay period 2022-01).  
 

(E) SEIU understands and agrees that it will not file any grievance with Authority or an Unfair 
Practice Charge with California Public Employment Relations Board on any matter 
pertaining to the minimum wage increase, as a result of Authority’s actions to implement 
the minimum wage rate range increases as agreed to by the parties on December 22, 
2021.   
 

(F) All capitalized terms used in this Side Letter and not otherwise defined, shall have the 
meaning ascribed thereto in the MOU. 
 

(G) This Side Letter shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the 
state of California. 
 

(H) This Side Letter may be amended only by mutual, written consent of duly authorized 
representatives of the parties.  
 

(I) This Side Letter may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an 
original, but all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 
 

(J) In the event of any inconsistency between the provisions of this Side Letter and any 
provision of the MOU, the terms of this Side Letter shall govern and control. 
 

[Intentionally left blank] 
  



3 
 

IN WITNESS TO THE FOREGOING, the parties have executed this Side Letter as of the 
day and year first written above. 
 
Service Employees International Union, Local 521 
 
 
By_________________________ 
    Yvonne Davila 
    Director, Region 5 
 
Kern County Hospital Authority 
 
 
By_________________________ 
    Chairman 
    Board of Governors 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 
 
 
By_________________________ 
    Scott Thygerson 
    Chief Executive Officer 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
LEGAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
 
 
By_________________________ 
    Vice President & General Counsel 
    Kern County Hospital Authority 
  



4 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

EXHIBIT A, MINIMUM WAGE RATE RANGE INCREASES, 
EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2022 

 
 
 



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 
 
January 19, 2022 
 
Subject:  Proposed Engagement Letter from Moss-Adams, LLP 
 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 
 
Summary:   
 
Kern Medical requests your Board approve the proposed Engagement Letter from Moss-Adams, LLP, an 
independent contractor, for financial auditing services for fiscal year ending June 30, 2022. 
 
The primary purpose of an external financial audit is to conduct an audit sufficient to express an opinion as to 
whether the Kern County Hospital Authority’s financial statements are fairly presented in accordance with 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and whether supplementary information is fairly presented in relation 
to the basic financial statements. The audit will include an evaluation and report of the Authority’s internal 
controls for the purpose of identifying areas of weakness or noncompliance. 
 
Fees for the audit services are estimated at $158,000.  Additionally, there will be an incremental audit fee not to 
exceed $25,000 for the June 30, 2022 audit related to the required Single Audit Associated with the receipt of 
and expenditure of federal awards, in the event a Single Audit is required.  Additional fees related to the 
company’s implementation of Government Accounting Standards Board Statement 87, in an amount not to 
exceed $20,000 will apply if required.  In addition to the audit fees, we will be charged for expenses including a 
flat expense charge, calculated as 5% of the audit fees, to cover expenses such as copying costs, postage, 
administrative billable time, report processing fees, filing fees, and technology expenses. Travel and related 
expenses will be billed separately and are not included in the 5% charge. 
 
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board approve the Engagement Letter from Moss-Adams LLP to audit 
the Kern County Hospital Authority effective January 19, 2022, in an amount not to exceed $203,000, and 
authorize the Chairman to sign. 



 

January 7, 2022 

Russell E. Bigler, Chairman, Board of Governors 
Andrew Cantu, Chief Financial Officer 
Kern County Hospital Authority 
1700 Mount Vernon Avenue 
Bakersfield, CA 93306-4018 

Re: Audit and Nonattest Services Engagement Letter Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2022 

Dear Chairman Bigler:  

Thank you for the opportunity to provide services to Kern County Hospital Authority, a local unit of 
government and a subdivision of the state of California, which owns and operates Kern Medical 
Center (“Kern Medical”). This engagement letter (“Engagement Letter”) and the attached Agreement 
for Professional Services (Agt. #005-2021) between Moss Adams LLP and Kern County Hospital 
Authority, effective January 1, 2021 (“PSA”), which is incorporated by this reference, confirm our 
acceptance and understanding of the terms and objectives of our engagement, and limitations of the 
services that Moss Adams LLP (“Moss Adams,” “we,” “us,” and “our”) will provide to Kern County 
Hospital Authority (“you,” “your,” “KCHA”, and “Company”). 

Scope of Services – Audit 

You have requested that we audit the Company’s financial statements, which comprise the statement 
of net position as of June 30, 2022, and the related statements of revenue, expenses, and changes in 
net position, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial 
statements. 

Accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of America provide for certain required 
supplementary information (“RSI”), such as management’s discussion and analysis, to supplement 
the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, 
is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part 
of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. As part of our engagement, we will apply certain limited procedures to 
the Company’s RSI in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. We will not express an opinion or provide assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide assurance. 
The following RSI will be subjected to certain limited procedures, but will not be audited: 

1) Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
2) Schedule of the proportionate share of the net OPEB liability for Kern Medical  
3) Schedule of the proportionate share of the net pension liability for Kern Medical  
4) Schedule of contributions for Kern Medical  



Audit and Nonattest Services Engagement Letter FYE June 30, 2022 
Page 2 of 14 

If a Single Audit under Uniform Guidance is required, we will also report on whether the schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards, presented as supplementary information, is fairly stated, in all 
material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

Scope of Services and Limitations – Nonattest 

We will provide the Company with the following nonattest services: 

1) Assist you in drafting the financial statements and related footnotes as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2022. Although we will assist in drafting the financial statements and related 
footnotes, our fee estimate included in this engagement letter is based on management 
providing a substantially complete working draft of the financial statements and required 
footnotes. Should you request additional assistance, we can discuss the additional fees that 
may be required prior to commencing additional work. 

2) Assist you in drafting the auditee section of the OMB Data Collection Form for the year ended 
June 30, 2022, if a Single Audit is required. 

Our professional standards require that we remain independent with respect to our attest clients, 
including those situations where we also provide nonattest services such as those identified in the 
preceding paragraphs. As a result, Company management must accept the responsibilities set forth 
below related to this engagement: 

 Assume all management responsibilities. 

 Oversee the service by designating an individual, preferably within senior management, who 
possesses suitable skill, knowledge, and/or experience to oversee our nonattest services. The 
individual is not required to possess the expertise to perform or reperform the services. 

 Evaluate the adequacy and results of the nonattest services performed. 

 Accept responsibility for the results of the nonattest services performed. 

It is our understanding that Andrew Cantu, the Company’s Chief Financial Officer, has been 
designated by the Company to oversee the nonattest services and that in the opinion of the Company 
is qualified to oversee our nonattest services as outlined above. If any issues or concerns in this area 
arise during the course of our engagement, we will discuss them with you prior to continuing with the 
engagement. 

Timing 

Kimberly Sokoloff is responsible for supervising the engagement and authorizing the signing of the 
report. We expect to be on-site or virtual the weeks of August 15, 2022 and August 22, 2022 for 
planning, interim, and the start of final test work, and again starting the week of October 24, 2022, to 
continue our final fieldwork. We expect to issue our report no later than December 31, 2022.  As we 
reach the conclusion of the audit, we will coordinate with you the date the audited financial 



Audit and Nonattest Services Engagement Letter FYE June 30, 2022 
Page 3 of 14 

statements will be available for issuance. You understand that (1) you will be required to consider 
subsequent events through the date the financial statements are available for issuance, (2) you will 
disclose in the notes to the financial statements the date through which subsequent events have 
been considered, and (3) the subsequent event date disclosed in the footnotes will not be earlier than 
the date of the management representation letter and the date of the report of independent auditors.  

Our scheduling depends on your completion of the year-end closing and adjusting process prior to 
our arrival to begin the fieldwork. We may experience delays in completing our services due to your 
staff’s unavailability or delays in your closing and adjusting process. You understand our fees are 
subject to adjustment if we experience these delays in completing our services.  

Fees 

We have agreed to the following payment schedule for the services based on a total fee estimate of 
$148,000 - $158,000.  

Month Due Amount 
July 2022 $                     41,000 
September 2022                        41,000 
October 2022                        41,000 
November 2022         25,000 – 35,000 

Total $148,000 – $158,000 
 
Additionally, there will be an incremental audit fee, estimated as $15,000 - $25,000, for the June 30, 
2022 audit, related to the required Single Audit associated with the receipt of and expenditure of 
federal awards, in the event a Single Audit is required. 

In addition to fees, we will charge you for expenses. Our invoices include a flat expense charge, 
calculated as five percent (5%) of fees, to cover expenses such as copying costs, postage, 
administrative billable time, report processing fees, filing fees, and technology expenses. Travel 
expenses and client meals/entertainment expenses will be billed separately and are not included in 
the 5% charge, and will be reimbursed in accordance with the terms set forth in the PSA. 

Additional Fees Related to Statement 87 Consulting Services or Audit Procedures 

Our fees for consulting services and audit procedures relating to the Company’s implementation of 
Government Accounting Standards Board Statement 87 are not included in the above fee estimate 
and will be billed based on the experience of the individuals involved and the amount of work 
performed, which will be discussed and agreed upon with you prior to the work being performed. 

Our ability to provide services in accordance with our estimated fees depends on the quality, 
timeliness, and accuracy of the Company’s records, and, for example, the number of general ledger 
adjustments required as a result of our work. To assist you in this process, we will provide you with a 
Client Audit Preparation Schedule that identifies the key work you will need to perform in preparation 
for the audit. We will also need your accounting staff to be readily available during the engagement to 
respond in a timely manner to our requests. Lack of preparation, poor records, general ledger 



Audit and Nonattest Services Engagement Letter FYE June 30, 2022 
Page 4 of 14 

adjustments, and/or untimely assistance will result in an increase of our fees. We estimate that the 
additional fees for this service will not exceed $20,000. 

Reporting 

We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of the Company's financial statements. 
Our report will be addressed to the Board of Governors of the Company. We cannot provide 
assurance that an unmodified opinion will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it is 
necessary for us to modify our opinion, add an emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraph(s), or 
withdraw from the engagement. Our services will be concluded upon delivery to you of our report on 
your financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2022. 

At the conclusion of the engagement, if a Single Audit is required, we will complete the auditor 
section of the Data Collection Form and electronically sign the Data Collection Form that summarizes 
our findings. We will provide electronic copies of our reports to you; however, it is management’s 
responsibility to electronically submit the reporting package (including financial statements, schedule 
of expenditures of federal awards, summary schedule of prior audit findings, auditors’ reports, and 
corrective action plan, as applicable) along with the Data Collection Form to the Federal Audit 
Clearinghouse. The Data Collection Form and the reporting package must be submitted within the 
earlier of 30 days after receipt of the auditors’ reports or nine months after the end of the audit period. 
At the conclusion of the engagement, we will make arrangements with management regarding Data 
Collection Form submission procedures. 

Objectives of the Audit 

The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance 
but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAS) will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would 
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.  

The objectives of our audit are also to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Company has 
complied with applicable federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal awards 
that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program. 

The objectives also include reporting on the following: 

 Internal control related to the financial statements and compliance with the provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a material 
effect on the financial statements as required by Government Auditing Standards. 



Audit and Nonattest Services Engagement Letter FYE June 30, 2022 
Page 5 of 14 

 Internal control over compliance related to major federal programs and on compliance with 
federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal awards that could have a 
direct and material effect on each major program in accordance with the Single Audit Act 
Amendments of 1996 and the audit requirements contained in OMB Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). 

The reports on internal control and compliance will each include a statement that the purpose of the 
report is solely to: describe the scope of testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the result of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance; describe the scope of testing 
internal control over compliance for major federal programs and major federal program compliance 
and the result of that testing and to provide an opinion on compliance but not to provide an opinion on 
the effectiveness of internal control over compliance; that the report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance and the OMB Uniform Guidance in considering 
internal control over compliance and major federal program compliance; and, accordingly, it is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

The objectives of our audit are also to evaluate the presentation of the supplementary information in 
relation to the financial statements as a whole and report on whether the supplementary information 
is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

The Auditor’s Responsibility 

We will conduct our audit in accordance with U.S. GAAS; the standards for financial audits contained 
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; the 
Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996; and the audit provisions of the OMB Uniform. As part of an 
audit conducted in accordance with U.S. GAAS, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.   

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control or to identify deficiencies in the 
design or operation of internal control. However, we will communicate to you in writing 
concerning any significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal control relevant to the 
audit of the financial statements that we have identified during the audit. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 



Audit and Nonattest Services Engagement Letter FYE June 30, 2022 
Page 6 of 14 

financial statements, including the disclosure, and whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 Conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether there are conditions or events, 
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern for a reasonable period of time 

In accordance with the OMB Uniform Guidance we also:   

 Determine major program(s). 

 Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance with applicable federal 
statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal awards that could have a direct and 
material effect on each major federal program. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control over compliance that we consider relevant to 
preventing or detecting material noncompliance with compliance requirements applicable to each 
major federal award program in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. We will perform tests of controls to evaluate the effectiveness of the design and 
operation of such controls, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Company’s internal control over compliance or to identify deficiencies in the design or 
operation of internal control over compliance. However, we will communicate to you in writing 
concerning any significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal control over 
compliance that we consider relevant to preventing or detecting material noncompliance with 
compliance requirements applicable to each major federal award program that we have identified 
during the audit. 

The supplementary information will be subject to certain additional procedures, including comparing 
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves. 

If our opinion on the financial statements or the Single Audit compliance opinion is other than 
unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with you in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to 
complete the audit or are unable to form or have not formed an opinion we may decline to express an 
opinion or to issue a report as a result of this engagement. 

Procedures and Limitations 

Our procedures may include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in 
the accounts, tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of certain 
receivables and certain other assets, liabilities and transaction details by correspondence with 
selected individuals, funding sources, creditors, and financial institutions. We may also request 



Audit and Nonattest Services Engagement Letter FYE June 30, 2022 
Page 7 of 14 

written representations from your attorneys as part of the engagement, and they may bill you for 
responding to this inquiry. At the conclusion of our audit, we will require certain written 
representations from management about the financial statements and supplementary information and 
related matters. Management’s failure to provide representations to our satisfaction will preclude us 
from issuing our report. 

An audit includes examining evidence, on a test basis, supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. Therefore, our audit will involve judgment about the number of transactions to 
be examined and the areas to be tested. Material misstatements may include errors, fraudulent 
financial reporting, misappropriation of assets, or noncompliance with the provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements that are attributable to the entity or to acts by 
management or employees acting on behalf of the entity that may have a direct financial statement 
impact. Pursuant to Government Auditing Standards, we will not provide reasonable assurance of 
detecting abuse. As required by the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and the audit provisions of 
the OMB Uniform Guidance, our audit will include tests of transactions related to major federal award 
programs for compliance with applicable federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of 
federal awards that could have a direct and material effect on each major program.  

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, together with the inherent limitations of internal 
control, an unavoidable risk exists that some material misstatements and noncompliance may not be 
detected, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with U.S. GAAS, 
Government Auditing Standards, and the OMB Uniform Guidance. An audit is not designed to detect 
immaterial misstatements or noncompliance with the provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements that do not have a direct and material effect on the financial statements or 
noncompliance with the provisions of federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and condition of 
federal awards that do not have a direct and material effect on major federal programs. However, we 
will inform you of any material errors, fraudulent financial reporting, misappropriation of assets, and 
noncompliance with the provisions of laws, federal statutes, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, 
and federal awards that come to our attention, unless clearly inconsequential. We will include such 
matters in the reports required for a Single Audit. Our responsibility as auditors is limited to the period 
covered by our audit and does not extend to any time period for which we are not engaged as 
auditors.  

We may assist management in the preparation of the Company’s financial statements and 
supplementary information. Regardless of any assistance we may render, all information included in 
the financial statements and supplementary information remains the representation of management. 
We may issue a preliminary draft of the financial statements and supplementary information to you for 
your review. Any preliminary draft financial statements and supplementary information should not be 
relied upon, reproduced or otherwise distributed without the written permission of Moss Adams. 



Audit and Nonattest Services Engagement Letter FYE June 30, 2022 
Page 8 of 14 

Procedures and Limitations—Internal Control 

Tests of controls may be performed to test the effectiveness of certain controls that we consider 
relevant to preventing and detecting errors and fraud that are material to the financial statements and 
to preventing and detecting misstatements resulting from noncompliance with the provisions of laws, 
regulations, contract and grant agreements and other noncompliance matters that have a direct and 
material effect on the financial statements.  

Our tests will be less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on those controls and, 
accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our report on internal control issued pursuant to the OMB 
Uniform Guidance. 

Procedures and Limitations—Compliance 

Our audit will be conducted in accordance with the standards referred to in the section titled 
“Objectives of the Audit.” As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, we will perform tests of the Company’s compliance 
with the provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements that may have a direct and 
material effect on the financial statements. However, the objective of those procedures will not be to 
provide an opinion on overall compliance and we will not express such an opinion in our report on 
compliance issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards. 

Our procedures will consist of the applicable procedures described in the OMB Compliance 
Supplement for the types of compliance requirements that could have a direct and material effect on 
each of your major federal programs. The purpose of those procedures will be to express an opinion 
on the Company’s compliance with requirements applicable to each of its major federal programs in 
our report on compliance issued pursuant to the OMB Uniform Guidance. 

Management’s Responsibility for Financial Statements, Internal Control, and Federal Award 
Compliance 

As a condition of our engagement, management acknowledges and understands that management is 
responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We may advise 
management about appropriate accounting principles and their application and may assist in the 
preparation of your financial statements, including the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, 
but management remains responsible for the financial statements and the schedule of expenditures 
of federal awards. Management also acknowledges and understands that management is 
responsible for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to error or fraud. This responsibility includes the maintenance of adequate records, the 
selection and application of accounting principles, and the safeguarding of assets. 



Audit and Nonattest Services Engagement Letter FYE June 30, 2022 
Page 9 of 14 

You are responsible for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the Company 
involving: (a) management, (b) employees who have significant roles in internal control, and (c) 
others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. You are responsible 
for informing us of your knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the 
Company received in communications from employees, former employees, grantors, regulators, or 
others. In addition, management is responsible for identifying and ensuring that the Company 
complies with applicable laws and regulations and for taking timely and appropriate steps to remedy 
any fraud or noncompliance with the provisions of laws, regulations, contract, and grant agreements, 
that we may report.  

Management is responsible for adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements 
and for confirming to us in the management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected 
misstatements aggregated by us during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period 
presented are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements as a 
whole.  

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal control and for compliance with 
federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal awards and for identifying and 
ensuring that the Company complies with such provisions. Management is also responsible for 
informing us of any significant contractor relationships in which the contractor is responsible for 
program compliance. Management is also responsible for addressing the audit findings and 
recommendations, establishing and maintaining a process to track the status of such findings and 
recommendations, and taking timely and appropriate steps to remedy any fraud and noncompliance 
with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal awards or abuse that we 
may report. Additionally, as required by the OMB Uniform Guidance, it is your responsibility to follow 
up and take corrective action on reported audit findings and to prepare a summary schedule of prior 
audit findings and a corrective action plan.  

Management is responsible for making all financial records and related information available to us 
and for the accuracy and completeness of that information. Management agrees that as a condition 
of our engagement, management will provide us with: 

 access to all information of which management is aware that is relevant to the preparation and 
fair presentation of the financial statements, whether obtained from within or outside of the 
general and subsidiary ledgers (including all information relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of disclosures), such as records, documentation, and other matters; 

 additional information that we may request from management for the purpose of the audit; and 

 unrestricted access to persons within the Company from whom we determine it necessary to 
obtain audit evidence. 



Audit and Nonattest Services Engagement Letter FYE June 30, 2022 
Page 10 of 14 

Management’s Responsibility to Notify Us of Affiliates  

Our professional standards require that we remain independent of the Company as well as any 
“affiliate” of the Company. Professional standards define an affiliate as follows: 

 a fund, component unit, fiduciary activity or entity that the Company is required to include or 
disclose, and is included or disclosed in its basic financial statements, in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles (U.S. GAAP); 

 a fund, component unit, fiduciary activity or entity that the Company is required to include or 
disclosed in its basic financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP, which is material to the 
Company but which the Company has elected to exclude, and for which the Company has more 
than minimal influence over the entity’s accounting or financial reporting process; 

 an investment in an investee held by the Company or an affiliate of the Company, where the 
Company or affiliate controls the investee, excluding equity interests in entities whose sole 
purpose is to directly enhance the Company’s ability to provide government services; 

 an investment in an investee held by the Company or an affiliate of the Company, where the 
Company or affiliate has significant influence over the investee and for which the investment is 
material to the Company’s financial statements, excluding equity interests in entities whose sole 
purpose is to directly enhance the Company’s ability to provide government services 

In order to fulfill our mutual responsibility to maintain auditor independence, you agree to notify Moss 
Adams of any known affiliate relationships, to the best of your knowledge and belief.  Additionally, 
you agree to inform Moss Adams of any known services provided or relationships between affiliates 
of the Company and Moss Adams or any of its employees or personnel. 

Management’s Responsibility for Supplementary Information 

Management is responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information in accordance with 
the applicable criteria. Management agrees to include the auditor’s report on the supplementary 
information in any document that contains the supplementary information and that indicates that we 
have reported on such supplementary information. Management is responsible to present the 
supplementary information with the audited financial statements or, if the supplementary information 
will not be presented with the audited financial statements, to make the audited financial statements 
readily available to the intended users of the supplementary information no later than the date of 
issuance by the entity of the supplementary information and the auditor’s report thereon. For 
purposes of this Engagement Letter, audited financial statements are deemed to be readily available 
if a third party user can obtain the audited financial statements without any further action by 
management. For example, financial statements on your Web site may be considered readily 
available, but being available upon request is not considered readily available. 



Audit and Nonattest Services Engagement Letter FYE June 30, 2022 
Page 11 of 14 

Other Information Included in an Annual Report 

When financial or nonfinancial information, other than financial statements and the auditor's report 
thereon, is included in an entity's annual report, management is responsible for that other information. 
Management is also responsible for providing the document(s) that comprise the annual report to us 
as soon as it is available. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information, and we do not express 
an opinion or any form of assurance thereon. Our responsibility is to read the other information and 
consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the audited 
financial statements. If we identify that a material inconsistency or misstatement of the other 
information exists, we will discuss it with you; if it is not resolved U.S. GAAS requires us to take 
appropriate action. 

Key Audit Matters 

U.S. GAAS does not require the communication of key audit matters in the audit report unless 
engaged to do so. You have not engaged us to report on key audit matters, and the Engagement 
Letter does not contemplate Moss Adams providing any such services. You agree we are under no 
obligation to communicate key audit matters in the auditor's report. 

If you request to engage Moss Adams to communicate key audit matters in the auditor’s report, 
before accepting the engagement we would discuss with you the additional fees to provide any such 
services, and the impact to the timeline for completing the audit. 

Dissemination of Financial Statements and Reports 

We will provide copies of our reports to the Company; however, management is responsible for 
distribution of the reports and the financial statements. Our report on the financial statements must be 
associated only with the financial statements that were the subject of our engagement. You may 
make copies of our report, but only if the entire financial statements (including related footnotes and 
supplementary information, as appropriate) are reproduced and distributed with our report. You agree 
not to reproduce or associate our report with any other financial statements, or portions thereof, that 
are not the subject of this engagement. 

Offering of Securities 

This Engagement Letter does not contemplate Moss Adams providing any services in connection 
with the offering of securities, whether registered or exempt from registration, and Moss Adams will 
charge additional fees to provide any such services. Neither you nor Kern Medical Center may 
incorporate or reference our report in a private placement or other offering of equity or debt securities 
without our express written permission. We are under no obligation to reissue our report or provide 
written permission for the use of our report at a later date in connection with an offering of securities, 
the issuance of debt instruments, or for any other circumstance. We will determine, at our sole 
discretion, whether we will reissue our report or provide written permission for the use of our report 



Audit and Nonattest Services Engagement Letter FYE June 30, 2022 
Page 12 of 14 

only after we have conducted any procedures we deem necessary in the circumstances. You agree 
to provide us with adequate time to review documents where (a) our report is requested to be 
reissued, (b) our report is included in the offering document or referred to therein, or (c) reference to 
our firm is expected to be made. If we decide to reissue our report or provide written permission to 
the use of our report, you agree that Moss Adams will be included on each distribution of draft 
offering materials and we will receive a complete set of final documents. If we decide not to reissue 
our report or withhold our written permission to use our report, you may be required to engage 
another firm to audit periods covered by our audit reports, and that firm will likely bill you for its 
services. While the successor auditor may request access to our engagement documentation for 
those periods, we are under no obligation to permit such access. 

Changes in Professional or Accounting Standards 

To the extent that future federal, state, or professional rule-making activities require modification of 
our audit approach, procedures, scope of work, etc., we will advise you of such changes and the 
impact on our fee estimate. If we are unable to agree on the additional fees, if any, that may be 
required to implement any new accounting and auditing standards that are required to be adopted 
and applied as part of our engagement, we may terminate this Engagement Letter as provided 
herein, regardless of the stage of completion. 

Representations of Management 

During the course of our engagement, we may request information and explanations from 
management regarding, among other matters, the Company’s operations, internal control, future 
plans, specific transactions, and accounting systems and procedures. At the conclusion of our 
engagement, we will require, as a precondition to the issuance of our report, that management 
provide us with a written representation letter confirming some or all of the representations made 
during the engagement. The procedures that we will perform in our engagement will be heavily 
influenced by the representations that we receive from management. Accordingly, false 
representations could cause us to expend unnecessary efforts or could cause a material error or 
fraud to go undetected by our procedures. In view of the foregoing, you agree that we will not be 
responsible for any misstatements in the Company’s financial statements and supplementary 
information that we fail to detect as a result of false or misleading representations, whether oral or 
written, that are made to us by the Company’s management. While we may assist management in 
the preparation of the representation letter, it is management’s responsibility to carefully review and 
understand the representations made therein. 

Notwithstanding section 21 of the PSA to the contrary, because our failure to detect material 
misstatements could cause others relying upon our audit report to incur damages, the Company 
further agrees to indemnify and hold us harmless from any liability and all costs (including legal fees) 
that we may incur in connection with claims based upon our failure to detect material misstatements 
in the Company’s financial statements and supplementary information resulting in whole or in part 



Audit and Nonattest Services Engagement Letter FYE June 30, 2022 
Page 13 of 14 

from knowingly false or misleading representations made to us by any member of the Company’s 
management. 

Use of Electronic Communication 

In the interest of facilitating our services to you, we may communicate by facsimile transmission or 
send electronic mail over the Internet. Such communications may include information that is 
confidential. We employ measures in the use of electronic communications designed to provide 
reasonable assurance that data security is maintained. While we will use our best efforts to keep 
such communications secure in accordance with our obligations under applicable laws and 
professional standards, you recognize and accept we have no control over the unauthorized 
interception of these communications once they have been sent. Unless you issue specific 
instructions to do otherwise, we will assume you consent to our use of electronic communications to 
your representatives and other use of these electronic devices during the term of this Engagement 
Letter as we deem appropriate. 

Use of Moss Adams’ Name 

Neither the Company nor Kern Medical Center may use any of Moss Adams’ name, trademarks, 
service marks or logo in connection with the services contemplated by this Engagement Letter or 
otherwise without the prior written permission of Moss Adams, which permission may be withheld for 
any or no reason and may be subject to certain conditions. 

Use of Nonlicensed Personnel 

Certain engagement personnel who are not licensed as certified public accountants may provide 
services during this engagement. 

Hiring of Employees 

Any offer of employment to members of the audit team prior to issuance of our report may impair our 
independence, and as a result, may result in our inability to complete the engagement and issue a 
report. 

Mutual Waiver of COVID-19 Claims 

This provision addresses issues regarding the novel coronavirus (“COVID-19”). The parties 
acknowledge their respective understanding of the hazards of COVID-19, including, but not limited to, 
its highly contagious nature and the corresponding health risks associated with being exposed to or 
infected by COVID-19. Each party agrees to waive, release, discharge, and covenants not to sue the 
other party or its affiliates and its and their respective officers, directors, partners, principals, 
employees, agents, or subcontractors from any and all claims, damages, expense, liability, illness or 
losses that may occur from exposure to or infection by COVID-19 arising out of, related to, or in any 
way connected with the auditing services provided by Moss Adams under this Engagement Letter. 



Audit and Nonattest Services Engagement Letter FYE June 30, 2022 
Page 14 of 14 

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to you. If you agree with the terms of our engagement 
as set forth in this Engagement Letter, please sign the enclosed copy of this Engagement Letter and 
return it to us. 

Very truly yours, 
 

 
Kimberly Sokoloff, Senior Manager, for 
Moss Adams LLP 

Enclosures 

Accepted and Agreed: 

This Engagement Letter and the attached PSA set forth the entire understanding of Kern County 
Hospital Authority with respect to this engagement and the services to be provided by 
Moss Adams LLP: 

 
Signature:  \S1n\ 

Print Name: Russell E. Bigler  

Title:  Chairman, Board of Governors S1nT\ 

Date:   

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
LEGAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
 
 
By_________________________ 
    Vice President & General Counsel 
    Kern County Hospital Authority 
 
 
 
Client:  #636216 
v. 10/26/2021 
 
 
 
 

































































 
 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
January 19, 2022 
 
Subject:  Proposed Report of Independent Auditors from Moss-Adams, LLP 

 
Recommended Action:  Receive and File; Refer to Kern County Board of Supervisors 

 
Summary: 

 
Kern Medical requests your Board receive and file the Report of Independent Auditors from 
Moss-Adams, LLP, for the audit of Kern Medical Center’s financial statements pursuant to Kern 
County Hospital Authority Agreement No. 005-2021. The scope of the audit includes the audit 
of Kern Medical Center financial statements, which comprise the statement of net position as 
of June 30, 2021, and the related statements of revenue, expenses and changes in net position, 
and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.  
 
 
 



Image Size
4” x 10.33”

FY 2021 Audit Results – Kern County Hospital Authority 
Prepared by the Moss Adams Health Care Group

Presented: January 19, 2022



2

[Client]

Audit Committee

Kern Medical

Audit Committee
Dear Board of Governors:

Thank you for your continued engagement of Moss Adams 
LLP. We are pleased to have the opportunity to meet with 
you to discuss the results of our audit of the financial 
statements of Kern County Hospital Authority (“Kern 
Medical”) for the year ended June 30, 2021.

The accompanying report, which is intended solely for the 
use of the Board of Governors and management, presents 
important information regarding the financial statements of 
Kern Medical and our audit that we believe will be of 
interest to you. It is not intended for, and should not be used 
by, anyone other than these specified parties. 

We conducted our audit with the objectivity and 
independence that you expect. We received the full support 
and assistance of the Kern Medical personnel. We are 
pleased to serve and be associated with Kern Medical as its 
independent public accountants and look forward to our 
continued relationship.

We look forward to discussing our report or any other 
matters of interest with you during this meeting. 



1. Auditor Opinions & Reports

2. Communications with Those Charged with 
Governance

3. Exhibit: Management Representation Letter

4. Other Information

Agenda

3

Image Size
6” x 3”



Image Size
6” x 3”

Auditor Opinions & Reports



Image Size
6” x 3”

5

We have performed, or will be performing, the 
following services for Kern Medical:

• Annual financial statement audit as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2021

• Report on internal control over financial reporting and 
on compliance and other matters based on an audit of 
financial statements performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards 

• Single Audit for the year ended June 30, 2021

We have also performed, or will be performing, 
the following nonattest services: 
• Assisted in drafting the financial statements of Kern 

Medical, excluding Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis

Scope of Services



6

Unmodified Opinion

Government Auditing Standards Report

• Financial statements are presented fairly and in 
accordance with U.S. GAAP

Auditor Report on the Financial 
Statements 

Image Size
6” x 3”• No financial reporting findings noted

• No compliance findings reported



Image Size
6” x 3”

Communications with Those 
Charged with Governance



8

Our Responsibility 

To express our opinion on 
whether the financial 

statements prepared by 
management with your 

oversight are fairly 
presented, in all material 

respects, and in accordance 
with U.S. GAAP. However, 
our audit does not relieve 

you or management of your 
responsibilities. 

To perform an audit in 
accordance with generally 

accepted auditing standards 
issued by the AICPA, 
Government Auditing 

Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the 

United States, and the 
California Code of 

Regulations, Title 2, Section 
1131.2, State Controller’s 

Minimum Audit 
Requirements for California 
Special Districts, and design 

the audit to obtain 
reasonable, rather than 

absolute, assurance about 
whether the financial 

statements are free of 
material misstatement.

To consider internal control 
over financial reporting as a 

basis for designing audit 
procedures but not for the 
purpose of expressing an 

opinion on its effectiveness 
or to provide assurance 
concerning such internal 

control. 

To communicate findings 
that, in our judgment, are 

relevant to your 
responsibilities in 

overseeing the financial 
reporting process. However, 

we are not required to 
design procedures for the 

purpose of identifying other 
matters to communicate to 

you.



9

It is the auditor’s responsibility to 
determine the overall audit 
strategy and the audit plan, 
including the nature, timing, and 
extent of procedures necessary 
to obtain sufficient appropriate 
audit evidence and to 
communicate with those charged 
with governance an overview of 
the planned scope and timing of 
the audit.

Our Comments

The planned scope and timing of the audit was communicated to Kern 
Medical’s Board of Governors in our audit planning letter and was 
included in the engagement letter for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Planned Scope & Timing of the Audit



10

The auditor should determine that 
the Board of Governors is 
informed about the initial 
selection of and changes in 
significant accounting policies or 
their application. The auditor 
should also determine that the 
Board of Governors is informed 
about the methods used to 
account for significant unusual 
transactions and the effect of 
significant accounting policies in 
controversial or emerging areas 
for which there is a lack of 
authoritative guidance or 
consensus. 

Our Comments

Management has the responsibility for selection and use of 
appropriate accounting policies. The significant accounting policies 
used by Kern Medical are described in the footnotes to the financial 
statements. Throughout the course of an audit, we review changes, if 
any, to significant accounting policies or their application, and the 
initial selection and implementation of new policies. Kern Medical 
adopted GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, in FY 2021. 
Other than this new accounting standard, there were no changes to 
significant accounting policies for the year ended June 30, 2021.

We believe management has selected and applied significant 
accounting policies appropriately and consistent with those of the 
prior year. 

Significant Accounting Policies & Unusual Transactions



11

The Board of Governors should 
be informed about the process 
used by management in 
formulating particularly sensitive 
accounting estimates and about 
the basis for the auditor’s 
conclusions regarding the 
reasonableness of those 
estimates. 

Our Comments

Management’s judgments and accounting estimates are based on 
knowledge and experience about past and current events and 
assumptions about future events. We apply audit procedures to 
management’s estimates to ascertain whether the estimates are 
reasonable under the circumstances and do not materially misstate 
the financial statements. 

Significant management estimates impacted the financial statements 
including the following: patient accounts receivable reserves; 
actuarially determined accruals for workers’ compensation, 
medical malpractice liabilities, pension, and other post-
employment liabilities; grant revenue recognition; and 
accruals for third-party settlements.

We deem them to be reasonable.

Management Judgments & Accounting Estimates



Areas of Audit Emphasis

12

• Information Technology Controls

• Revenue Recognition

• Valuation of Patient Accounts Receivable

• Valuation of Third-Party Settlements, including 
Indigent Funding

• Pension Obligation

• Related-Party Transactions

• Compliance with Laws, Regulations, and Federal 
Awards, Including COVID-19 Funding



13

Provider Relief Grant Funds Received
• Approximately $4.7 million received as of June 30, 2021.
• Nonfederal entities that expend financial assistance of 

$750,000 or more in federal awards will have a single or 
program-specific audit for their fiscal year that includes the 
periods the funds are expended. 

• Guidance on what qualifies as a healthcare-related 
expense attributable to COVID-19 or what qualifies as lost 
revenue has evolved over time.

• The Compliance Supplement which outlines the specific 
audit requirements was released in August 2021.

• Provider Relief Funds received in FY 2020 will be subject 
to the FY 2021 Single Audit, which is currently due by 
September 2022.

Audit Requirement – CARES Act Grant Funding

The receipt of HHS 
Grant Funding under 

the CARES Act subjects 
Kern Medical to a Single 

Audit under the 
Uniform Guidance



Areas of Audit Emphasis: Patient Service Revenue and 
Valuation of Patient Accounts Receivable

Accounting issue
• Revenue recognition and adequacy of 

contractual allowances and allowances 
for bad debts

Description of circumstance
• Revenue recognized when service 

provided
• Receivables, primarily arising from third-

party payors

Audit risk
• Revenue recognition could be 

inappropriate
• Reserves for contractual allowances are 

understated

Moss Adams audit response
• Testing of internal controls around the 

revenue process
• Testing of management’s estimate of 

allowances using underlying collection 
history

• Lookback analysis and subsequent cash 
receipts analysis

Moss Adams audit results
• Revenue recognition is considered 

appropriate
• Valuation of patient accounts receivable is 

appropriate
• Refer to next slide for hindsight analysis

14



15

Patient Accounts Receivable - Lookback Analysis

($s in 000s) * 2021 2020 2019 2018

Net Patient Accounts Receivable $43,117 $53,568 $40,824 $43,129

Subsequent Cash Receipts 
4 months after 6/30 $39,585 $32,430 $30,077 $32,886

% Collected 4 months after 6/30 92% 61% 74% 76%

Exposure after 4 months 
collections $3,532 $21,128 $10,747 $10,243

Collected 16 months after 6/30 n/a $42,495 $38,259 $40,995

Cash Receipts in Excess of (Less 
Than) Amounts Recorded n/a ($11,073) $2,565 ($2,134)

Cash Receipts in Excess of (Less
Than) Amounts Recorded (%) n/a (20%) (6%) (5%)

Days in Patient Accounts 
Receivable 63 96 73 71

*  Amounts exclude Kern Medical Surgery Center



Areas of Audit Emphasis: Valuation of Third-Party 
Settlements, Including Indigent Funding

Accounting issue
• Revenue recognition and adequacy of 

reserves

Description of circumstance
• Revenue recognized in accordance with 

the elements of the respective 
reimbursement program

• Receivables or payables, arising from 
expected settlements with third-party 
payors

Audit risk
• Revenue recognition could be 

inappropriate
• Reserves are understated

16

Moss Adams audit response
• Testing of internal controls around the 

revenue process
• Testing of management’s estimate of 

reserves based on contractual 
reimbursement arrangements, historical 
settlements, latest available information 
from payors

• Lookback analysis and subsequent cash 
receipts analysis

Moss Adams audit results
• Revenue recognition is considered 

appropriate based on available information
• Valuation of third-party settlements is 

appropriate



17

Our views about the quantitative 
aspects of the entity’s significant 
accounting policies, accounting 
estimates, and financial 
statement disclosures. 

Our Comments

The disclosures in the financial statements are clear and consistent. 
Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive 
because of their significance to financial statement users, however we 
do not believe any of the footnotes are particularly sensitive. We call 
your attention to the following notes: 

Management Judgments & Accounting Estimates

• Note 1 – COVID-19 Pandemic
• Note 6 – Long-Term Debt
• Note 8 – Net Patient Service Revenue
• Note 9 – Indigent Patient Care Funding
• Note 10 – Related-Party Transactions
• Note 11 – Pension Plan



18

The Board of Governors should be 
informed of all significant audit 
adjustments arising from the audit. 
Consideration should be given to 
whether an adjustment is indicative 
of a significant deficiency or a 
material weakness in Kern 
Medical’s internal control over 
financial reporting, or in its process 
for reporting interim financial 
information, that could cause future
financial statements to be 
materially misstated.

The Board of Governors should 
also be informed of uncorrected 
misstatements aggregated by us 
during the current engagement and 
pertaining to the latest period 
presented that were determined by 
management to be immaterial, 
both individually and in the 
aggregate, to the financial 
statements as a whole.

Our Comments

CORRECTED ADJUSTMENTS:

The following corrected audit adjustments were recorded:

• An adjustment of $18.3 million to increase Indigent Funding 
Revenues and Due From Governmental Agencies to true-up 
estimates based upon the most recent available information

• An adjustment of $2.0 million to increase Net Patient Accounts 
Receivable and Net Patient Service Revenue based upon 
subsequent cash collection experience

• An adjustment of $1.0 million to increase Grant Revenue and 
Grant Receivables related to qualifying expenditures incurred

• An adjustment of $566 thousand to decrease Due From 
Governmental Agencies and Net Patient Service Revenue based 
upon the 2021 Medicare Cost Report filing 

Significant Audit Adjustments & Unadjusted Differences 
Considered by Management to be Immaterial 



19

The Board of Governors should be 
informed of all significant audit 
adjustments arising from the audit. 
Consideration should be given to 
whether an adjustment is indicative 
of a significant deficiency or a 
material weakness in Kern 
Medical’s internal control over 
financial reporting, or in its process 
for reporting interim financial 
information, that could cause future
financial statements to be 
materially misstated.

The Board of Governors should 
also be informed of uncorrected 
misstatements aggregated by us 
during the current engagement and 
pertaining to the latest period 
presented that were determined by 
management to be immaterial, 
both individually and in the 
aggregate, to the financial 
statements as a whole.

Our Comments

CORRECTED ADJUSTMENTS:

• An adjustment of $2.3 million to decrease Patient Credit Balances 
Payable and increase Net Patient Service Revenue based upon 
subsequent resolution

UNCORRECTED ADJUSTMENTS:

• None noted

Significant Audit Adjustments & Unadjusted Differences 
Considered by Management to be Immaterial (Continued)



20

Any material weaknesses and 
significant deficiencies in the 
design or operation of internal 
control or of internal control over 
compliance that came to the 
auditor’s attention during the 
audit must be reported to the 
Board of Governors.

Our Comments

MATERIAL WEAKNESS
• None noted

SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES
• Nothing to communicate

NONCOMPLIANCE
• Nothing to communicate

Deficiencies in Internal Control and in Internal Control over 
Compliance



21

The Board of Governors should 
be adequately informed of the 
potential effect on financial 
statements of significant risks and 
exposures and uncertainties that 
are disclosed in the financial 
statements.

Our Comments

Kern Medical is subject to potential legal proceedings and 
claims that arise in the ordinary course of business, which 
are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 

Potential Effect on the Financial Statements of Any 
Significant Risks & Exposures 



22

The Board of Governors should 
be informed of any significant 
difficulties encountered in dealing 
with management related to the 
performance of the audit, 
including disagreements with 
management, whether or not 
satisfactorily resolved, about 
matters that individually or in the 
aggregate could be significant to 
the Kern Medical financial 
statements, or the auditor’s 
report.

Our Comments

No significant difficulties were encountered during our 
audit. 

We are pleased to report that there were no disagreements 
with management.  

We conducted our audit procedures remotely due to the 
COVID-19 pandemic. The remote environment did not 
impact our ability to access records of Kern Medical to 
complete our audit procedures.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 



23

Any doubt regarding the entity’s 
ability to continue, as a going 
concern, should be 
communicated to the Board of 
Governors.

Fraud involving senior 
management and fraud (whether 
caused by senior management or 
other employees) that causes a 
material misstatement of the 
financial statements should be 
communicated.  We are also 
required to communicate any 
noncompliance with laws and 
regulations involving senior 
management that come to our 
attention, unless clearly 
inconsequential.

Our Comments

No such matters came to our attention. 

We have not become aware of any instances of fraud or 
noncompliance with laws and regulations. 

Material Uncertainties Related to Events & Conditions/ 
Fraud & Noncompliance with Laws and Regulations 



24

Report to those charged with 
governance significant written 
communications between the 
auditor and management.

Our Comments

See Exhibit 1 for management representation letter. 

Other than the engagement letter, management 
representation letter, and communication to those charged 
with governance, there have been no other significant 
communications.  

Other Material Written Communications



25

In some cases, management may 
decide to consult about auditing 
and accounting matters.  If 
management has consulted with 
other accountants about an 
auditing and accounting matter 
that involves application of an 
accounting principle to Kern 
Medical’s financial statements or 
a determination of the type of 
auditor's opinion that may be 
expressed on those statements, 
our professional standards 
require the consulting accountant 
to check with us to determine that 
the consultant has all the relevant 
facts.

Our Comments

We are not aware of any significant accounting or auditing 
matters for which management consulted other accountants. 

Management’s Consultation with Other Accountants



Exhibit 1

Management Representation                    
Letter

Image Size
6” x 3”



E
xh

ib
it

 1
 

Management Representation Letter

Note: This represents an excerpt only. 
Full management representation letter is 
available upon request.



About Moss Adams 



Our Response to COVID-19

The COVID-19 pandemic has touched all aspects of our lives. We’re here to guide you to the information and resources you need now and 
provide strategies for the changes to come. We’ll support you as you rebuild and help you take advantage of rising opportunities. 

• Stay up to date with guidance and support to 
help combat uncertainty

• Reach out to your Moss Adams professional 
with any questions on the most current 
updates and advisements

ARTICLE
- Weather COVID-19 Market Volatility: 

Investments, Finances, and Tax 
Planning

• Strategize needs and be aware of what’s to 
come

- We’ll connect you with the right 
resource, either within the greater 
Moss Adams team or through our 
various industry contacts

• Review Moss Adams announcements that 
provide tax and regulatory relief

ALERTS
- CARES Act Overview: Implications 

for Business Taxpayers
- CARES Act: Implications for 

Individual Taxpayers

• Take steps to bolster your workforce and 
organization

• Evaluate additional service needs, such as the 
following:

- Capital sourcing
- Cloud tools
- Cost segregation 
- Enterprise resource 

planning
- Estate and 

succession planning 
- Financial planning
- Forecasting 
- IT security and 

cybersecurity

- Process
improvement

- Outsourced finance 
accounting

- R&D tax credits
- Risk assessment
- State and local tax
- Transactions 

services

H E L P I N G  Y O U  A D A P T  T O  U N C E R T A I N  T I M E S

N A V I G A TE T H R I V ER E B U I L D

Find more information and resources here: https://mossadams.com/covid-19-implications

29

https://mossadams.com/articles/2020/03/covid-19-investments-and-market-volatility
https://mossadams.com/articles/2020/03/cares-act-covid-19-tax-relief-for-businesses
https://mossadams.com/articles/2020/03/cares-act-covid-19-relief-for-individuals
https://mossadams.com/covid-19-implications


30

Crater Lake—
A monument to perseverance, North America’s 
deepest lake filled to 1,949 feet over 720 years.

Our Expertise

108
years in 
business

3,400+
professionals

30+
industries 
served

Grand Canyon—
At 277 miles long and up to 18 miles 
wide, this icon serves as a testament 
to determination and time.

Our Reach

25+
locations 

west of the 
Mississippi

110+
countries served 

through Praxity, AISBL

$820M
in revenue 

earned



31

Health Care Industry Experience

Our health care professionals dedicate their 
careers to serving the industry. 

We cover the full spectrum of health care including: 
• Hospitals and health systems
• Independent practice associations 
• Medical groups
• Community health centers
• Behavioral health organizations 
• Long-term care
• Surgery centers
• Knox Keene licensed health plans
• Health care ancillary services

Crater Lake—
A monument to perseverance, North 
America’s deepest lake filled to 1,949 feet over 
720 years.

290+
professionals

34
practice partners

3,500+
clients across the 
nation



32

Hospitals & Health Systems 

Moss Adams has a dedicated Hospitals Practice serving more than 
945 hospitals and hospital systems, ranging in size from 15 to over 
1,600 beds, across the nation. Our work extends well beyond 
traditional accounting services and includes consulting and 
assistance on an array of issues in health care financial 
management. 

We leverage our deep knowledge of the national marketplace and 
local competitive environments to provide customized solutions that 
make a difference to your organization.

Who we serve: 

• Integrated health systems

• Tertiary care teaching hospitals 

• Hospital districts 
• For-profit and not-for-profit                                                   

organizations 

• University-based hospitals 

• Community and sole community                                  hospitals 

• Critical access hospitals 

• Pediatric hospitals 



33

Audit and tax are vital. But 
you have complex needs 
that go beyond these core 
functions. Our dedicated 
health care consulting team 
provides a range of services 
to address all your needs—
both now and in the future.

Additional 
Services

Claims Recovery

Revenue Cycle Enhancement

Coding Department Redesign

Coding Validation

Regulatory Compliance

Market Intelligence & 
Benchmarking

Feasibility Studies

M&A Support

Provider Risk Analysis, 
Contracting & Operational Design

Uncompensated Care

Medical Education

Provider-based Licensure &
Certification

Medicare & Medicaid

OP E RAT IONAL
IMP ROV E ME NTGOV E RNME NT  COMP L IANCE

S T RAT E GY  &  INT E GRAT ION

P ROV IDE R RE IMBURS E ME NT

HEALTH CARE CONSULTING & ADDITIONAL EXPERTISE

EHR Internal Controls

Corporate Compliance

HIPAA Security and Privacy

Network Security & Penetration 
Testing

HITRUST Assessment & 
Certification

SOC Pre-Audit Gap Analysis & 
Readiness

SOC Audits 

Litigation Support

Employer Health Benefits

Strategic Planning & 
Implementation 

INF ORMAT ION T E CHNOL OGY3P & Innovation:  redesign 
processes, products, facilities

Lean operations

L E AN T RANS F ORMATION

Lean Management Systems and 
Strategy Deployment

Quality & patient safety

P RIV AT E  E QUIT Y

Investment Evaluation & 
Transactions

Advising Portfolio Companies

Selling Portfolio Companies

Service Line Enhancement

Financial Turnaround

Performance Excellence

Medicare DSH Analysis & 
Appeals

Worksheet S-10



34

In today’s fast-paced world, we know how precious your 
time is. We also know that knowledge is key. 
These resources offer what you need to know, when you 
need to know it, and are presented in the format that fits 
your life.

We’ll keep you informed to help you stay abreast of critical 
industry issues. 

Moss Adams closely monitors regulatory agencies, 
participates in industry and technical forums, and writes 
about a wide range of relevant accounting, tax, and business 
issues to keep you informed. 

We also offer CPE webinars and events which are archived 
and available on demand, allowing you to watch them on 
your schedule. 

Insights and Resources



35

Connect With Us

LinkedIn: www.linkedin.com/company/moss-adams-llp

Twitter: @Moss_Adams

Subscribe to our emails: www.mossadams.com/subscribe

RSS feeds: www.mossadams.com/RSS

YouTube: http://www.youtube.com/mossadamsllp

http://www.linkedin.com/company/moss-adams-llp
https://twitter.com/Moss_Adams
http://www.mossadams.com/subscribe
http://www.mossadams.com/RSS
http://www.youtube.com/mossadamsllp


THANK
YOU

Stelian Damu, Partner
Stelian.Damu@mossadams.com
(818) 577-1914

Kimberly Sokoloff, Senior Manager
Kimberly.Sokoloff@mossadams.com
(925) 952-2506

mailto:Stelian.Damu@mossadams.com
mailto:Kimberly.Sokoloff@mossadams.com


 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 
 

January 19, 2022 
 
Subject:  Kern County Hospital Authority Financial Report – November 2021 
 
Recommended Action:  Receive and File 
 
Summary:   
 
Kern Medical Operations: 

Kern Medical key performance indicators: 
• Average Daily Census of 195 for November is 55 more than the November budget of 140 and 24 more than 

the 171 average over the last three months 
• Admissions of 1,686 for November are 876 more than the November budget of 810 and 656 more than the 

1,030 average over the last three months 
• Total Surgeries of 499 for November are 24 more than the November budget of 475 and 29 more than the 

470 average over the last three months 
• Clinic Visits of 16,983 for November are 2,252 more than the November budget of 14,731 and 1,598 less 

than the 18,581 average over the last three months.  The large budget variances are mainly due to 2,267 
COVID-19 vaccinations provided during November 

   
The following items have budget variances for the month of November 2021:    
 
Patient Revenue: 
Gross patient revenue has a favorable budget variance for November and on a year-to-date basis mainly 
because of strong average daily census levels due to the pandemic.  In addition, there has been an overall 
increase in revenue cycle efficiency due to the implementation of the Cerner electronic health record.  Year-to-
date gross patient revenue has increased 17% compared to prior year.   
 
Indigent Funding Revenue: 
Indigent funding has an unfavorable budget variance for the month and year-to-date due to a conservative 
approach to recognizing indigent funding revenue.  During each month of fiscal year 2022 Kern Medical will only 
recognize 95% of the total projected revenue for the Managed Care Rate Range Program, the Medi-Cal Quality 
Assurance Fee Program, the Physician SPA Program, the Graduate Medical Education (GME) Program, and the 
AB915 Outpatient Supplemental Funding Program.  Kern Medical will recognize 100% of total projected revenue 
for the Medi-Cal waiver programs including the Global Payment Program (GPP), the Whole Person Care Program 
(WPC), the Enhanced Payment Program (EPP), and the Quality Incentive Program (QIP). 
 
Other Operating Revenue: 
Other operating revenue has a favorable budget variance for November and year-to-date due to the receipt of 
funds from the County of Kern for the operation of COVID-19 testing facilities and COVID-19 mobile vaccination 
units.  This revenue is offset by Kern Medical’s costs to provide these services for the County of Kern.  
 



Kern County Hospital Authority Financial Report – November 2021 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 

 

Other Non-Operating Revenue: 
Other non-operating revenue has an unfavorable budget variance for the month and year-to-date because 
federal and state COVID-19 related funding is budgeted evenly throughout FY 2022 as other non-operating 
revenue; however, this COVID-19 funding is not received consistently on a monthly basis.  Therefore, the actual 
dollar amount recorded for this line item may fluctuate vs. budget on a monthly basis but should align with 
budget on a year-to-date basis by year-end. 
 
Salaries Expense: 
Salaries are under budget for the month of November primarily because of lower than average costs for the 
month for physicians, clerical and administrative staff, and aides and attendants.  On a year-to-date basis, 
salaries are under budget due to lower than average expenses for technicians and specialists, physicians, and 
clerical and administrative staff. 
 
Benefits Expense: 
Benefits expense has a favorable budget variance for the month and year-to-date due to lower than average 
paid time off, unemployment insurance, group health insurance, and retirement and pension obligations. 
 
Nurse Registry Expense: 
Nurse registry expense is over budget for the month and on a year-to-date basis because of higher than average 
registry usage in the hospital.  The increase is primarily due to the pandemic. However, the current high census 
levels at Kern Medical consist of many other patients besides those with COVID-19, increasing the need for 
contract nurse services. 
 
Medical Fees: 
For the month of November, Kern Medical operated at the budgeted dollar amount for medical fees.  On a year-
to-date basis medical fees are under budget because of over accruals in prior months for several physicians that 
either no longer provide services for Kern Medical, or have provided relatively less services during the past few 
months. 
 
Other Professional Fees: 
Other professional fees are over budget for the month because of the need to engage contracted technicians 
and specialists due to a staffing shortage caused by high census levels.  Contracted positions added include a CT 
scan technician, an MRI technician, a pharmacist, and a surgical technologist.  On a year-to-date basis, other 
professional fees are over budget in part because of an implementation fee charged by the Acute Care Surgery 
Group and because of the contract labor positions added to accommodate high census levels.  
 
Supplies Expense: 
Supplies expense continues to be over budget for the month and on a year-to-date basis due to ongoing 
operations of the outpatient pharmacy.  In addition, there are monthly radiology imaging software expenses 
that were part of an IT construction-in-progress project in prior year.  These software costs were not budgeted 
for as supplies expenses in FY 2022 and contribute to the unfavorable budget variance. 
 
Purchased Services: 
For the month of November, Kern Medical operated at budget for purchased services expenses.  On a year-to-
date basis, purchased services are over budget due in large part to COVID-19 mobile clinic expenses that are 
reported on this line item.  The mobile clinic expenses are offset by reimbursement received from the County of 
Kern and reported as other operating revenue. 
 
 



Kern County Hospital Authority Financial Report – November 2021 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 

 

Other Expenses: 
Other expenses are over budget for the month in part because of the cost of additional hospital beds rented 
from Hill-Rom to accommodate high patient census levels.  On a year-to-date basis, other expenses are over 
budget because of higher than average repairs and maintenance expenses, an air conditioning and heating unit 
rental from Hertz Equipment Rental Company (HERC) for the MRI, and because of higher than average utility 
costs.  
 
Depreciation and Amortization Expense: 
Depreciation expense is over budget for the month and year-to-date because of construction-in-progress (CIP) 
projects that were put into service and have now started depreciating each month. 



BOARD OF GOVERNORS’ REPORT
KERN MEDICAL – NOVEMBER 2021



Slide 2

Q2 2019 Actual

127
Q2 2020 Actual

138

148 
152 

155 

173 

184 

195 

5.1 5.3 4.8 4.9 5.6 3.5 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

200

Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21

Census & ALOS

Average Daily Census Average LOS Budget Avg Census Budget LOS



Slide 3

1,661 1,631
1,853 1,867 1,797

2,730

8,411
8,641

8,947 9,059

10,007

9,467

876 889 996 1,067 1,027

1,686

4,437
4,711 4,810

5,178

5,719 5,847

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21

Hospital Volumes

Adjusted Admissions (AA) Adjusted Patient Days Admissions Patient Days

Budget Adjust Admits Budget Adjusted Patient Days Budget Admits Budget Patient Days



Slide 4

Q2 2019 Actual

127
Q2 2020 Actual

138

149

117 

159 159 153 

120 

52

61

40 42 50

49

0

50

100

150

200

250

Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21

Deliveries

Vaginal Deliveries Cesarean Section PY Deliveries



Slide 5

12% 11% 12% 11% 12% 12%

9% 8% 8% 9% 9% 10%

37%
33%

35% 37%
41%

42%

18%

21%
21%

21%

20% 17%

2%
2%

2%
2%

2% 2%9% 11%
11%

11%

9% 11%4% 5%
5%

6%
3% 3%9% 8% 5%

3% 2% 2%
1% 1% 2% 2% 1% 2%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21

PAYER MIX

SELF PAY

OTHER

MCAR HMO

MCAR

OTHER MGD MCAL

MCAL

KHS

HNET

COMM



Slide 6

Average Daily Census

Q2 2019 Actual

127
Q2 2020 Actual

138

Up 8%

461 535 550 541 568 570 

4,588 

4,852 

5,111 

4,757 

4,470 
4,252 

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21

Emergency Room Volume

Admissions Treat & Release Budget Total ER



Slide 7

Average Daily Census

Q2 2019 Actual

127
Q2 2020 Actual

138

Up 8%

284 

333 

298 

252 

291 
283 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21

Trauma Activations

Trauma Activations Trauma Budget



Slide 8

Q2 2019 Actual

127
Q2 2020 Actual

138

Up 8%

231 
248 

230 

189 

222 

267 

296 

254 256 256 258 

232 

527 

502 
486 

445 

480 
499 

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21

Surgical Volume 

Inpatient Surgeries Outpatient Surgeries Total Surgeries Budget Surgeries Budget Inpatient Budget Outpatient



Slide 9

Q2 2019 Actual

127
Q2 2020 Actual

138

Up 8%

15,606 
14,648 

15,967 15,828 15,085 14,716 

3,296 

1,375 

2,530 2,962 
3,371 

2,267 

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

16,000

18,000

20,000

Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21

Clinic Visits

Clinic Visits COVID VAX Budget Total Visits



Slide 10

Q2 2020 Actual

138

1,549 1,531 1,574 1,540 1,553 1,557

93 99
99 139

193 196

222 274
267 248

208 184

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21

Productivity

Productive FTEs Registry Labor FTEs Non-Productive FTEs Prod + Non Prod Budget



Slide 11

Q2 2020 Actual

138

6.32
6.48 6.38

5.93

5.59 5.525.52 5.49 5.45

5.11
4.93 4.94

0.00

1.00

2.00

3.00

4.00

5.00

6.00

7.00

8.00

Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21

Labor Metrics

FTEs Per AOB Paid FTEs Per AOB Worked Budget FTEs/AOB Paid Budget FTE's AOB/Worked



Slide 12

Salaries & 
Benefits as % of 

Net Patient 
Revenue

BudgetBudget

$94.32 $95.77 $96.35

$103.29 $101.57
$104.09

$22.71 $21.05 $21.49 $22.99 $24.14 $25.03

0.00

20.00

40.00

60.00

80.00

100.00

120.00

Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21

M
ill

io
ns

Patient Revenue

Gross Patient Revenue Net Revenue Gross Budget Net Budget



Slide 13

Salaries & 
Benefits as % of 

Net Patient 
Revenue

BudgetBudget

$16.06

$13.29 $13.29 $13.29 $13.29 $13.29

$2.53 $2.62 $2.62 $2.62 $2.62 $2.62

$0.33 $0.28 $0.28 $0.29 $0.29 $0.29

 -

 2.00

 4.00

 6.00

 8.00

 10.00

 12.00

 14.00

 16.00

 18.00

Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21

M
ill

io
ns

Indigent & Correctional Revenue

Indigent Funding Correctional Medicine Other Funding Indigent Budget Correctional Budget Other Funding Budget



Slide 14

BudgetBudget

$45.27

$39.07 $39.60
$41.35

$42.53
$43.42

$0

$5

$10

$15

$20

$25

$30

$35

$40

$45

$50

Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21

M
ill

io
ns

Total Revenue

Total Revenue Budget Revenue



Slide 15

Salaries & 
Benefits as % of 

Net Patient 
Revenue

BudgetBudget

$15.55
$15.93

$16.47
$16.82

$16.36
$15.70

$6.98

$7.71

$6.70 $6.87 $6.92 $6.63

$1.86 $2.03
$2.52

$3.32

$4.58

$6.34

$0

$2

$4

$6

$8

$10

$12

$14

$16

$18

Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21

M
ill

io
ns

Expenses 

Salaries Employee Benefits Registry Salaries Budget Benefits Budget Registry Budget



Slide 16

Salaries & 
Benefits as % of 

Net Patient 
Revenue

BudgetBudget

$1.66

$1.80
$1.76

$1.59

$1.75 $1.76

$1.97

$1.57 $1.54

$1.29
$1.34

$1.54

$2.10
$2.02

$1.93 $1.92

$1.78
$1.85

$0

$1

$1

$2

$2

$3

Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21

M
ill

io
ns

Expenses 

Medical Fees Other Professional Fees Purchased Services Medical Fees Budget Other Prof Budget Purchased Serv Budget



Slide 17

Salaries & 
Benefits as % of 

Net Patient 
Revenue

BudgetBudget

$7.18

$5.30

$5.83

$6.73

$6.32

$6.90

$1.60
$1.45

$1.79
$1.63 $1.75

$1.52

$0

$1

$2

$3

$4

$5

$6

$7

$8

Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21

M
ill

io
ns

Expenses 

Supplies Other Expenses Supplies Budget Other Expenses Budget



Slide 18

Salaries & 
Benefits as % of 

Net Patient 
Revenue

BudgetBudget

$0

$2,000

$4,000

$6,000

$8,000

$10,000

$12,000

$14,000

$16,000

$18,000

Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21

Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21
Supply Expense per AA $4,431 $3,408 $4,285 $3,396 $4,176 $3,765 $4,323 $3,247 $3,148 $3,603 $3,606 $2,528
Pharm Cost per AA $2,028 $1,481 $2,050 $1,678 $1,809 $1,458 $1,345 $1,457 $1,319 $1,492 $1,918 $1,081
Net Revenue Per AA $16,093 $13,968 $15,879 $12,922 $14,513 $13,999 $13,071 $12,910 $11,600 $12,316 $13,769 $9,170
Budget Supp/AA $3,516 $3,511 $3,501 $3,518 $3,526 $3,522 $3,522 $3,641 $3,229 $3,214 $3,196 $3,217
Budget Pharm/AA $1,596 $1,759 $1,755 $1,763 $1,767 $1,714 $1,764 $2,217 $1,156 $1,155 $1,154 $1,156
Budget Net Rev/AA $11,893 $11,882 $11,833 $11,892 $11,902 $11,900 $11,897 $14,966 $13,848 $13,228 $13,477 $13,187

Operating Metrics



Slide 19

Salaries & 
Benefits as % of 

Net Patient 
Revenue

BudgetBudget

$4.83

$1.69

$4.84

$3.38

$6.37

$10.43

$6.16

$1.28
$1.06 $1.19

$1.73

$1.18

$0

$2

$4

$6

$8

$10

$12

Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21

M
ill

io
ns

EBIDA Rolling Year

EBIDA Operating Gain (Loss) EBIDA Budget Operating Gain (Loss) Budget



Slide 20

Salaries & 
Benefits as % of 

Net Patient 
Revenue

BudgetBudget

0.00

10.00

20.00

30.00

40.00

50.00

60.00

70.00

80.00

90.00

100.00

AR Days Rolling Year

Days Cash On Hand Days In A/R - Gross Days Budget

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

M
ill

io
ns

Cash Rolling Year

Total Cash Patient Cash Collections Patient Cash Collections Goal



Slide 21

KERN MEDICAL
3-Month Trend Analysis: Revenue & Expense

November 30, 2021

BUDGET VARIANCE PY
SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER NOVEMBER POS (NEG) NOVEMBER

Gross Patient Revenue $     103,289,808 $     101,572,680 $     104,093,541 $      86,539,579 20% $         79,669,458 
Contractual Deductions (80,299,516) (77,429,746) (79,061,114) (67,853,600) 17% (57,019,685)

Net Revenue 22,990,291 24,142,935 25,032,427 18,685,979 34% 22,649,773 

Indigent Funding 13,293,612 13,293,612 13,289,890 13,468,684 (1%) 31,988,215 
Correctional Medicine 2,616,667 2,616,667 2,616,667 2,616,667 0% 2,846,885 
County Contribution 289,845 285,211 285,211 282,894 1% 285,211 
Incentive Funding 0 0 0 0 0% 41,667 

Net Patient Revenue 39,190,415 40,338,424 41,224,195 35,054,224 18% 57,811,751 

Other Operating Revenue 2,141,211 2,175,678 2,187,437 1,641,500 33% 3,238,257 
Other Non-Operating Revenue 17,360 12,864 11,642 274,745 (96%) (1,064,674)

Total Revenue 41,348,986 42,526,966 43,423,275 36,970,469 17% 59,985,334 

Expenses
Salaries 16,821,011 16,356,020 15,697,803 16,156,989 (3%) 15,083,407 
Employee Benefits 6,870,264 6,916,640 6,634,978 7,344,728 (10%) 8,686,023 
Registry 3,321,361 4,582,330 6,341,786 1,585,618 300% 1,490,362 
Medical Fees 1,589,766 1,749,796 1,762,687 1,784,554 (1%) 1,670,322 
Other Professional Fees 1,287,916 1,343,747 1,540,595 1,397,697 10% 1,396,417 
Supplies 6,726,033 6,322,164 6,901,408 4,558,143 51% 5,530,293 
Purchased Services 1,918,454 1,781,505 1,846,351 1,768,319 4% 1,750,279 
Other Expenses 1,626,859 1,748,770 1,519,325 1,473,322 3% 3,620,797 

Operating Expenses 40,161,664 40,800,971 42,244,934 36,069,369 17% 39,227,900 
Earnings Before Interest, Depreciation, 

and Amortization (EBIDA) $         1,187,323 $         1,725,995 $         1,178,341 $           901,100 31% $         20,757,434 

EBIDA Margin 3% 4% 3% 2% 11% 35%

Interest 84,361 84,468 84,329 138,079 (39%) 35,643 
Depreciation 677,964 665,319 665,749 466,931 43% 455,582 
Amortization 224,132 224,132 296,755 254,168 17% 256,257 

Total Expenses 41,148,121 41,774,890 43,291,767 36,928,548 17% 39,975,383 

Operating Gain (Loss) $            200,865 $            752,076 $            131,508 $             41,921 214% $         20,009,951 
Operating Margin 0.5% 1.8% 0.3% 0.11% 167% 33.36% 



Slide 22

KERN MEDICAL
Year-to-Date: Revenue & Expense

November 30, 2021

ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PY PY VARIANCE
FYTD FYTD POS (NEG) FYTD POS (NEG)

Gross Patient Revenue $         501,074,408 $         442,360,246 13% $         427,019,134 17% 
Contractual Deductions (386,366,671) (345,247,281) 12% (323,849,009) 19% 

Net Revenue 114,707,738 97,112,965 18% 103,170,125 

Indigent Funding 66,464,338 67,343,422 (1%) 83,058,831 (20%)
Correctional Medicine 13,083,333 13,083,333 0% 12,973,506 0.8% 
County Contribution 1,426,055 1,414,468 1% 1,426,094 (0.003%)
Incentive Funding 0 0 0% 2,055,853 (100%)

Net Patient Revenue 195,681,463 178,954,189 9% 202,684,409 (3%)

Other Operating Revenue 10,218,710 8,273,662 24% 7,919,718 29% 
Other Non-Operating Revenue 68,469 1,401,199 (95%) 1,012,167 (93%)

Total Revenue 205,968,642 188,629,050 9% 211,616,294 (3%)

Expenses
Salaries 81,267,867 82,653,421 (2%) 77,642,115 5% 
Employee Benefits 34,834,558 37,619,336 (7%) 37,186,276 (6%)
Registry 18,788,136 8,121,458 131% 8,111,980 132% 
Medical Fees 8,668,314 9,007,747 (4%) 8,519,445 2% 
Other Professional Fees 7,275,182 6,939,443 5% 6,832,957 6% 
Supplies 31,076,271 23,301,698 33% 27,893,910 11% 
Purchased Services 9,498,835 9,071,511 5% 9,690,618 (1.98%)
Other Expenses 8,127,842 7,406,243 10% 10,411,609 (22%)

Operating Expenses 199,537,005 184,120,857 8% 186,288,909 7% 
Earnings Before Interest, Depreciation, 

and Amortization (EBIDA) $             6,431,637 $             4,508,193 43% $           25,327,385 (75%)

EBIDA Margin 3% 2% 31% 12% (74%)

Interest 422,427 690,397 (39%) 604,371 (30%)
Depreciation 3,368,389 2,334,653 44% 2,352,915 43% 
Amortization 1,193,285 1,270,842 (6.1%) 1,281,287 (7%)

Total Expenses 204,521,106 188,416,749 9% 190,527,482 7% 

Operating Gain (Loss) $             1,447,536 $                212,301 582% $           21,088,812 (93%)
Operating Margin 1% 0.1% 524% 10% (93%)



Slide 23

NOVEMBER 2021 NOVEMBER 2020
ASSETS:
  Total Cash 38,135,282$           27,259,445$           

Patient Receivables Subtotal 316,483,070 239,659,674
Contractual Subtotal (267,069,273) (191,816,819)
  Net Patient Receivable 49,413,797 47,842,855

Total Indigent Receivable 161,018,057 162,935,894
Total Other Receivable 11,083,741 4,838,751
Total Prepaid Expenses 5,062,367 3,490,575
Total Inventory 4,339,276 6,003,816

  Total Current Assets 269,052,519 252,371,335

Deferred Outflows of Resources 127,290,855 87,863,462             

Total Land, Equipment, Buildings and Intangibles 222,634,268 194,532,751
Total Construction in Progress 1,925,816 21,091,773
  Total Property, Plant & Equipment 224,560,083 215,624,523

Total Accumulated Depr & Amortization (129,944,484) (119,315,636)

   Net Property, Plant, and Equipment 94,615,600 96,308,887

  Total Long Term Assets 127,290,855 87,863,462             

Total Assets 490,958,974$         436,543,684$         

KERN MEDICAL
BALANCE SHEET



Slide 24

NOVEMBER 2021 NOVEMBER 2020
LIABILITIES & EQUITY:
Total Accounts Payable 17,646,366$           13,922,230$           
Total Accrued Compensation 29,643,030 40,935,697
Total Due Government Agencies 17,550,700 37,451,619
Total Other Accrued Liabilities 55,470,227 51,044,055

  Total Current Liabilities 120,310,322 143,353,602

Unfunded Pension Liability 381,152,811 322,103,797
Other Long-Term Liabilities 64,286,919 96,456,658
  Total Long-Term Liabilities 445,439,730 418,560,455

Total Liabilities 565,750,052 561,914,057

Fund Balance 36,714,022 36,714,022
Retained Earnings (111,505,100) (162,084,395)
Total Fund Balance (74,791,078) (125,370,373)

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 490,958,974$         436,543,684$         

KERN MEDICAL
BALANCE SHEET



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 
 
January 19, 2022 
 
Subject: Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Executive Officer Report 
 
Recommended Action: Receive and File 
 
Summary:   

 
The Chief Executive Officer of the Kern County Hospital Authority will provide your Board with a 
hospital-wide update. 



 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

Health and Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2) 
 
On the recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer, the Board of Governors will hold 
a closed session on January 19, 2022, to discharge its responsibility to evaluate and 
improve the quality of care rendered by health facilities and health practitioners. The 
closed session involves: 
 
 
   X    Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health facilities (Health and 
Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2)) –   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

Government Code Section 54956.9 
 
Based on the advice of Counsel, the Board of Governors is holding a closed session on 
January 19, 2022, to confer with, or receive advice from Counsel regarding pending 
litigation, because discussion in open session concerning this matter would prejudice the 
position of the authority in the litigation. The closed session involves: 
 
 
   X     CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - FORMALLY INITIATED LITIGATION  

(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: William Coughran v. 
Kern County Hospital Authority; and DOES 1 through 50, Inclusive, Kern County 
Superior Court Case No. BCV-21-100662 –  
 

 
 



 

 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

Government Code Section 54956.9 
 
Based on the advice of Counsel, the Board of Governors is holding a closed session on 
January 19, 2022, to confer with, or receive advice from Counsel regarding pending 
litigation, because discussion in open session concerning this matter would prejudice the 
position of the authority in the litigation. The closed session involves: 
 
 
   X     CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – FORMALLY INITIATED LITIGATION  

(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Kern County Hospital 
Authority, a Governmental entity v. California Department of Corrections and 
Rehabilitation, et al., Kern County Superior Court Case No. BCV-20-102979 DRL 
–  
 

 
 



 

 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

Government Code Section 54956.9 
 
Based on the advice of Counsel, the Board of Governors is holding a closed session on 
January 19, 2022, to confer with, or receive advice from Counsel regarding pending 
litigation, because discussion in open session concerning this matter would prejudice the 
position of the authority in the litigation. The closed session involves: 
 
 
   X     CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – FORMALLY INITIATED LITIGATION  

(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Farzin Tayefeh, M.D., 
et al. v. County of Kern, et al., Kern County Superior Court, Case No. BCV-15-
100647 –  
 

 
 


	01.19.22  05b Resolution re Brown Act compliance re teleconferencing.pdf
	BEFORE THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS
	OF THE KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY
	In the matter of:                       Resolution No. 2021-___
	AYES:
	NOES:
	ABSENT:
	MONA A. ALLEN
	Mona A. Allen
	RESOLUTION


	01.19.22  07b Resolution re appointment of hospital authority officers (restatement), deleting Smith as CNO and adding LeRoy as CNO.pdf
	BEFORE THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS
	OF THE KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY
	In the matter of:                       Resolution No. 2021-___
	REAFFIRMING THE APPOINTMENT OF SCOTT THYGERSON, ANDREW J. CANTU, TYLER S. WHITEZELL, AND GLENN E. GOLDIS, M.D., AND AFFIRMING THE APPOINTMENT OF DAWN C. LEROY, RN, MSN, CEN-BC, AS CHIEF NURSING OFFICER TO SERVE AS OFFICERS OF THE KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL ...

	AYES:
	NOES:
	ABSENT:
	MONA A. ALLEN
	Mona A. Allen
	RESOLUTION


	01.19.22  08b Kern Medical Org Chart 1'2022.pdf
	01.19.22  05b Kern Medical Org Chart 1'2022.vsd
	Page-1


	01.19.22  17e TIMS Exhibit A Quote 110323.pdf
	Report Records
	QTIMSA00841A


	01.19.22  22b MA Audit Presentation FY'21.pdf
	�FY 2021 Audit Results – Kern County Hospital Authority 
	Audit Committee
	Agenda
	Auditor Opinions & Reports
	Scope of Services
	Auditor Report on the Financial Statements 
	Communications with Those Charged with Governance
	Our Responsibility 
	�Planned Scope & Timing of the Audit
	�Significant Accounting Policies & Unusual Transactions
	�Management Judgments & Accounting Estimates
	Areas of Audit Emphasis
	��Audit Requirement – CARES Act Grant Funding
	�Areas of Audit Emphasis: Patient Service Revenue and Valuation of Patient Accounts Receivable
	�Patient Accounts Receivable - Lookback Analysis
	Areas of Audit Emphasis: Valuation of Third-Party Settlements, Including Indigent Funding
	�Management Judgments & Accounting Estimates
	�Significant Audit Adjustments & Unadjusted Differences Considered by Management to be Immaterial 
	�Significant Audit Adjustments & Unadjusted Differences Considered by Management to be Immaterial (Continued)
	�Deficiencies in Internal Control and in Internal Control over Compliance
	�Potential Effect on the Financial Statements of Any Significant Risks & Exposures 
	�Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
	�Material Uncertainties Related to Events & Conditions/ Fraud & Noncompliance with Laws and Regulations 
	Other Material Written Communications
	Management’s Consultation with Other Accountants
	Management Representation                    Letter
	Management Representation Letter
	About Moss Adams 
	Our Response to COVID-19
	Slide Number 30
	Health Care Industry Experience
	Hospitals & Health Systems 
	Additional Services
	Insights and Resources
	Connect With Us
	Slide Number 36

	01.19.22  23b CFO Presentation - Nov 2021 v2.pdf
	BOARD OF GOVERNORS’ REPORT�kern medical – November 2021
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20
	Slide Number 21
	Slide Number 22
	Slide Number 23
	Slide Number 24




